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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors are pleased to present the 41 Annual Report along with Audited Financial Statements
of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Amt in Rs. Lakhs)

PARTICULARS F.Y 2023-24 F.Y 2022-23 GROWTH
%
Revenue from Operations 129,330.16 112,392.60 15.07%
Other Income 1,301.28 1,246.46 4.39%
Total Revenue (l) 130,631.44 113,639.06 14.95%
Profit Before Finance Costs and 12,602.77 11,884.51 6.04%

Depreciation, prior period expense

and exceptional item (1)

Finance Charges (lll) 216.24 259.62

Depreciation  and amortization 797.65 729.62

expenses(1V)

Profit before prior period, 11,588.88 10,895.27 6.36%

exceptional item and tax [(V)=(ll)-

(Im-(v)]

Income Tax Expense (VI) 2,962.68 2,749.03

Profit for the year (VII)= (V)-(VI) 8,626.20 8,146.24 5.89%
Other comprehensive income (net of 8.07 (92.60)

taxes) (VIII)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 8,634.27 8,053.64 7.20%

FOR THE YEAR (1X)=(VI1)+(VIII)

2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

Total revenue from operations of the Company for the current year stood at Rs. 129,330.16 lakhs,
showing an increase of 15.07 % as compared to the previous year. The Company has reported a profit

after tax of Rs. 8,626.20 lakhs as compared to a profit of Rs. 8,146.24 lakhs in the previous year.



Your Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, in
terms of section 133 and Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (the “Act”) read with

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

3. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

It gives your Company great pleasure to provide you with a brief report. The F.Y. 2023-24 has been
a good year for us, marking a significant jump from previous years, which were already showing
decent increases from the past. The Company is expanding its manufacturing capacity to
proactively prepare for a demand uptick in the coming years. Your Company’s turnover and
profitability have improved dramatically, as have the order bookings. The market continues to
look up, and the upcoming projects in the market are noticeably higher in number and larger in

size than ever before.

While focusing on growing a profitable business entity, the Company distinguishes itself as a
responsible corporate house with an unwavering focus on sustainability. We remain cautiously
optimistic about the future of our industry and believe that our proactive approach will position
us well to overcome the challenges and capitalize on the opportunities that lie ahead. The Pre-
Engineered Buildings division was able to maintain a strong bottom line and improve operational
efficiency, ensuring continued success in the future. Our commitment extends beyond the
present; we meticulously plan for our clients' future growth. Among the many notable advantages
of our pre-engineered buildings, exceptional expandability stands out, serving as a pivotal asset

for businesses looking to seamlessly adapt to future expansion.

Your Company is in a very good position to capitalize on this, as it continues to be recognized as
one of the top companies in the Pre-Engineered Buildings industry. We had an excellent year,
maintaining sales growth at over 15%, and have made excellent bookings for new orders. Many
new clients have placed orders with us, including Toppan, Bhartiyam, KEC, Ampin Solar, IDVB
Recycling, MICRON for semiconductors, and CINDA for Apple phone assembly. This is in addition
to our regular clients, such as Craftsman, Pepsi, Indospace, Welspun, Valuespace, Godrej, and
others, who continue to place their faith in us for their new projects. The use of steel in buildings

is also catching up due to speed, quality, environmental, and labor issues.

Our sales in terms of quantity were at their highest ever in FY2024. We have added capacity in our

Pantnagar and Kiccha plants through line balancing. Besides this, we are pleased to inform you



that the 1st phase of our Andhra plant is already in the trial production stage. The 2nd phase will

commence soon. This will ensure we can meet our sales targets for the coming years.

Gujarat factory land is already booked, and hopefully, we will take possession soon. This will be
utilized by your Company for further expansion of capacity in the 2025-2027 period. We have
expanded our Marketing department into a full-fledged team covering all of India. This expansion
will be extremely helpful in ensuring we attract quality clients and secure high-value projects,

ultimately improving our margins going forward.

As you know, our company is in the final stages of the IPO process, and we have received in-
principle approval from the concerned stock exchanges. The IPO is expected to take place soon.
We hope it will be a huge success and ensure the company's future for many years to come. We
are planning to issue ESOPs to our Employees, who have played a major role in bringing Interarch
to this level. Team Interarch has been instrumental in establishing Interarch as a brand in our

clients' minds.

The Company hopes to reach many more milestones in the future.

KEY AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

Your Company is one of the most admired and recognized companies in the Industry. Your
company has won several awards and accolades, details of which are given below:-

Calendar Year Particulars

Commemorative Medal for Best Professionally Managed
Company from construction, Materials, Supply & Services
(Turnover > 1000-2500 Cr)

Commemorative Trophy for Rudraksh International
Cooperation and Convention Center, Varanasi for Best
Pre-Engineered Building

Commemorative Trophy for Industry Captain, conferred
on Mr. Gautam Suri

2024 Appreciation Award for planning, Co-ordination and
Quality along with Safety from Ceat Limited

Certificate of Appreciation for achievement of 1.25 lakh
safe man hours from Grasim Paints at Kharagpur.




5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW, FORMS
PART OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis containing Information inter-alia on industry trends, your
company’s performance, future outlook, opportunities and threats for the year ended March 31,

2024, form part of this report as Annexure A..

6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There has been no change in the nature of the company’s business during the year. Interarch has
consistently been the torchbearer of innovation, leading the way in various segments, including

metal ceilings, blinds, metal roofing, and pre-engineered buildings.

7. SUBSIDIARIES/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

8. DIVIDEND

The company has been investing in the expansion of its manufacturing facilities to drive growth.
Therefore, your directors are not recommending any dividend on equity shares

9. RESERVES

During the year under review, the company transferred Rs. 8,634.27 lakhs under the head of retained
earnings and utilized Rs. 3,900 lakhs towards the buyback of the company’s equity shares. After that,
the reserves stood at Rs. 42,707.55 lakhs as of March 31, 2024.

10. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared and paid last year, the provisions of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

11. CREDIT RATING

The Company obtained credit Ratings from CRISIL Limited. Credit rating of the Company as at the end
of financial year 2023-24 are given below:

Rating Agency Credit Rating
CRISIL Long Term Rating

CRISIL A-/Stable (Upgraded from ‘CRISIL
BBB+/Positive’)

Short Term Rating

CRISIL A2+ (Upgraded from 'CRISIL A2')




12. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

< For considering the overall business objectives and future plans of the Company, the Company
has converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company. The name was
changed from INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED to INTERARCH BUILDING
PRODUCTS LIMITED, effective December 15, 2023.".

4 The company has made a proposal to undertake an Initial Public Offer (“IPO”) of the Equity
Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each of the company comprising of fresh issuance of such number
of Equity Shares of the Company aggregating upon Rs. 20,000 lacs (Fresh issue) and an offer for
sale of Rs. 4,447,630 Equity Shares by certain existing Shareholders of the Company. The
Company has filed the Draft Red herring Prospectus with the Securities Board of India (SEBI),
BSE Limited, NSE Limited for their approval on the 18" Day of March 2024.

The Company has received the In-principal Approval for the proposed Public Issue from the NSE
Limited and BSE Limited.

13. BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEE MEETING

During the FY 2023-24, the Company held Eight (8) board meetings of the Board of Directors
as per Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is summarised below. The provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 were adhered to while considering the time gap between the two
meetings.

The details of the Meeting of the Board held during the year are given below:

BOARD MEETING

BM-01 05/05/2023 BM-05 15/01/2024
BM-02 20/06/2023 BM-06 08/03/2024
BM-03 17/08/2023 BM-07 14/03/2024
BM-04 12/10/2023 BM-08 18/03/2024

Details of Meetings attended by the Directors during Financial Year 2023-24

Name of Director Number of Meetings | Number of Meetings
entitled to attend attend

Mr. Arvind Nanda
Mr. Gautam Suri

Mr. Ishaan Suri

Mr. Vishal Sharma
Mr. Viraj Nanda

Mr. Dhanpal Jhaveri
Mrs. Sonali Bhagwati
Mr. Mohit Gujral
Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin

WIW[(W|0|(00|U1|00|00 |00
WIWINIUNIJd|P|OV|00|00




Your company has constituted and reconstituted various committees, including the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), Stakeholder Relationship
Committee (SRC), and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR), in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and other applicable laws, rules, and

regulations.

Additionally, the company has established an IPO Committee for operational convenience and
to ensure compliance with legal and statutory requirements in view of the proposed IPO.

The Committee meetings held during the year are listed below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

ACM-1 14/03/2024
ACM-2 18/03/2024

CSR COMMITTEE

CSRCM-1 17/08/2023
CSRCM-2 15/01/2024

NRC Committee

NRCM-1 | 08/03/2024

14. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Appointments, Re-appointments, Retirements and Resignations

*

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment of Directors.

As per Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two third of the Directors shall be
subject to retire by rotation. One-third of such Directors must retire from office at each
Annual General Meeting “AGM” of the shareholders and a retiring Director is eligible for re-
election. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company the following director are liable to retire by rotation:
e Mr. Gautam Suri (DIN 00149374) whole time Director of the Company retires by
rotation at the forthcoming 41°* Annual General Meeting of the Company and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and such re-appointment as such director

shall not be deemed to constitute a break in his appointment as Whole Time Director



e Mr. Ishaan Suri (DIN 02714298) Director of the Company retires by rotation at the
forthcoming 41°t Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible, offers

himself for re-appointment.

+ Appointment of Independent Director & Re-appointment of Director

> Ms. Sonali Bhagwati Dalal (DIN: 01105028) who has the required integrity,
expertise and experience was appointed, with your approval as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of Five years, commencing from 15%
January,2024 .She shall not be liable to retire by rotation. Her appointment was
approved by the members at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company

held on January 17, 2024.

> Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (DIN: 00001575) who has the required integrity, expertise and
experience was appointed, as an Independent Director of the Company, with
your approval for a period of Five years commencing from 15" January, 2024. He
shall not be liable to retire by rotation. His appointment was approved by the
members at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on January

17, 2024.

> Mr. Mohit Gujral (DIN: 00051538), who possesses the required integrity,
expertise, and experience, was appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company, with your approval, for a period of five years commencing from
January 15, 2024. He shall not be liable to retire by rotation. His appointment was
approved by the members at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company

held on January 17, 2024.

> Mr. Gautam Suri (DIN: 00149374) who has the required integrity, expertise and
experience was appointed as whole time Director of the Company for a period of
five years commencing from 15™ January, 2024. Their appointment was approved
by the members in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on

January 17, 2024.

Brief resume, nature of expertise, disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se, details
of directorships and committee memberships held in other companies of the directors

proposed to be appointed/ re-appointed, along with their shareholding in the Company, as



stipulated under Secretarial Standard 2 issued by Institute of Company Secretaries Of India are

appended as an Annexure to the Notice of the 415 AGM.

+ APPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Anil Kumar Chandani has resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the
Company, w.e.f 12/02/2024, due to his promotion to the role of President (Corporate Finance
& Strategy). The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contribution
made by him during his tenure in the Company as CFO. Mr. Pushpendra Kumar Bansal is

appointed as a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company, w.e.f 12/02/2024.

i RESIGNATIONS OF DIRECTOR(S)

Due to the withdrawal of the Nomination by M/s OIH Mauritus Limited (Formerly known as
Indivision India partners, Mr. Vishal Sharma (DIN: 01599024) Nominee Director of the Company,

has resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f close of business hours on 04.03.2024.

The Board extends its sincere appreciation for the valuable contributions made by Mr. Vishal

Sharma.

4 CHANGES IN THE DESIGNATION OF THE DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2023-24, with the consent of the Board of Directors, the designations

and terms of the following individuals have been changed:

» The designation of Mr. Ishaan Suri has been changed from Executive Director to Non-
Executive Director.

» The terms of appointment for Mr. Viraj Nanda have been changed from "not liable to
retire by rotation" to "liable to retire by rotation."

» The terms of appointment for Mr. Dhanpal Arvind Jhaveri have been changed from
"not liable to retire by rotation" to "liable to retire by rotation."

Save and except for the above, there were no changes in the Directors or Key Managerial

Personnel (KMPs), nor were there any changes in their terms during the year under review.



DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act, the Company has received declarations from all
Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as specified in
Section 149(6) of the Act, as amended, along with the Rules framed thereunder. The
Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation
that exists or may reasonably be anticipated to impair or impact their ability to discharge their
duties with objective independent judgment and without any external influence, and that they
are independent of the Management.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s
Code of Conduct and that they are registered on the databank of Independent Directors
maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. Additionally, the Directors have
confirmed that they are not debarred from holding the office of director under any SEBI order
or by any other such authority.

The Board of Directors of the Company has taken note of the declarations and confirmations
submitted by the Independent Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY AND POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board of Directors values the significance of diversity and firmly believes that diversity in
background, gender, geography, expertise, knowledge, and perspectives leads to sharper and
more balanced decision-making and sustainable development. At Interarch, we recognize the
importance of diversity and inclusion in our boardroom and strive to maintain a diverse
composition that reflects the richness of the global community we serve. The Company boasts

an eminent, high-performing, and diverse board.

In terms of the requirement of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations,
the Board of Directors has adopted Policy on Nomination Remuneration and Board Diversity’
on appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel & Senior
Management. The Policy includes, inter-alia, criteria for appointment of Directors, KMPs, Senior
Management Personnel (SMP) and other covered employees, their remuneration structure and
disclosures in relation thereto, total rewards package for Managing Director & CEO and relevant
members of Senior Management which is linked with sustainability targets and long term

performance of the Company.

The policy is available on the Company’s website at www.interarchbuildings.com
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FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR BOARD MEMBERS

The Company has adopted a well-structured induction program for the orientation and training
of Directors upon their joining. This program provides an opportunity for Directors to familiarize
themselves with the Company, the Board, its management, operations including products and
services -business model, values, Company culture, and the industry in which the Company

operates.

The induction program includes one-on-one interactive sessions with the top management
team, business and functional heads, among others. Directors are also acquainted with the
Company’s organizational and governance structure, governance philosophy/principles, Code
of Conduct and key policies, the Board’s way of working and procedures, formal information-
sharing protocols between the Board and management, as well as Directors’ roles,

responsibilities, and disclosure obligations.

In addition to the induction program, the Company periodically presents updates at
Board/Committee meetings to familiarize Directors with the Company’s strategy, business
performance, including its digital ecosystem, product offerings, finance, risk management

framework, human resources, and other related matters.

15. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

The Company has paid the Managerial Remuneration in compliance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

16. SIGNICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

During the year under review, there has been no significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in

future.

17. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Revised Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-

2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

11



18. DEPOSITS PROM PUBLIC

The Company has neither invited nor accepted any Deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. And, as such no amount on account of principal or

interest was outstanding as of the date of the balance sheet.

Therefore, no deposits are unpaid or unclaimed at the end of the year. Consequently, there is no non-

compliance with any of the provisions of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

19. SHARE CAPITAL

a.

ISSUED ANY EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS
The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights.

BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has bought back its Equity Shares 5,84,708 (Five Lakhs Eighty four Thousand Seven
Hundred and Eight ) number of fully paid up Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each at a
price of Rs. 667 (Six Hundred Sixty Seven Only ) per equity share (the Buy Back price) for aggregate
amount of Rs. 3,900 lakhs (Rupees Thirty Nine Hundred Lakhs Only) from the existing
shareholders of the company and the equity shares bought back were extinguished on September
25, 2023. Capital redemption reserve was created to the extent of share capital extinguished (Rs.
58.47 lakhs) from retained earnings. The excess cost of buyback of Rs. 3,841.53 lakhs over par

value of shares were offered from general reserve and corresponding tax on buyback of Rs.

428.13 lakhs were offset from retained earnings.

SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
BONUS SHARES

The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.

RIGHT ISSUE SHARES

The Company has not issued any Right Shares during the year under review

12



20.

21.

22.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN

During the year, the Company adopted the Employee Stock Option Plan, 2023 (“the ESOP Scheme
-2023") pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors on August 17,2023, and our
Shareholders on August 18, 2023 which was amended pursuant to resolution passed by the Board
of Directors on 8™ March 2024, and our Shareholders on 8th March, 2024. As per the ESOP 2023.
The Compensation Committee namely Nomination and Remuneration Committee will determine
the exercise price and pricing formula, following the guidelines laid down by applicable
accounting standards. The method for valuation of options shall be determined by the
Compensation Committee namely Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time
in accordance with ESOP 2023. As on date no stock options have been granted under the ESOP
2023.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The statements required under Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (‘the Rules’), as amended,

form part of this report as Annexure B.

CONSERVATION, ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings, and
Outgo, as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules

thereunder, is provided in “ANNEXURE C,” forming part of this report.

WEB ADDRESS, WHERE ANNUAL RETURN TO BE PLACED

In accordance with Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Act and the rules thereto, the

Annual Return of the Company in Form MGT-7 for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is

available on the Company’s website at www.interarchbuildings.com . The Annual Return will be
electronically submitted to the Registrar of Companies within the timelines prescribed under the

Act.

13



23. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT U/S 217(2AA)

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the Company

confirms that:

a)

b)

<)

d)

f)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule Il to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the Company for
the year ended on that date;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

24. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has disclosed the full particulars of the loans given, investments made or guarantees

given or security provided as required under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in Notes to the

financial statements forming part of the annual report.

25. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties

were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The particulars of such transactions with related

parties have been disclosed at Note No.36 in the Financial Statements as required under Ind AS 24-

Related Party Disclosures and as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended.

14



All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for approval. Prior
omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for transactions which are of a foreseen and

repetitive nature.

During the year, there were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into with the
related parties other than at arm’s length price. Accordingly, there were no transactions during the
year ended March 31, 2024 required to be reported in Form AOC-2 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act the Company has formulated a policy on RPTs and is available

on Company’s website www.interarchbuildings.com.

26. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Risk management broadly includes the ongoing identification, measurement, assessment,
prioritization, and mitigation of risks followed by integrated and strategic application of relevant
resources to minimize, monitor and control the probability or impact of adverse or negative events
from occurring. Risk taking is an integral part of the business. The Company is committed to

proactively identify and manage business risks to facilitate achievement of business objectives.

The management teams across businesses and functions analyse risks in their operations and related
to their strategic objectives, at least annually, considering bottom-up risk assessment, an external
outlook and top management input. In accordance with the provisions of Listing Regulations, the
Board has formed a Risk Management Committee and formulated a Risk Management Policy. The Risk
Management Committee conducts integrated risk and performance reviews along with the Senior
Executives engaged in different business divisions and functions. The Committee reviews identified
risks and the effectiveness of the developed mitigation plans to provide feedback and guidance on

emerging risks.

27. AUDITOR & AUDITOR REPORT

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

In 40" AGM, M/s S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having Firm Registration No.
301003E/ E300005 have been re-appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the period of

5 years till the conclusion of the 45™ AGM.

15



The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments. The Statutory Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2023-24 does not
contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer and no frauds were reported

by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board, under subsection (12) of Section 143 of the Act.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s SHRP & Associates, Chartered Accountants, have been conducting periodic internal audits of all
operations of the Company at Plot No.14, Sector 2, IIE Pantnagar, Rudrapur, Uttarakhand, and Khasra
No.276A, 2 Kms on Kichha-Rudrapur Road, Kichha-263148 (Uttarakhand). M/s RITS AND ASSOCIATES,
Chartered Accountants, have been conducting periodic internal audits for the factory at Sipcot,
Tamilnadu. M/s BDO & LLP have been conducting periodic internal audits of all operations at the Head
Office of the Company at B-30, Sector 57, Noida — 201301, India. The Audit Committee is presented
with quarterly updates on the audit, including a summary of audit observations, if any, and follow-up

actions thereon.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, the Board of
Directors appointed APR & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors for the
financial year ending March 31, 2024. The Secretarial Auditors have confirmed that the Company has
complied with applicable laws and that adequate systems and processes are in place, commensurate
with the Company's size and scale of operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with these laws.
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, disclaimers, or adverse

remarks.

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as Annexure D of this report.

COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act, read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
the Company has appointed M/s JSN & CO as the cost auditors to audit the cost accounting records
maintained for various products manufactured by the Company for the year ending March 31, 2025.
The remuneration for their services is set at Rs. 65,000, subject to ratification by the shareholders at

the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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28. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

For Interarch, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) means adopting responsible business practices
with active involvement from all stakeholders in decision-making and operations. It involves
implementing business policies that are ethical, equitable, environmentally conscious, gender-
sensitive, and considerate of differently-abled individuals. Our aim is to actively contribute to the
social and economic development of the communities where we operate, thereby fostering a
sustainable and improved quality of life for marginalized sections of society and enhancing the

country’s human development index.

CSR Objectives
I Demonstrate commitment to the common good through responsible business practices and

good governance.

II.  To directly or indirectly take up programmes that benefit the communities in
& around its Work Centre and results over a period of time
in Enhancing the quality of life & economic wellbeig of the local populace.

Il Engender a sense of empathy and equity among employees of Interarch to motivate them to
give back to the society.

The salient features of the Policy are included in the Annual Report on CSR activities, which is annexed
to the Board’s Report. The CSR policy is available on the Company’s website at

www.interarchbuildings.com, and the initiatives taken by the Company are outlined in “Annexure-D”

of this report.

29. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistleblower Policy, which is part of the Company’s
Code of Conduct. This policy outlines the methods and processes for stakeholders to raise genuine
concerns about unethical conduct that may constitute or threaten a breach of the Company’s Code of

Conduct. The policy is available on the Company’s website at www.interarchbuildings.com..

30. PROCEEDING UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There were no proceedings, either filed by the Company or against the Company, pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 as amended, before the National Company Law Tribunal or any

other Courts as on March 31, 2024.
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31. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has implemented a Policy for the Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment at the workplace, in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder (“POSH”). This
Policy applies to all employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, and trainees). The Company has
constituted an Internal Committee for its Head Office and Plants as required under Section 4 of the

Act. No complaints were received by these committees during the year under review.

32. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

Governance is the framework that ensures appropriate business processes and tools are in place to
adhere to all applicable obligations under various regulations across the locations where the Company
operates. This includes the Board structure and the Code of Conduct. The Company’s governance
structure is built on values of transparency, integrity, professionalism, and accountability. These
values help implement the Company strategy effectively and transparently, delivering long-term value
for shareholders, employees, business partners, and other stakeholders. The Corporate Governance

Report is annexed as Annexure E of this Report.

33. DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

The Company has filed following application against the corporate Debtors under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code 2016 which is pending as on March 31, 2024

CONPLAINANTS/ Type of Case Claim Jurisdiction Status as on March 31,
RESPONDENTS Amount 2024

(Rs)
Interarch Building Products | Section 9, 1,84,50,799 | National The matter was filed
Private limited vs. Uttam before Company Law | before the NCLT New
Sucrotech NCLT Tribunal, New | Delhi for initiation of the

Delhi
bench

CRIP process against the
Corporate Debtor on
08.12.2023. The Hon’ble
Court issued a notice in
this case through an
order dated 09.02.2024.
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34. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

Since the Company has not undertaken any one-time settlements during the year under review, no

disclosure is required.

35. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s internal audit systems are designed to ensure that adequate internal controls are in
place, tailored to the size and needs of the business. The objective is to operate efficiently by adhering
to Company policies, identifying areas for improvement, evaluating the reliability of financial
statements, ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and safeguarding assets from

unauthorized use.

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to express their sincere appreciation for the cooperation and continued support
received from customers, vendors, investors, shareholders, financial institutions, banks, regulatory
authorities, and the society at large during the year. We also acknowledge and appreciate the

contributions made by our employees at all levels, and their commitment, hard work, and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole-time director
DIN: 00149426 DIN: 00149374
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Annexure-A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT

GLOBAL ECONOMY

Overview

The global economy demonstrated resilience in 2023 following a turbulent year. Despite significant
geopolitical events, increased volatility in energy and commodity markets, and aggressive monetary
tightening to address persistent inflation, global economic growth has decelerated but not come to a
halt. According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), economic growth is projected to slow to
3.2% in 2024, the same rate as in 2023.

In 2023, economic growth in several emerging markets and developing economies exceeded
expectations. Notably, the US economy saw a robust recovery, with private consumption performing
strongly. The US GDP grew from 1.9% in 2022 to 2.5% in 2023. The European Union, however, has
faced unprecedented shocks due to the prolonged Russia-Ukraine war, tight monetary policy, higher
interest rates, and increased energy costs, resulting in a slowdown of GDP growth from 3.6% in 2022
t0 0.6% in 2023. Conversely, China’s economy expanded by 5.2% in 2023, up from 3.0% in 2022.

Global inflation has continued to decline, dropping from 8.7% in 2022 to 6.8% in 2023, raising hopes
for further easing of financial conditions and improvements in monetary policy frameworks, although
there is still uncertainty about the timing of interest rate reductions.

India was one of the fastest-growing economies in 2018 and 2019. However, in 2020, most countries,
including developed ones such as the US and the UK, experienced GDP contraction due to the
pandemic, with India’s GDP shrinking by 5.8%. In 2021, economic activity rebounded globally, driven
by the low base of 2020. India led the major economies with a growth rate of approximately 9.8% in
2021, followed by China at 8.4%. India also surpassed the UK to become the fifth-largest economy in
the world in the April-June quarter of 2022, with a GDP growth of 7.0% in 2022.

Looking ahead, India’s GDP is projected to grow at approximately 7.6% in 2023 and 6.8% in 2024.
Additionally, India is expected to grow faster than China and the global average in 2024.
India’s per capita GDP has grown faster than global average.

Global GDP per capita clocked a CAGR of 1.8% between calendar year 2012 and calendar year 2022,
as per the (International Monetary Fund) IMF data. Meanwhile, India’s corresponding figure
registered a CAGR of 5.2%.

(Source: IMF Economic Outlook, April 2024; EIA; World Bank; IEA; RBI MPC Meeting 2024)
OUTLOOK

The Reserve Bank of India projects global growth to remain steady in 2024. The IMF forecasts a global
growth of 3.2% for both 2024 and 2025.
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Region-wise growth (%)

Region 2023 2024 (E) 2025 (P)
Global Economy 3.2 3.2 3.2
Advanced Economies | 1.6 1.7 1.8
(AEs)

Emerging Markets and | 4.3 4.2 4.2
Developing Economies

(EMDEs)

(E - Estimates, P - Projections) (Source: International Monetary Fund)
INDIAN ECONOMY

Overview Amid a challenging global economic landscape and deteriorating geopolitical conditions,
India has been a bright spot. It is the fifth-largest economy in the world and is poised to retain its
position as the world's fastest-growing major economy. Its GDP growth remained buoyant at 7.6% in
FY 2023- 24 as against 7% in FY 2022-23 supported by robust domestic demand, moderate inflation, a
stable interest rate environment, and strong investment activity. Furthermore, an accelerated pace of
economic reforms and increased capital expenditure facilitated construction activities and created
extensive employment opportunities across the country.

Region FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 (E)

Real GDP growth (%) 9.1 7.0 7.6

(E-Estimates) (Source: Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation)

The Government’s thrust on infrastructure investments and emphasis on expanding the share of
manufacturing in the GDP were seen to have supported GDP growth in FY 2023-24 through a growth
of 10.7% in the Construction sector and 8.5% growth in the Manufacturing sector. The Index of
Industrial Production (lIP) growth rate for FY 2023-24 indicates a 5.8% increase compared to the
previous year. Furthermore, India’s per capita income is estimated to have reached Rs. 2.14 lakhs in
FY 2023-24, achieving remarkable growth of 8.0%. Rising levels of disposable income have led to an
upswing in household consumption, thereby stimulating demand across various sectors.

Despite repetitive food price shocks, India’s CPI inflation is on a downward trajectory and eased to
4.83% in April 2024. The RBI has thus far maintained the policy repo rate at 6.50% with an aim to
achieve the target of 4% inflation while supporting economic growth.

(Source: Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation; Ministry of Finance; RBI; Ministry of
Commerce & Industry)

OUTLOOK

India’s economic outlook remains positive as it reaps the benefits of demographic dividend, a skilled
and productive workforce, physical and digital infrastructure enhancements, increased capital

21



expenditure, and the government's proactive policy measures. According to the IMF, the Indian
economy is expected to advance steadily at 6.8% in 2024 and 6.5% in 2025. On the other hand, the
RBI’s forecast is more optimistic, projecting a higher GDP growth of 7.0% for FY 2024-25, while CPI
inflation is expected to decline to 4.5% in FY 2024-25.

Potential risks to India’s economic outlook arise from headwinds from geopolitical tensions, volatility
in international financial markets and geo economic fragmentation. However, India’s advantageous
geopolitical position will help it capitalise on supply chain diversification and re-shoring, increase its
global competitiveness and boost exports. Amid a volatile global macro environment, the Indian
economy is poised to ascend as a global economic powerhouse and become the third-largest economy
in the world by 2030. The Interim Budget 2024-25 outlines a multi-pronged economic management
strategy, including infrastructure development, digital public infrastructure, taxation reforms and
proactive inflation management. It sets the foundation for the vision of a 'Viksit Bharat' (Developed
India) by 2047.

(Source: IMF Economic Outlook, April 2024; Economic Times; RBI; Ministry of Finance)
Industrial Sector in India

India’s industrial sector holds a significant position, contributing around 30% to the nation’s Gross
Value Added (GVA). In FY 2023-24, this sector faced notable challenges, notably due to the Russia-
Ukraine conflict. While there were substantial disruptions in the supply chain, they did not reach the
severity initially anticipated. Nonetheless, the industry had to address the challenges of rising prices
and scarcity of essential commodities. Despite these obstacles, the industrial sector maintained a
positive outlook.

Construction spends within industrial/ manufacturing sector are seen rising 6-8% in Financial Year
2024, driven by expansion in the oil and gas and metals verticals. The growth builds on a high base of
Financial Year 2023, when the sector expanded due to deferred investments from Financial Year 2021
and Financial Year 2022 and capex investments from the PLI scheme picking up. The latter is a time-
bound incentive scheme wherein the government rewards companies by 5-15% of their annual
revenue based on them meeting pre-decided targets for incremental production and/or exports and
capex over a base year.

Steel Industry

Steel consumption grew from Financial Year 2018 to Financial Year 2023 from 91 million tonne (MT)
to 120 MT. The growth was barring Financial Year 2021, when it declined to 95 MT due to the
pandemic. However, there was a robust rebound in Financial Year 2022, with steel consumption
surging to 106.0 MT. The government's initiatives, such as Make in India, Smart Cities Mission,
Production Linked Incentive (PLI) and Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana have also supported the steel
demand during the period.

However, India has considerable scope to enhance steel usage across various sectors. As of calendar
year 2022, the country’s annual per capita steel consumption stands at 81 kg per annum, compared
to the world’s average of 222 kg.

The Government’s ‘Vision Plan 2030,’ aimed at positioning the country as a manufacturing and export
hub for construction equipment and driving the development of world-class infrastructure, has not
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only enhanced exports but also stimulated growth in the sector. With China +1 and economic
slowdown in leading manufacturing hub like Europe, Indian products have emerged as the preferred
choice. The industry continues to invest in technology to enhance operational efficiency and maintain
global competitiveness. The sector has witnessed increased order booking on the back of increasing
consumer demand and infrastructure development.

Looking ahead to the period 2030-2031, the steel industry in India is estimated to necessitate an
additional capital expenditure of Rs.10 Lakhs and an electricity supply of 27 GW to accommodate
anticipated capacity expansion and rising demand. Employment in the sector is set to grow from the
current 25 Lakhs people engaged in direct and indirect roles to an impressive 36 Lakhs jobs by 2031,
making a substantial contribution to the country’s economic development.

Due to strong demand from allied sectors and the government's capital spending drive. Additionally,
as steel demand is driven by the infrastructure boom in roads and railways and Financial Year 2024 is
a pre-election year, a surge in the government's capital expenditure in infrastructure is expected,
which will likely drive domestic steel growth.

Moving forward, CRISIL estimates demand in Financial Year 2024 to increase 10-13% to 130-140 MT
due to strong demand from allied sectors and the government's capital spending drive. Additionally,
as steel demand is driven by the infrastructure boom in roads and railways and Financial Year 2024 is
a pre-election year, a surge in the government's capital expenditure in infrastructure is expected,
which will likely drive domestic steel growth.

Finished steel (alloy/stainless + non-alloy) consumption in India
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Note: P: Projected
H1 numbers of Financial Year 2024 numbers are provisional
Source: Ministry of Steel annual report, Joint Plant Committee (JPC), CRISIL MI&A

Apparent steel use (kilograms) per capita (Calendar year 2022)
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Financial Years 2019-2023 with the bump-up attributable to the PLI scheme.

Key growth drivers in Indian construction industry

Key drivers

Increased
urbanisation

Smart City
Mission

Growing
investments in
renewable
energy

Increased
spending on
warehousing

Favourable
government
initiatives

Description
India's rapid urbanisation, coupled with a growing middle-income group, has
been a major growth driver for the construction sector as it has led to increased
demand for affordable housing as well as better public infrastructure
connectivity through roads and railways.
The government's Smart Cities Mission that aims to develop 100 smart cities
across India, serves as a prominent growth driver for the construction industry.
Furthermore, smart city investments are expected to grow to X 0.6 trillion over
Financial Years 2024-2028 (P) from a comparatively low base of X 0.2 trillion
Financial Years 2018-2022.
Growing commitment by companies to renewable energy has led to a surge in
the construction of solar and wind power projects. Furthermore, deferred
investments from Financial Years 2021 due to the pandemic, coupled with a rise
in investments in Financial Years 2023 for meeting the renewable energy target
of the government, will boost the construction industry.
With rapid growth of the e-commerce sector, there has been a surge in demand
for efficient warehousing and cold storage facilities in India for better
connectivity. For example, Haryana is increasingly finding favour as a consumer-
durable-and-FMCG hub given its position as one of the highest consumption
markets in the National Capital Region and proximity to major markets.
Indian government has introduced various initiatives and policies to boost the
construction sector, such as the Make in India, Production-Linked Incentive (PLI)
scheme, National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP), NMP and the Gati Shakti initiative.
These programmes have led to an increase in capex investments in the overall
construction industry and proved to be a significant growth driver.

Source: CRISIL MI&A

Major government initiatives to boost the construction industry
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Key Government of India’s initiatives, such as, ‘AatmaNirbhar Bharat’, PLI scheme, Bharatmala
Pariyojana, Sagar Mala, PMAY-G and PMAY-U are expected to drive growth of the PEB industry in
India.

PRE-ENGINEERED BUILDINGS INDUSTRY

Pre-engineered steel construction is gaining popularity in the commercial, infrastructure, and
industrial landscape, such as in the automobile, cement, paper sectors, offices, aircraft hangers,
warehouses and logistics, and data centres. The Use of pre-engineered constructed units allows
companies to accelerate the construction process in a cost-effective manner without compromising
on quality. In fact, the absence of external, uncontrollable factors such as adverse weather in pre-
engineered construction allows for better control on quality through standardised operations and
streamlined processes.

Pre-engineered steel construction has emerged as an innovative building method due to rapid growth
of automation in the construction industry. Furthermore, a shortage of skilled labour, combined with
the inherent advantages of these structures in terms of speed, cost-effectiveness, and environmental
impact, is significantly propelling their popularity in the construction sector.

Pre-engineered structures/units are more eco-friendly than traditionally constructed ones and
provide common benefits such as reduced material wastage, enhanced quality control, and improved
on-site safety. The controlled manufacturing process minimises material wastage, promoting
sustainable building practices, while rigorous quality control ensures consistent and durable
structures.

PRE-ENGINEERED STEEL BUILDINGS INDUSTRY SEGMENTATION BY END USER
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Source: Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, CRISIL MI&A

Global pre-engineered steel buildings market estimated at USD 16-17 billion as of calendar year
2022

The global pre-engineered steel buildings market is estimated at $16-17 billion as of calendar year
2022 and is expected to clock 11-12% CAGR over the medium term till calendar year 2027. The
industrial and commercial sector, the mainstay of the global pre-engineered steel buildings market, is
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expected to drive demand for pre-engineered steel buildings. Furthermore, increasing investments in
public infrastructure, growing urbanisation, and increasing awareness of benefits of pre-engineered
construction vis-a-vis the traditional onsite model are also expected to boost the global pre-
engineered steel buildings market.

The pre-engineered steel buildings market is expected to see good growth on account of increasing
awareness regarding modern off-site construction techniques as well as rising demand for green
buildings globally which has resulted in shift in focus from traditional steel buildings to pre-engineered
steel buildings. Pre-engineered steel buildings consume less energy and generate less on-site wastage
during and post construction.

Global pre-engineered steel buildings market
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DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL FRONT

The Company has a strong committed work force nurtured and backed up by its professional culture
coupled with innovative HR process aimed at strategic alignment with the business objectives. It has
been the tradition of the Company to maintain excellent industrial relations at all levels. This has
ensured that we have a committed and dedicated workforce with a high level of enthusiasm.

The number of employees as on 31st March, 2024 was 2131 as against 1741 as on 31st March, 2023.

OUTLOOK

The Indian economy has been performing well, with robust consumption activity and increasing
disposable income. Despite geopolitical uncertainties, the demand remains resilient. In the financial
year 2023-24,. The risks to global growth are broadly balanced, and a soft landing is possible.

Global growth is projected to be 3.1% in 2024 and 3.2% in 2025. This forecast is slightly higher than
the previous estimate due to resilience in the United States, emerging markets, and fiscal support in
China. Inflation is falling faster than expected in most regions, and headline inflation is expected to
decline to 5.8% in 2024 and 4.4% in 2025.
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INTERARCH’S USPS

REPEAT BUSINESS FROM STELLAR CUSTOMERS 01

CUSTOMER PERCEPTION AND DRIVE TOWARDS
CUSTOMER DELIGHT 02

ROBUST PROJECT DELIVERY MECHANISM 03

FORMIDABLE TEAM BUILT OVER 40 YEARS 04

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)

Interarch acknowledges the pivotal role that information technology plays in both its manufacturing
operations and overall business strategy. The Company’s IT strategy is aligned with its broader
business objectives, with a strong focus on efficiency, fostering innovation and security. Its IT
governance framework ensures effective management of its technology investments and adequate
mitigation of risks. Interarch is transitioning the Business-Critical ERP Application system to cloud-
based platforms, thereby enabling improved availability, scalability, and flexibility. This highlights the
Company’s dedication to strengthening its information security measures to protect its data and
uphold the trust of its stakeholders. The Company’s dedication to strengthening its information
security measures to protect its data and uphold the trust of its stakeholders.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Interarch’s commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility involves responsible business practices
that engage all stakeholders in decision-making and operations. This entails the adoption of business
policies that prioritise ethical values, fairness, environmental consciousness, gender sensitivity, and
inclusivity towards the differently abled. The Company actively contributes to the social and economic
development of the communities in which it operates, aiming to build a better, sustainable way of life
for the weaker sections of society and raise the country’s human development index. To facilitate this
commitment, the Company has established the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy, which
aligns with Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and CSR Rules specified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India. These policies extend to all CSR projects undertaken by the
Company, with a primary focus on initiatives concerning women’s empowerment, public health and
education promotion.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH & SAFETY (EHS)

Interarch adheres to a comprehensive Occupational Health & Safety (OH&S) system, thoughtfully
aligned with ISO 45001:2018 requirements, highlighting its commitment to its fundamental objectives.
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Within the Company, the primary focus is on preventing all types of incidents, injuries, occupational
ilinesses, and the spread of Covid-19. It is dedicated to safeguarding the environment, and actively
engaging every employee, supplier, and erector in these endeavours.

Interarch prioritises the welfare of its employees and those affected by its operations. The Company
has a profound commitment to preventing accidents, injuries, and health issues, considering these
efforts as essential business imperatives. It is wholeheartedly focussed on fostering a positive culture
of health and safety, and promoting the well-being of its stakeholders.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Interarch has established a comprehensive internal control system aimed at protecting assets,
accurately authorising and documenting transactions, and ensuring precise reporting. This system
undergoes regular audits by both internal and external agencies to evaluate its effectiveness. The
audit scope covers a range of operational processes, ensuring compliance with established standards
and policies. Audit reports are presented to the Board, which assesses matters related to adherence,
system reliability, authorisation procedures, and asset protection measures. Moreover, Interarch’s
statutory and internal auditors hold meetings with the Senior Management to review findings and
corrective actions, promoting transparency and the ongoing enhancement of internal controls.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Investors are cautioned that this discussion contains statements that involve risks and uncertainties.
Words like anticipate, believe, estimate, intend, will, expect, and other similar expressions are
intended to identify such forward looking statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to
amend, modify, or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent
developments, information, or events. Besides, the Company cannot guarantee that these
assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised. Actual results, performance, or
achievements could differ materially from those projected in any such forward-looking statements.
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Information pursuant to Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

ANNEXURE-B

NAME QUALIFICATION AGE/ NATURE OF PERCENT | DATE OF EXPERIENCE | GROSS LAST EMPLOYMENT
DESIGNATIO | EMPLOYMENT | AGE OF COMMENCEMENT REMUNERATION
N EQUITY OF EMPLOYMENT Amt (Rs. in lakhs)
SHARES
HELD BY
THEM
(%)
MANISH Civil Engineering, MBA | 51 years, PERMANENT Na 09/08/2021 33 Years 166.83 Safal Building
KUMAR CEO Systems, Nairobi,
GARG Kenya.
MAHESH Bachelor’s degree in 65 years, PERMANENT Na 19/11/1985 39 Years 63.92 Na
VERMA science (honours), post | President -
graduate programme Operations
in management for
senior executives from
the Indian School of
Business, Hyderabad
RINKU BE Civil, MBA 46 Years, PERMANENT Na 01/06/2013 23 Years 51.86 EBSL, Suvadh Dubai
KEDIA Marketing, PMP A.V.P.-Sales
& Mktg.
ANIL Bachelor’s degree in 56 years, PERMANENT Na 19/04/2021 26 Years 83.29 Hindustan
KUMAR commerce President - Construction
CHANDANI | (honours)CA,CS, ICWA | Corp. finance Company Limited
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NAVAZ Master’s degree in 56 Years, PERMANENT Na 28/11/2022 33 Years 83.52 Kirby Building
CHERIYA science (civil Cc.0.0 Systems, Kuwait
MALIKAKK | engineering) from King
AL Fahd University of
Petroleum and
Minerals, Saudi Arabia
SUNILP P M. Tech (Structures) 58 Years, PERMANENT Na 17/01/2023 36 years 44.50 NEO ENGINEERING
AV.P- CONSULTANTS,
Engineering KERALA.
SONAM B.TECH-PGDBM 54 years, PERMANENT Na 20/02/2023 29 Years 44.01 Jotna Nigeria Limited
MALIK HEAD I.T
M.RAJAN Masters in Structures, | 49 Years, PERMANENT Na 01/12/2010 24 Years 45.25 Kirby Building
Professional Engineer GEN.MNGR.- Systems, Kuwait
DESIGN
KARTHIKEY | BE (Civil), MBA 43 Years, PERMANENT Na 07/11/2016 20 Years 47.49 Tata Bluescope Steel
AN S A.V.P.-SALES
& MKTG.
PUSHPEND | Bachelor’s degree in 55 Years, PERMANENT Na 12/02/2024 30 Years *11.58 Microtek
RA KUMAR | commerce from Ajmer | CHIEF International
BANSAL University, Ajmer, FINANCIAL Private Limited
Rajasthan ,Chartered OFFICER
Accountant

*Mr. Pushpendra Kumar Bansal has employed for partial year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Arvind Nanda

Managing Director

DIN: 00149426

Sd/-

Gautam Suri
Whole-time director
DIN: 00149374
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ANNEXURE-C

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The Company is planning for a roof top solar
power projects at our manufacturing Unit Pant Nagar/ Kiccha, Uttarakhand

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy: The Company is planning
for a roof top solar power projects at our manufacturing Unit Pant Nagar/ Kiccha, Uttarakhand

(i) Capital Investment on Energy Conservation Equipment: Nil

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) The efforts made towards technology
absorption:

(ii) Benefits  derived like  product
improvement and product development:

(i) In case of imported technology (imported
during the last 3 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) following
information may be furnished

None during the F.Y 2023-24
(a) details of technology imported:
(b) the year of import:
(c) Whether the technology been fully
absorbed:
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place, and the
reasons thereof

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and
Development:
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of foreign exchange and outgo are as under:

S. No. Particulars
a. Earning at F.0.B Value
b. Outgo:
Import of raw material
(i) Foreign Travel
(ii) Others
(iii) Capital goods
(iv) Stores, Spares & Packing material
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole-time director
DIN: 00149426 DIN: 00149374
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Amt in Rs. lakhs

March 31,2024 March, 31 2023

188.30 27.65
100.24 127.23
19.90 15.13
45.53 60.51
55.512 278.15
1.78 0.57



Annexure -D

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Farm No.-8, Khasara No. 56/23/2,

Dera Mandi Road, Mandi Village, Tehsil Mehrauli,
New Delhi-110047, Delhi

Sir/Madam,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Interarch Building Products Limited (hereinafter called
the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31% March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; Not
Applicable

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. The Company has no Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial  Borrowings;
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): (Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on any Stock
Exchanges.)

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. (Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on any
Stock Exchanges.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992. (Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on any Stock
Exchanges.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009. (Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on
any Stock Exchanges.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999. (Not Applicable as the Company
is not listed on any Stock Exchanges.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008. (Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on any Stock
Exchanges.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. (Not
Applicable as the Company is not listed on any Stock Exchanges.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009. (Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on any Stock Exchanges.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.
(Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on any Stock Exchanges.)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

(ii) The Listing Agreements was not entered into by the Company with any of the Recognized
Stock Exchange(s). (Not Applicable as the Company is not listed on any Stock Exchanges.)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that:

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (Except in cases where the meeting is held on
shorter notice) and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on
the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period of the Company, following are some of the events that
took place:
1. The Company has bought back 5,84,708 equity shares which was completed on 19/09/2023.
This buy back of share led to reduction of Paid up share Capital of the Company from Rs.
15,00,06,000 to Rs. 14,41,58,920.

2. The Company has passed a Special Resolution dated 13™ October, 2023 for converting its
status to a Public Limited Company. The Registrar of Companies approved the application on
15™ December, 2023.

3. Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin, Mr. Mohit Gujral & Ms. Sonali Bhagwati Dalal have been inducted in the
Board as Independent Directors on 15" January, 2024. Mr. Pushpendra Kumar Bansal have
been appointed as the CFO of the company in place of Mr. Anil Kumar Chandani.

4. The Company has been able to reduce its debts by paying off Rs. 95,00,00,000 to State Bank
Of India (Chargeholder) and Rs 50,00,00,000 to Bank Of Baroda (Chargeholder).

5. With anintent to get its securities listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company has successfully
filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) on 21t March, 2024 with the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

For APR & Associates LLP
(Company Secretaries)

(sd/-)

CS Ashish Mishra
Designated Partner
CP No.: 16125

FRN: L2016DE001800
PR No.: 4107/2023
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To,

The Members,

INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Farm No.-8, Khasara No. 56/23/2,

Dera Mandi Road, Mandi Village, Tehsil Mehrauli,
New Delhi-110047, Delhi

Sir/Madam,

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the records. The verification was done on
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For APR & Associates LLP
(Company Secretaries)

(sd/-)
CS Ashish Mishra
Designated Partner
CP No.: 16125
FRN: L2016DE001800
PR No.: 4107/2023
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ANNEXURE -E

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

FORMAT FOR CSR ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 2024

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

For Interarch, Corporate Social Responsibility means responsible business practices through the
involvement of all stakeholders in the decision making process and in operations. It entails having
business policies that are ethical, equitable, environmentally conscious, gender sensitive, and
sensitive towards the differently abled. To actively contribute to the social and economic development
of the communities in which we operate. In so doing build a better, sustainable way of life for the
weaker sections of society and raise the country’s human development index. CSR Objectives

I Demonstrate commitment to the common good through responsible business practices and
good governance.

II. To directly or indirectly take up programmes that benefit the communities in
& around its Work Centre and results over a period of time
in Enhancing the quality of life & economic wellbeig of the local populace.

Il Engender a sense of empathy and equity among employees of Interarch to motivate them to
give back to the society.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

S. No. Name of Director Designation/ Number of | Number of
Nature of | meetings of | meetings of
Directorship CSR Committee | CSR Committee
held during the | attended
year during the year
1. Mr. Arvind Nanda Managing 2 2
Director
2. Mr. Gautam Suri Whole Time | 2 2
Director
3. Mr. Vishal Sharma” Nominee 2 2
Director
4, Mr. Dhanpal Arvind | Nominee 0 0
Jhaveri™ Director
5. Ms. Sonali Bhagwati | Independent 0 0
Dalal™ Director

*resigned w.e.f 04.03.2024 due to nomination withdrawn by M/s OIH Mauritus Limited (formerly
known as Indivision India partners).
**raconstitution of CSR committee w.e.f 15 January 2024.
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3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company www.interarchbuildings.com.

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.: Not Applicable for the financial year
under review.

5. CSR obligation for the Financial Year:

S.No. | Particulars Amount
(Rs. in lakhs)

a. Average net profit of the Company as per sub- | Rs.5,137.23
section (5) of Section 135.

b. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as | Rs. 102.746
per sub-section (5) of Section 135

C. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or |0
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years

d. Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, | Nil
if any

e. Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)- | Rs. 102.746
(d)].

6. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

S.No. | Particulars Amount (Rs. in lakhs)
a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project | 103

and other than Ongoing Project).
b. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. 0
c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. 0
d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year | 103

[(a)+(b)+(c)].
e. | CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs. Lakhs)
Total Total amount transferred to the | Amount transferred to any fund
Amount Unspent CSR Account as per | specified under Schedule VIl as per
Spent for the | Section (6) of Section 135 second proviso to Sub-Section (5) of
Financial Section 135
Year. (Rs. in
lakhs)
Amount Date of transfer Name of | Amount Date of
the Fund transfer

103 0 NA NA NA Na
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f. Excess amount for set-off, if any:

SI. | Particular Amount (Rs. in lakhs.)
No.
i Two percent of average net profit of the Company as | 0
per sub-section (5) of Section 135.

ii Total amount spent for the Financial Year. 0

iiii Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)]. 0

iv Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes | 0
or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any.
v Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial | 0
Years [(iii)-(iv)]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial
Years:

Sl. Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred to | Amount Deficie
No. | Financial transferred | amount spent in | a Fund as specified | remaining ncy, if
Year(s). to Unspent | in the under Schedule VII as | to be spent | any.
CSR Unspent Financia | per second proviso to | in
Account CSR | Year (* | sub-section (5) of | succeeding
under sub- | Account in section 135, if any. Financial
section (6) | under Lakhs). Years (Rs. in
of section | sub- lakhs).
135 (Rs. in | section
lakhs). (6) of
section
135
Amount (in | Date of
Rs.) transfer

NA

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:,

|:| Yes |:| No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: *

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
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Sl. Short particulars | Pin code of | Date of | Amount of | Details of entity / Authority /

No. of the property or | the creation | CSR beneficiary of the registered owner
asset(s) property or amount
[including asset(s) spent

complete address
and location of

the property]
CSR Name | CSR
Registratio Registration
n Number, number.
if
applicable

NA

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per sub-section (5) of Section 135: Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Chairman of CSR Committee & Managing Director Director
DIN: 00149426 DIN: 00149374
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ANNEXURE-E
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[In terms of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and forms part of the Annual Report for the year
ended March 31, 2024.

Corporate Governance is about meeting our strategic goals responsibly and transparently while being
accountable to our stakeholders. The Company is equipped with a robust framework of corporate
governance that considers the long-term interest of every stakeholder as we operate with a
commitment to integrity, fairness, equity, transparency, accountability and adherence to values. Our
robust corporate governance structure is based on well-structured policies and procedures that are
the backbone of our governance philosophy. Our policies are formulated to ensure business continuity
and to maintain high quality throughout our operations.

INTERARCH PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s ideology of corporate governance is based on ethical conduct of business,
accountability and transparency. Being a value-driven organisation, the Company has always worked
towards building trust with shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders
based on the principles of good corporate governance viz., integrity, equity, fairness, disclosure and
commitment to values.

The Company has established systems and procedures to ensure that its Board of Directors is well
informed and well equipped to fulfil its overall responsibilities and to provide the management with
the strategic direction needed to create long-term shareholder value.

In line with the Company’s commitment to good corporate governance practices and compliance with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing regulations as the Company is going for the IPO and
the IN principal Approval has obtained from the concerned exchanges. Our Company has
constituted/reconstituted Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee, Internal Complaints Committee, and IPO Committee.

DATE OF REPORT

The information provided in this Report on Corporate Governance is as on March 31, 2024.

Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and Process

The Board of Directors (“Board”), is the highest authority for the governance and the custodian who
pushes our businesses in the right direction and is responsible for the establishment of cultural,
ethical, sustainable, and accountable growth of the Company. The Board is constituted with a high
level of integrated, knowledgeable, and committed professionals. The Board provides strategic
guidance and independent views to the Company’s senior management while discharging its fiduciary
responsibilities. The Board also provides direction and exercises appropriate control to ensure that
the Company is managed in a manner that fulfils stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations.

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and
Independent Directors who have an in-depth knowledge of business, in addition to the expertise in
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their areas of specialization. The Board of the Company comprises Eight Directors that includes one
Women Director. The Board composition is in conformity with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). The Independent Directors have given declarations to the Company
about their independence to enable the Board to determine its composition as envisaged in
compliance with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder. The
Non-Executive Directors bring independent judgment in the Board’s deliberations and decisions.

Core Skills / Expertise / Competencies available with the Board

The Board comprises of qualified Members who possess required skills, expertise and competencies
that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees.

The following skills / expertise / competencies have been identified for the effective functioning of the
Company and are currently available with the Board:

v Leadership/ Operations

Business Management/ Strategic Planning

Industry Experience, Technical, Research & Development and Innovation
Global Business Development

Finance Management

Law and Governance

Human Resource Management

SN N N N

Corporate Governance, Compliance & Risk Management

As on 31/03/2024 the Board consists of following Directors:

S. No. Category Name of Director % of Total Board size
1. Executive Directors | Gautam Suri, Whole Time Director 25%
Arvind Nanda, Managing Director
2. Non- Executive Sanjiv Bhasin, Independent Director | 37.5%
Independent Mohit Gujral, Independent Director
Director Sonali Bhagwati Dalal, Independent
Director
3 Non — Executive Ishaan Suri, Director 37.5%
Non Independent Viraj Nanda, Director
Directors Dhanpal Arvind Jhaveri, Nominee
Director

Scheduling and selection of Agenda Items for Board Meetings

i) A minimum of 4 Board meetings are held every year. The gap between any 2 Board Meetings did
not exceed 120 days. Additional meetings are held to meet business exigencies or urgent matters.
Where permitted, resolutions are passed by circulation and are noted in the subsequent Board
Meetings. In addition to items which are mandated to be placed before the Board for its noting and /
orapproval, information is provided on various significant issues. The Board is also provided with Audit
Committee’s observations on the internal audit findings.
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While preparing the agenda, notes on agenda, minutes, etc. of the meetings, adequate care is taken
to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations including the Companies Act, 2013, read
with the Rules made thereunder, the Secretarial Standards issued by the ICSI.

Dates of the Board meetings are decided in advance in consultation with the Directors to facilitate
their attendance at the meetings. The meetings and the agenda items taken up during the meetings
were in compliance with the Act and the Listing Regulations read with various circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Securities and Exchange Board of India in this regard. To ensure
Board effectiveness, the Directors are expected to attend and actively participate in all the meetings
of the Board of Directors / Board committees of which he/she is a member and the general meetings.

ii) Presentations are regularly made to the Board covering the outlook; economy in general and the
industry in particular besides the Company’s financials, operations, business strategy, risk
management, practices for identification of risks and mitigation thereof, subsidiary companies’
performance, etc.

iii) Details of the number of Board Meetings held and attended by the Directors during the year under
review are as under:

NAME OF THE DIRECTOR BOARD MEETINGS
5th may | 20t June | 17th 12th 15th 08th 14th 18t March
2023 2023 August October January March March202 | 2024
2023 2023 2024 2024 4
ARVIND NANDA v v v v v v v v
GAUTAM SURI v v v v v v
VIRAJ NANDA v v LOA v v v v v
ISHAAN SURI 4 4 4 v LOA LOA 4 v
lvishal Sharma v v v LOA NA - -
DHANPAL ARVIND | LOA LOA LOA 4 v v 4
JHAVERI
2SANJIV BHASIN NA NA NA NA NA v
3MOHIT GUJRAL NA NA NA NA NA v v 4
4SONALI BHAGWATI | NA NA NA NA NA v LOA 4
DALAL

1. Mr. Vishal Sharma ceased to be director w.e.f 04™ March, 2024

2. Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin is appointed as a independent director w.e.f 15™ January 2024
3. Mr. Mohit Gujral is appointed as a independent director w.e.f 15™ January 2024

4. Mr. Sonali Bhagwati Dalal is appointed as a independent director W.E.F 15™ January 2024
LOA-Leave of absence

CIRCULATION OF BOARD AGENDA MATERIAL

The Board agenda along with the explanatory notes is circulated at least 7 days in advance for
facilitating meaningful and focused discussions and effective decision making at the meeting. Where
it is not feasible to circulate any document in advance, the same is tabled /presented at the meeting
with the permission of the Chairman and Directors. In special and exceptional circumstances,
additional item(s) are also considered.
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RECORDING PROCEEDINGS OF MEETINGS

The Company Secretary keeps a record of the proceedings of each meeting. Draft minutes are
prepared and circulated to all the Directors for their comments. The finalised Minutes are entered in
the Minutes Book and thereafter signed by the Chairman, in due compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and the Secretarial Standards.

COMMITTEES

As the Company is going for the IPO and filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus with the Stock
Exchanges and the SEBI, and received the In-principal approval from the stock Exchanges (NSE Limited
And BSE Limited) It is mandatory to constitute the committees as mandated by the Listing Regulations,
Hence, the Company has constituted the following Committees:

¢ Audit Committee

¢ Stakeholders Relationship Committee

¢ Nomination & Remuneration Committee
¢ Risk Management Committee

The functioning of these Committees is regulated by the mandatory terms of reference, roles and
responsibilities and powers as provided in the Act, the Listing Regulations and other applicable
regulations.

Other key Committees constituted by the Company are:

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee e Internal Complaints Committee. IPO Committee The
minutes of the meetings of all these Committees are placed before the Board for noting. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of these Committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Powers of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall have powers, including the following:

. to investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

. to seek information from any employee;

. to obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

. to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary as may be

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (together with the rules notified thereunder) and
SEBI Listing Regulations; and

. to have full access to information contained in records of Company; and
. such other powers as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

Role of Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

44



oversight of financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information relating to
Interarch Building Products Limited (the “Company”) to ensure that the financial statements
are correct, sufficient and credible;

recommendation to the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or “Board of
Directors”) for appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remuneration and terms of
appointment of auditors of the Company and the fixation of the audit fee;

approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors;

examining and reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s
report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

. matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be
included in the Board’s report in terms of clause | of sub-section 3 of section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013;

. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

. disclosure of any related party transactions; and

. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval;

reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the Offer document/ prospectus/ notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public issue
or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

approval of any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties
and omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the
Company, subject to the conditions as may be prescribed;

(i) recommend criteria for omnibus approval or any changes to the criteria for approval
of the Board;

(ii) make omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by
the Company for every financial year as per the criteria approved;

(iii) review of transactions pursuant to omnibus approval; and
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(iv) make recommendation to the Board, where Audit Committee does not approve
transactions other than the transactions falling under Section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the same meaning as provided
in Clause 2(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and/or the applicable Accounting Standards
and/or the Companies Act, 2013.

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company and appointing a registered valuer in
terms of Section 247 of the Companies Act, 2013 wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and
adequacy of the internal control systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon;

reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
monitoring the end use of funds through public offers and related matters;

overseeing the vigil mechanism established by the Company, with the Chairperson of the
Audit Committee directly hearing grievances of victimization of employees and directors, who
used vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns in appropriate and exceptional cases;

approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the whole-time finance director or any
other person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment by the holding company
in the subsidiary exceeding %1,000,000,000 or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans/ advances/ investments existing as on the date of
coming into force of this provision; and

considering and commenting on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders;

formulating, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board to amend the terms of
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reference of Audit Committee from time to time;
approving the key performance indicators for disclosure in the offer document;

reviewing compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended, at least once in a financial year
and shall verify that the systems for internal control under the said regulations are adequate
and are operating effectively; and

carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Audit Committee as may be
decided by the Board and/or as provided under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing
Regulations and/or any other applicable laws, as and when amended from time to time, or by
any regulatory authority and performing such other functions as may be necessary or
appropriate for the performance of its duties.

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors
of the Company;

internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;
the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor; and
statement of deviations in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations:

. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) where the Equity Shares are proposed to
be listed in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations; and

. annual statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/ prospectus/ notice in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Such information as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing
Regulations.

The details of the Members and their attendance at meetings during the year, are as given below:

Name of Director Category Date of Meetings

14t March, 2024 18th March 2024

Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin Non  Executive Independent 4 v
Director

Ms. Sonali Bhagwati Non  Executive Independent v v
Director

Mr. Dhanpal Arvind Jhaveri | Non  Executive  Independent 4 v
Director

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
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Terms of reference
The role of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall include the following:

. considering and looking into various aspects of interest of shareholders, debenture holders
and other security holders

. resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints
related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

. formulation of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of
various requests received from shareholders from time to time;

. giving effect to allotment of Equity Shares, approval of transfer or transmission of Equity
Shares, debentures or any other securities;

° issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/consolidation/renewal, etc.;
. review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;
. review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;

. approve requests for transposition, deletion, consolidation, sub-division, change of name etc.
of shares, debentures and other securities;

° to dematerialize or rematerialize the issued shares;

. review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the
guantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company; and

. carrying out any other functions required to be carried out by the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee as contained in the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable law, as and
when amended from time to time.”

Composition The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises 5 Directors, 1 is Non-Executive,
Independent Director, 2 are Non-Executive Directors and 2 are Executive Director. The Chairman of
the Committee is a Non-Executive, Independent Director. The Committee’s composition meets the
requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SCOPE AND TERMS OF REFERENCE:
The responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall include the following:

. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board” or “Board of Directors”) a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees (“Remuneration Policy”);

. for every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and
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on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of
an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an
independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose
of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

. use the services of an external agencies, if required;

. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversityand;

. consider the time commitments of the candidates.
formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board;
devising a policy on Board diversity;

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board
their appointment and removal and carrying out evaluation of every director’s performance
(including independent director), its committees and individual directors to be carried out
either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent
external agency and review its implementation and compliance. The Company shall disclose
the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its annual report;

whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior
management;

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the Remuneration Policy,
should ensure that:

. the level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

. relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

. remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

perform such functions as are required to be performed by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, as amended, including the following:

. administering the employee stock option plans of the Company, as may be required;

. determining the eligibility of employees to participate under the employee stock
option plans of the Company;

. granting options to eligible employees and determining the date of grant;

. determining the number of options to be granted to an employee;

49



. determining the exercise price under the employee stock option plans of the
Company; and

. construing and interpreting the employee stock option plans of the Company and any
agreements defining the rights and obligations of the Company and eligible
employees under the employee stock option plans of the Company, and prescribing,
amending and/or rescinding rules and regulations relating to the administration of
the employee stock option plans of the Company.

. frame suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there is no violation of
securities laws, as amended from time to time, including:

. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; and

. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade
Practices Relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, by the trust, the
Company and its employees, as applicable; and

. carrying out any other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors of the Company
functions required to be carried out by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as
provided under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations or any other applicable
law, as and when amended from time to time.

Composition The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) comprises 3 Directors, 2 are Non-
Executive, Independent Directors and 1 is Non-Executive Director. The Committee’s composition
meets the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations.

Members and meeting details

The Committee met one times during the year under review i.e on 08" March, 2024 in which all the
Directors Committee members are present.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performance, based on
review of achievements on a periodic basis. The Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and
motivate the high-caliber executives and to incentivize them to develop and implement the Group’s
Strategy, thereby enhancing the business value and maintain a high-performance workforce. The
Policy ensures that the level and composition of remuneration of the Directors is optimal.

1) REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

The Independent Directors are paid sitting fees of Rs. 100,000 for attending Board or Rs. 25,000 for
attending other committee Meetings of the Company.

1) REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee to the Board based on criteria such as industry benchmarks, the Company’s performance
vis-a-vis the industry, responsibilities shouldered, performance/track record, macro-economic review
on remuneration packages of heads of other organisations. The pay structure of Executive Directors
has appropriate success and sustainability metrices built in. On the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the remuneration paid/payable by way of salary,
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perquisites and allowances (fixed component), incentive and/or commission (variable components),
to its Executive Directors within the limits prescribed under the Act is approved by the Board of
Directors and by the Members in the General Meeting. The Executive Directors are not being paid
sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committee.

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION

i) Non-Executive Directors

The details of sitting fees and commission paid to Non Executive Directors during the financial year

2023-24 are as under:-

Name Commission(Rs. | Salary(Rs. in | Sitting Fees(Rs. in | Total (Rs. in lakhs)
in lakhs) lakhs) lakhs)

SANJIV BHASIN - - 3.75 3.75

MOHIT GUJRAL - - 3.25 3.25

SONALI BHAGWATI DALAL - - 2.50 2.50

ISHAAN SURI - - - 0

DHANPAL ARVIND JHAVERI | - - - 0

VIRAJ NANDA - 16.11 - 16.11

Other than sitting fees paid to Non-Executive Directors, there were no pecuniary relationships or
transactions by the Company with any of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Company
has not granted stock options to Non-Executive Directors.

i) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS & CEO

Details of remuneration paid/payable to Managing Director, CEO and Whole time Director during the
financial year 2023-24 are as under:

Name Salary Perquisites, Commission Total

(in Rs. | Allowances (in Rs. Lakhs) (in Rs. Lakhs)

Lakhs) & other

Benefits
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Arvind Nanda, | 24.00 43.31 0 67.32
Managing Director
Gautam Suri, Whole | 36 18.25 0 54.25
Time Director
Manish Kumar Garg, | 154.20 12.62 0 166.83
CEO

iii) Details of shares of the Company held by Directors as on March 31, 2024 are as under:

Name of the Directors Number of shares
Mr. Gautam Suri 46,44,116

Mr. Arvind Nanda 57,29,046

Mr. Ishaan Suri 5,39,930

Total 10,913,092
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Except above, none of Directors of the Company holds equity shares of the Company in their individual
capacity. The Company does not have any Employees’ Stock Option Scheme and there is no separate
provision for payment of Severance Fees.

iii. Remuneration for Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management Personnel (SMP)

The Company’s total compensation for KMP and SMP consists of Fixed compensation and other work
related facilities. The Fixed compensation is determined on the basis of size and scope of the job
typically as reflected by the level or grade of the job, trends in the market value for the job and the
skills, experience and performance of the employee and includes Basic Salary, Housing Allowance and
certain other allowances. The other benefits includes the Health insurance, the Accident and Life
insurance, the contribution to Provident Fund account, Gratuity, etc.

iv. Remuneration for other Employees

The remuneration paid to other employees of the Company consists of fixed pay which is reviewed on
an annual basis. Increase in the remuneration of employees is given based on an annual review taking
into account performance of the employee, the performance of the Company and comparable market
wage levels. The retirement benefits shall include benefits such as provident fund and gratuity.

E. Directors and Officers Insurance

The Company has undertaken Directors and Officers Insurance (‘D and O’ insurance) for all its
Directors, including Independent Directors for such quantum and risks as determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
SCOPE AND TERMS OF REFERENCE:
The role of the Risk Management Committee shall include the following:

. Review, assess and formulate the risk management system and policy of the Company from
time to time and recommend for amendment or modification thereof, which shall include: (a)
a framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed
entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG
related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the
Risk Management Committee; (b) measures for risk mitigation including systems and
processes for internal control of identified risks; and (c) business continuity plan;

. ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and
evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

. monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the
adequacy of risk management systems;

. periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity, and recommend for any
amendment or modification thereof, as necessary;

. approve the process for risk identification and mitigation;

. decide on risk tolerance and appetite levels, recognizing contingent risks, inherent and
residual risks including for cyber security;
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monitor the Company’s compliance with the risk structure.

assess whether current exposure to the risks it faces is acceptable and that there is an effective
remediation of non-compliance on an on-going basis;

approve major decisions affecting the risk profile or exposure and give appropriate directions;
consider the effectiveness of decision making process in crisis and emergency situations;
generally, assist the Board in the execution of its responsibility for the governance of risk;

keep the Board of directors of the Company informed about the nature and content of its
discussions, recommendations and actions to be taken;

to review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief risk officer (if any)
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee;

implement and monitor policies and/or processes for ensuring cyber security;
to review and recommend potential risk involved in any new business plans and processes;

to coordinate its activities with other committees, in instances where there is any overlap with
activities of such committees, as per the framework laid down by the Board of Directors; and

monitor and review regular updates on business continuity; and

any other similar or other functions as may be laid down by Board from time to time and/or
as may be required under applicable law, as and when amended from time to time, including
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended.

Composition: The Risk Management Committee comprises 4 Directors, 2 of them are Executive
Director, 1 is Non-Executive and 1 is Non -Executive Independent Directors. The Chairman of the
Committee is a Executive Director. The Committee’s composition meets the requirements of
Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

SCOPE AND TERMS OF REFERENCE:

The role of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall include the following:

formulate and recommend to the Board, a “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” which shall
indicate amongst others, the guiding principles for selection, implementation and monitoring
the activities as well as formulation of the annual action plan which shall indicate the activities
to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended and the rules made thereunder and make any revisions therein as and when decided
by the Board;

review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred
to in clause (a) and amount to be incurred for such expenditure shall be as per the applicable
law;

monitor the corporate social responsibility policy of the Company and its implementation
from time to time and issuing necessary directions as required for proper implementation and
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timely completion of corporate social responsibility programme; and

. any other matter as the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee may deem appropriate
after approval of the Board or as may be directed by the Board from time to time and/or as
may be required under applicable law, as and when amended from time to time.

Composition The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises 4 Directors, 1 of them
is Non-Executive, Independent Director, 1 is Non —Executive Director and 2 are Executive Directors.
The Chairperson of the Committee is an Executive Director. The Committee’s composition complies
with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act.

MEMBERS AND MEETING DETAILS:

Name Category Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Meetings
17t August 2023 15 January,2024

Mr. Arvind Nanda Executive v v

Director
Mr. Gautam Suri Executive v v

Director
IMs. Sonali Bhagwati | Non-Executive NA NA

Independent

Director
2Mr. Dhanpal Arvind | Non-Executive NA NA
Jhaveri Director
Mr. Vishal Sharma Non-Executive v v

Director

1. Ms. Sonali Bhagwati appointed as member w.e.f 15" January 2024
2. Mr. Dhanpal Arvind Jhaveri appointed as a member w.e.f 15t January 2024

INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF THE WOMEN AT THE
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION AND REDERESSAL) ACT, 2013

TERMS OF REFERENCE

An Internal Committee shall be constituted within organization to resolve complaints of sexual
harassment at workplace.

COMPOSITION The ICC comprises of 8 members including Presiding Officer of the Committee in the
Head Office as well as for the plants of the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS
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I. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”)

AGM Financial Date Time Venue Special Resolution
year

1 2020-21 29/09/2021 | 9.30 A.M. Farm No.8 Khasara NA
No.56/23/2, Dera Mandi
Road, Mandi Village,
Tehsil Mehrauli, New
Delhi-110047

2 2021-22 29/09/2022 | 9.30 A.M. Farm No.8 Khasara NA
No.56/23/2, Dera Mandi
Road, Mandi Village,
Tehsil Mehrauli, New
Delhi-110047

3 2022-23 18/08/2023 | 9.30 A.M. Farm No.8 Khasara 1. Buy Back of Equity
No.56/23/2, Dera Mandi Shares
Road, Mandi Village, 2. Introduce a Employee
Tehsil Mehroauli, New Stock Option Plan 2023
Delhi-110047

Il. EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The date, time and venue of last three Extra-Ordinary General Meetings (EGMs) are as follows

EGM Financial Date Time Venue Special Resolution
year
1 2020-21 07/08/2021 | 4.00 Farm No.8 Appointment of Mr. Arvind
p.m. Khasara Nanda as Managing Director
No.56/23/2,
Dera Mandi
Road, Mandi
Village, Tehsil
Mehrauli, New
Delhi-110047
2 2021-22 NA NA NA NA
3 2022-23 13/10/2023 | 9.00 Farm No.8 1. Approve the Conversion of
a.m. Khasara Private Limited Company into
No.56/23/2, Public Company
Dera Mandi 2. Approve alteration of
Road, Mandi Articles of  Association in
Village, Tehsil | Compliance of Companies Act,
Mehrauli, New | 2013
Delhi-110047
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Particulars of Senior Management The details of the Senior Management Personnel of the Company
identified in accordance with the Act and Regulation 16(1)(d) of the Listing Regulations, as
recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, as on 31°
March, 2024, are given below:

S.No Name of SMP Designation (Head of Department)
Mr Mahesh Verma President Operations
Mr. Navaz Cheriya Malikakkal Chief Operating Officer
Mr. Anil Kumar Chandani President (Corporate Finance & Strategy)
4 Mr Subodh Sharma Vice President (Works) - Tamil Nadu (TN Plant
Head)
5 Mr Manoj Rohilla Assistant Vice President (Works) - Uttrakhand (UK
Plants Head)
Mr. Yashpal Soni Senior General Manager - Purchase
7 Mr. Subhransu Mohanty Vice President — Human Resrources
Mr Shekhar Bhatnagar Vice President — Indirect Tax & Logistics
9 Mr. Naveen Kumar Assistant Vice President — Quality Control (Head
Quality Deptt)
10 Mr. Pradipta Kumar Nandi Corporate Environmental Health and Safety Head
11 |Mr.Sonam Mallik Head- Information Technology
12 |Mr. Jay Singh Katiyar Vice President - Planning (Head PPC Deptt)

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company emphasizes on continuous, efficient and relevant communication/and regularly
interacts with its members through multiple channels of communication viz. through annual report,
general meeting, and disclosure through website. Effective communication of information is an
essential component of Corporate Governance. It is a process of sharing information, ideas, thoughts,
opinions and plans to all stakeholders, which promotes management-investor relations.

i. WEBSITE: The Investor Relations page of the Company’s website www.interarchbuildings.com
where the information related to meetings of Board and shareholders, annual reports, disclosures etc
and other shareholders information are regularly updated.

ii. ANNUAL REPORT: The Company’s annual report containing, inter alia, the Boards’ report, the
Corporate Governance Report, the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Management
Discussion and Analysis, Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements, Statutory
Reports and other important information is circulated to Shareholders and others so entitled. The
annual report is also available on the Company’s website at www.interarchbuildings.com
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OTHER DISCLOSURES
(A) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended March 31, 2024, all transactions entered with Related Parties as defined under
The Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and at an
arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
There were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year, which
were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required by Ind AS has been
made.

None of the Independent Directors has any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with its
Promoters, its Directors, its Senior Management or its subsidiaries, which may affect their
independence. The Company has received the relevant declarations in this regard from its
Independent Directors

The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with related party transactions and for determining
the materiality of such transactions and the same is disclosed on the website of the Company at
www.interarchbuildings.com

(b) Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, is presented in the separate
section forming part of the Directors’ Report.

(c) Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism

The Companies Act, 2013 require all the listed companies or going for listed to institutionalize the vigil
mechanism and whistle blower policy. The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has
established the necessary vigil mechanism as defined under Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations
for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. The said policy has been
also put up on the website of the Company at www.interarchbuildings.com.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

. Annual General Meeting for FY 2023-24

Date 03/08/2024
Time 09.30 a.m.
Venue Farm No-8, Khasra No. 56/23/2, DERA MANDI

ROAD, MANDI VILLAGE, TEHSIL MEHRAULI,
NEW DELHI - 110047, India

Financial Year 2023-24
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2. REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

M/s Link Intime India Private Limited is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Any
request pertaining to investor relations may be addressed to the following address:

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park
L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West
Mumbai 400 083
3. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE
INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office Address: Farm No.-8, Khasara No. 56/23/2 Dera Mandi Road,
Mandi Village, Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi, Delhi, India,
110047
Corporate Office: B-30 SECTOR-57, NOIDA, Uttar Pradesh, India, 201301

Contact Person:

Ms. Nidhi Goel : Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
E-mail Address: nidhi.goel@interarchbuildings.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole-time director
DIN: 00149426 DIN: 00149374
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SR Batuisoi & Co. LLP

&7, Institutional Area
Grastersd Accountents Sector 44, Gurugram - 122 003

Haryana, [ndla

Tel: +21 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Interarch Building Products Limited (formerly known as Interarch
Building Products Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Interarch Building Products Limited
(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)(*the Company®), which comprise the
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) it the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit of the financial staterments in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of onr
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements wnder the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

%R, Bathuol & Co LLP, 2 Limaled Lisbility Partnership with LLP [dontity Mo, AAG-d 234
Fepd Otfes: 23, Caggns Blrect, Block "B, 1d Flacr, Kadoata T (16
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Chartered Accountants

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a trne and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detccting frauds and other
irregularities; sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the acconnting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fravd or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue ag a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of ¢he Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material migstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*+  Obtain an understanding of intenal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future evenis or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

*+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

¢ We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Repart) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (iXvi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inciuding the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(c) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The medificationrelating to the maintenance of accounts and other matiers connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);
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(g) With respect fo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(b) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid/
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(1) With respect to the other mattets to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

il

iv.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its finaneial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 35(b) to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any lopg-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The mavagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no, as
disclosed in the note 43 to the financial statements, funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), incInding foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person(s) or
entity(ies) identified in any manaer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 43 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other person(s) or entity(ies) identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on such audit procedwres performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, as stated in Note 46 to the financial
statements, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except for direct
changes to database using certain access rights. Wherever audit trail is enabled, during the
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course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of accounting software.

For S.R. Batlibei & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 108044
UDIN: 24108044BKFLYK 4094
Place of Signatare: Gurugram
Date: June 11, 2024
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I UNDER THE HEADING OF “REPORT
ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR AUDIT REPORT
OF EVEN DATE

Re: Interarch Building Products Limited (formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private
Limited) (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the nommal course of audit and to the best of our kmowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i)(@)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment,

(i)(a}(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles

(i)

()

()(d)

)

{ii)(a)

(i) (b}

assets.

All Property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the management during
the year 2022-23 in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory including inventory
lying with third parties at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the
coverage and the procedures of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggrepate for each class of inventory were noticed on
such physical verification.

As disclosed in note 14{a) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in aggregaie from banks or financial
institutions during the vear on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.
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(iii)(a)

(11)(b)

(tii)(c)

(iit)(d)

(@i)(e)

(@i)(f)

(v}

)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

During the year, the Company has not made investment in, provided any loans or
advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured, stood guarantee or provided
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partmerships or any other parties except
loan to employees which are as follow:

Particulars Amount (INR in lakhs)
Agpregate amount of loans provided during the year 179.56
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect 104.41

of above loans

The terms and conditions of the grant of all such loans to employees are not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

In respect of loans granted to employees, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

There were no loans granted to employees which was fallen due during the year, that
have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
Scction 143(1} of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of goods, and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same,

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, providemt fund,

employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularty deposited with
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the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excige, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.
(viid(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as
follows:
Amount Period to .
Na;lt:t':;eme Nature of dues (INR in which the Forunils ;r::;;nt:spute
lakhs)* amount relates
Finance Act,1994 Interest on Service Tax (Non- 125.37 200809 and | Commissioner
payment of interest on Service 2009-10 Customs, Excise &
Tax demand on import of Service Tax Appellate
design charges under reverse Tribunal, Allahabad
charge)
West Bengal Value | VAT (Non-production of 312.06 2007-2008 to | Senior Joint
Added Tax Act, documents in support of the 2009-2010 Commissioner,
2003 VAT return) Commercial Tax,
Kolkata
Goa, Daman and Sales Tax (Higher duty 4404 2001-2002 Bombay High Court at
Diu (Sales Tax) Act, | demand on account of wrong Goa
1964 classification of goods)
Jharkhand Value VAT (including penalty) 15.76 2008-09 Joint commissioner of,
Added Tax, 2005 (Demand of tax and penalty on Commercial Tax,
account of excess deduction of Jharkhand
labour cost)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax (Disallowance 129.34 AY.2006-2007 | Income Tax Appellate
1961 under Section §0-IB) Tribunal (ITAT), New
Delhi
Income Tax Act, Income Tax (Double taxation 46.44 ALY, 2020- Commissioner of
1961 of Interest Income and 2021 Income Tax (Appeals)
disallowance of other amount
allowable as deduction)
Central Sales Tax CST (Non submission of Form 1.38 2010-2011 Additional
Act, 1956 F) Commissioner
{DVAT), Delhi
Pondur Panchayat, | House Tax (Demand raised by 13.92 2010-11to | President (A)
Tamil Nadu Pondur Panchayat towards non 2022-23 Executive Officer,
payment of House Tax) Sriperumbudur
Panchayat Union
State Industries Infrastructure and Amenities 18.58 2008-09 to Madras High Court
Promotion charges with respect to 2023-24
Cotporation of Industrial Building approval
Tamil Nadu Limited | (including interest)
(SIPCOT) Rules
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Amount Period to .
gtint:let:f the Nature of dues (INR in which the E.:-:;ndi;: cre dispute
lakhs)* amount relates
Employees Provident fund 30.73 200708 to Central Government
Provident Fund & 2014-15 Industrial Tribunal
Miscellaneous (CGIT)-cum-Labour
Provisions Act, Court, Lucknow
1952
Finance Act, 1994 Interest on Service Tax and 143.36 2017-18 to Commissioner
Krishi Kalyan Cess (KKC) 2021-22 Customs, Excise &
Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Allahabad
Tharkhand Value VAT (Demand of tax on 60.34 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner
Added Tax, 2005 account of disallowance of of Commercial Taxes,
VAT) Jharkhand
Goods and Service | GST (including penalty) on 67.02 2017-18 to CGST Appeals,
tax Act, 2017 account of disatlowance of 2021-22 Chennai
Input tax ¢redit (ITCH.
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 930.32 2017-18 High Court,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Uttarakhand
disallowance of Input tax
credit ('TTCY).
Goods and Service | GST (including interest) on 7.44 2017-18 CGST Appeals, West
tax Act, 2017 account of disallowance of Bengal
Input tax credit (ITC").
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 74.45 2017-18 to CGST Appeals,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of 2021-22 Rajasthan
disallowance of Input tax
credit ('TTC").
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 3.15 2017-18 CGST Appeals,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Gujarat
disallowance of Input tax
eredit CITCY.
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 106.59 2018-19 Agsistant
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Commissioner,
disallowance of Imput tax Vadodara
credit (TTCY.
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 97.13 2017-18 SGST Appeals, Assam
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of
disallowance of Input tax
credit (ITC").
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 24.76 2018-19 Assistant
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Commissioner, SGST
disallowance of Input tax Tezpur Assam
credit (TTC".
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 225 2018-19 State Tax Officer,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Bhubaneswar, Odisha
disallowance of Input tax
credit (TTC).
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 154,27 2018-19 Deputy commissioner
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of of State Tax,
disallowance of Input tax Maharashtra
credit (TTC).
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Amount Period to
gtf:;:fthe Nature of dues {INR in which the zor:]?ldi:here dispute
lakhs)* amount relates P i

Goods and Service | GST on account of 12.55 2018-19 Superintendent of

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax Central Tax,
credit ('TTC". Kamataka

Goods and Service | GST on account of 13.07 2019-20 Superintendent of

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax Central Tax, Dadar
eredit (TTC").

Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 4225 2019-20 Proper Officer,

tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Faridabad, Haryana
disallowance of Input tax
credit {'TTCH.

Goods and Service | GST on account of 3440 2019-20 Deputy comumisstoner

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax of State Tax, Andhra
credit ('1TC". Pradesh

Goods and Service | GST (including interest) on 2243 2019-20 Excise and Taxation

tax Act, 2017 account of disallowance of Officer State, Punjab
Input tax credit ('[TC").

Goods and Service | GST on account of 3.53 2019-20 Superintendent, CGST

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax Division, Telangana
eredit ('TTC").

Goods and Service | GST (inclnding interest) on 5.46 201920 Superintendent, CGST

tax Act, 2017 account of disallowance of & Excise, Gujarat
Input tax credit "ITC).

* Net of amounts paid under protest of Rs. 26.14 lakhs.

{viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments nnder the lncome Tax Act,
1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thercon to any lender.

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
instittion or government or any government authority.

(ix)(¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no fimds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(ix)}f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(x)(a)

()(b)

(x1)(a)

(xi)(b}

(xi)(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(@)

(xiv)(b)

(xv)

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer,
Turther public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
¢lause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the vear,

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As repregented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement 1o report on clause 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are

(xvi)(b)

(xvi)(c)

(xvi)d)

not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clanse (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clanse 3(xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

{xxXa)

(xx)(b)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial vear and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us o believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance shest date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act),
in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

There are no ungpent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of Section
135 of Companies Act. This matfer has been disclosed in note to 26 the financial
statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301 003E/E300005

UDIN No: 24108044BKFLYK4094
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 11, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemnal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Interarch
Building Products Limited (formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited) (“the
Company™) as of March 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAT?).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditer’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAJL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance gbout whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed nisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasgnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Cowpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material
misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batlibot & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
I irm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 108044
UDIN: 24108044BKFLYK4094
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 11, 2024
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Interareh Bullding Products Limited

{formerly known as [nterarch Building Products Private Limdted)
CIN: U45201 DL 1983 PLCOITO2Y

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless slberwise statedy

Particulars MNotes As al As at
March 31, 2024 Mlarch 31, 1833
Agsets
Nob-ourrent assets
Fropeny, plant and equipment 3 Ige 72 10,39] 53
Capital work-in-progress 3 1268 14 -
Invesimrenn prope mies 4 27664 FLER L
Inanaible assets 3 1542 170
Right-nf-use asscls & 363361 335758
Fimancial assets
{i Imvgstments HEL 53647 50142
(i} Trade reczivables TibNi 481324 1.857.04
{iii} Laans ey 4513 -
{iv] Other financial assels TN 27020 |59 %4
TOT-CUmENT tax 355¢1s (Nck) 3 230 52 187 8%
Nzt NOR-CUTTENS ASSELS Y 27073 40832
Total md-0 Wrront a86cts 2403753 21,130.75
Corremt assets
Inverionies I} 14,684 34 13,607 38
Cantract assers TN 132320 2,791 %4
Finameial agsels
{1 Trasdy reveivables - 1707519 15.670.73
(i) Cash and cash equivalentz Teeh 615767 5.866.32
{iii} Bank balances other than (1i) shove Ty T.elZ 50 6,054 44
0w Loans Teh 6231 21.63
{v) Olher fmancial assels k] 142 16 100 83
Othet current a:sas 11 2,203 61 1.960 13
Total current assets 51.461.98 4637152
Total assets 75,500,851 67.582.5T
Equity and Fabilities
Equity
Equity share capical 12 1.4 5 1,500 06
Onher aquily
Equity coninibution 13 31332 24 40
Capital redeimpuion raserve 13 A7 -
Soecuritics promium 13 514997 2.149.97
Deneral reserve 13 1EIT S 565D (2
Retained carmings 13 3L6EL 52 AR ]
Total equity 4446246 39.927.90
Liabili thea
Nom-curremt liabilities
Financial liabibes
i} Bormwings 14ia) 44.37 11056
it} Lease abilitics L i 57774
Ciosemment grants 15 139 386
Employes defined benefit linbiliies (ne 33 111200 0638
Defemred tax liabwlines (net) 3 371 80 JEY 47
Taotal non-current liabilities 181952 Ligem
Current liabilities
Contract liabilives 16 11638 64 10,602 61
Finanzial liabilities
[1} Bermawingy Ihay AR 102781
[nib Lease liabiliies 14b) 50,51 5670
[in} Trade payables T4y
-Tonal outstanding ducy of mivey enlerprises snd small erlerprises 1,081 66 907,10
<Totat ourstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small 12.275.37 EEEER |
CULCTPGCE
[iv} Qther Mionapcial labiliiey 141d) 171331 L. 186 44
Provigiens 17 16775 13748
Grogvemment grants 1% 1.47 147
Ernployes defingd bens G lakilitiss (net) 33 119458 FORG
Oher curtent liabilities IR Y37 8R 12407 14
Taotal current liabilities 301583 25385646
Toral biabilitics 31 43835 IT.53T467
Total equity apd liabilities I5.500.51 4750257

The sceompanying otes forrm an intégral part of these Financial Statements
As per our repont of cven date

— N
For S.R. Batliboi & o, LLP Forand on behalf of the Board gl 17
1Al Firm Registratvon No 300056300005 rarch Building Products l,?nilgd

wirtered Mecounianis %
/ -~ e W
LN / N

Arvind Nanda . I
Managing Direcior
DIN: H)14%426

Manish Kemar Garg
Chiel Exgeutive Officer

Plavs ; Gurugram
Datc: June L1, 2024

Hlace : Noida
Dane - June 11, 2024
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loterarch Building Products Limited

{formerly konown as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO17029

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Face value of R4, 10.00 (March 31. 2023 Rs 10.00)

Particulars Notes For the year ¢nded For the year ended
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
lacome
Revenue from operations 19 12933016 1,12,392.60
Other income 20 1300 28 1.246 46
Total income (I} 1.30.631.44 1.13.639.06
Expenses
Cost of raw matenal and components consumed 21 82,903 83 7427353
Changes im inventories of finished goods and work in progress 22 (33773 (1.02519)
Employee benefits expense 23 11,896 82 933630
Finance costs 24 21624 25962
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 797 65 72962
Qther expenses 26 23 75575 19.169.91
Tolal expenses (IT} 11904256 1.02.743.79
Profit before tax {1-II=111) 11.588.88 1(.8%95.27
Tax expense
- Current 1ax 30 298922 232344
- Adiustment of income tax relating to earlier years (net} 1] (7.16) 528%
- Deferred tax (credit) / charge 30 (19.38) 42009
- Deferred tax {credit) for earlier year 30 - 147 3%)
Total income tax expense (IV) 2.962.63 2.749.03
Profit for the vear (III-1V=V) 8.626.20 §.146.24
Other comprehensive income (OCIH (V)
Ttem that will nat be re-classified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement gams/(losses) of defined benefit habilicy 33 1078 (123714
Income tax effect i2 T} 3114
Other comprehensive income (OCI) for the year (net of tax) (V1) - gain/{loss) 8.07 {92.60)
Total comprehensive income (1) for the year (Y+VI[ = Y1I) §.634.27 8.053.64
Earnivgs per equity share
Basic & Diluted (in Rs ) 3l 3868 sS4 31

The accompanying notes form an miegral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
IC AT Firm Registration No  301003E/E300005

Eor and on behalf of the

Arvind Nanda
Managing Director
DIN: 00149424

-

Membership no 108044

: irectors of
Z Products Limited
own as Interarc i

ing Products Private Limited)

Goautam Suri
Whole Time Director

DIN uuu%ig?f
M
. é/

Al

Manish Kemar Garg Nidhi Goel
Chief Executive Officer Chiel Financial ONeer Company Secretary and
Compliance Otlicer
Membership no A19279
Place - Gurugram Place : Noida

Date June |1, 2024 Dare  June 11,2024
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO1T02Y

Statemnent of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2024

{Awmount in Rs. lakhs, vnless otherwise stated)

FParticulars Notes For the year ¢ended March 31, For the vear ended
2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 11,588 38 10,895 27
Adjustments (o reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows;
Depreciation and amortization expensc 25 797 63 12962
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 26 12265 z
Bad debtsfadvances written off {net} 20 610 238 37
Bad debis recovered 20 (79 13) {30 70)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and gquipment 20 (1283 (10 §8)
Net gain on sale of investment properties 20 - {6 19)
Fair value gain on financial instrurnents at fair value through profit or loss (Unrealised) 20 (3539 {103)
Government grants 20 {1 47) 147
[ntersst income 20 {982 80y (574 12)
Provision for doubtful debis/ advances written back {ner) 20 - (448 68)
Fair value of guarantee charges 29&125 22842 42 3%
Gain on lease modification 20 (22 68) =
Interest expense 24 &0 35 12062
Ogerating profit before working capital changes 1168995 1095317
Adiustments for working capital:
Decrease in provisions (35915 (524 86}
Increase in trade payables 2,950 42 2497 70
Increase in other financial liabilities 31021 9208
Increase in other liabilities 766 87 1,852 04
[ncrease in trade recetvables {2,230 28 18,194 65)
[nerease in mventories {986 76) (254 82)
[nciease in other assets (970.51) (1,318 28)
{Increase) / Decrease in other financial agsets (24 73} 3393
Cash genercated from operations 11.186 02 5.106 37
Drect taxes paid (net of refunds) 8 303373 1,977 78
Net cash generated from operating activities (&) 8,152 29 3.128 59
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assats (1,838 66) (1,364 75)
Payment towards purchase of right to use assets (680 08) -
Proceeds from sale of property. plant 2nd equipment 3299 2662
Proceeds from sale of investment properties - 2340
(Purchase) of investiments = (300 00)
Emplayee lgans repayment 9973 64 45
Employee loans given {179 36) {58.42)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturty of more than three months) (3,051 63) {4066 41)
Praceeds from bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 3373 342363
Interest received 963 09 33260
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (327581 {1.598 83)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Payment for buy back of shares 12, 13 & 45 (3,900 00) -
Tax on buy back of equity shares 13 & 43 (428 13) -
Proceeds frotm long-term borrowings FiCXiD - 3711
Repayment of long-term bomowings FleKn) {39 70) (4922)
(Repayment) of / Procgeds from short-term borrewings (net) F{CH i) {38 44} 77436
[mierest paid {25 45} (62 74}
Interest paid on Jeass liability 3 {56 96} (61 §4)
Payment towards principal portion of lease Hability 34 {56 45} (51 54)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities {C) (4,585 1% 52613
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 291.35 1,555.84
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year Fic) 5.866 32 4.010 48
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year Ficl 6.157.67 5.866.32
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Interarch Building Produacts Limited

(formerly known as lnterarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO1 7029

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless ptherwise stated)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
Particulars Masch 31. 2029 March 31. 2023
Balance with banks:
- LN CUITent ACCOunts 730 1097
- i cash credit accounts 1.001 56 42107
Depasits with eriginal maturity of three months or less 514636 543014
Cash on hand 245 414
|Cash and cash equivalents [vefer note 7(cKi)l 6,157.67 5,866.32
MNotes:
(i) Non-cash financing and investing actvities
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Modification of right to use assets 53 (237.04) 23742
(ii) Refer Nete 7{cXii) for Change in liabilities arising from financing activilies
The accompanying netes form an integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibei & Co. LLP For and on behal{of Thectors-al

Chartered Accountants
irm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

vin Tulsyan Arvind Nanda
Managing Directo

DIN 00149426
”

Partnies

~Manish Kumar Garg
Chief Executive Offtcer

Place - Gurligram
Date . June 11. 2024

Place : Noida
Date . Jung 11, 2024
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Interarch Building Producis Limited

(formerly known as loterarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL 1983 PLCO17029

Statement of changes in equity for ¢the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs, Jakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity share capital
For the vear ended March 31, 2023

Farticulars Note Nomber of shares Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1,50,00,604 1,500.00
Changes in equity share capital
during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 12 1.50.00.60) 1.500.06
For the vear ended March 31. 2024
Facticulars MNote Number of shares Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2023 1,50,00,600 1,500.06
Changes in equity share capital during the year
due 10 buyback of shares (refer note 45} (5.84.708) {52.47)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 12 1.44.15,892 1.441.59
B, Other equity
For the vear ended March 31. 2023
FParticulars Reserve and surplus
Equity Capital. Securities | General Retained
contribution redempti | premium | reserve carnings Total
(Nate-13} on {Note 13) | {Note 13) {Note 13)
TESErYg
{Note 13}
Balance as at April 01, 2022 42,55 - | 914997 £,659.12 15,480.21 30,331.85
Addition during thg vear 42.35 - - - - 42.35
Profit for the vear - = - §,146.24 B, 14624
Other comprehensive income for the vear-{lossh - - - - {92,601 (92.60)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 84.90 - 9.149.97 5.659.12 23,533.85 35,427,654
For the yvear ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Reserve and surplus
Equity Capiral Secur?ﬁes Genersl Retai.ned
contribution redempti | premium | reserve earpings Total
(Note-13) on (Note 13) | [(MNote 13) (Note 13}
reserve
{Note 13)

Balance as at April 01, 2023 8490 - 9,149.97 5,659.12 23,533.85 38,427.84
Addition during the year 22842 - - - 22842
Profit for the year = - - §,6260.20 B.626.20
Other comprehensive income for the year-gain - - - - B.07 8.07
Total cemprehensive income for the year 313.32 - 9.149,97 505912 ¥2.168.12 47.290.53
Transactlons with owners of the Company
Buyback of equity shares (refer note 43) - 53.47 - (3.841.53) {58.4T) (3,841,53)
Tax on buy back of equity shares (refer note 43) - - - - {428.13) {42813
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3332 58.47 | 9.149.97 1.817.59 31.681.52 43.020.87
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Nature and purpose of reserves
Capital Redempfion Reserve

As per Comparnies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium, A

sum equal to the ngminal value of the shares so purchased is transforred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the
provisions of scction 69 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Secuarities premivm

Secarittes premium account represents the amoum received in cacess of par value of securitics (vquity sharcs), The reserve is utilised in accordance with
the provisions of the Companiss Aet, 2013,

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companics Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance
with applicable regulations. This represents appropriation of prafit by the Company. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of
cquity 1o another and is not an item of other comprehicnsive income.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits thar the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers 1o general reserve. Retained earnings include re-measurement
gain / {1oss) of defined benefit liability, net of taxes that will net be reclassificd to Statement of Profit and Loss. [t alse includes fair valus gain (net of tax)
on Property. plant and equipment and Right to use assets recognised on transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01, 2021,

Equity contribution

As per provisions of Ind AS, Guarantees reecived from related parties is indircetly a conteibution in form of Equity to the Company. The Company shoutd
record the guarantee charges at fair value ! at am’s length transaction. The fair value of the guarantee would have been paid for taking a similae
guarantee for a sotal fuciiities/limits (fund and non fund based) from banks taken by the Company from unrelated third party. The Company had not paid
any commission to the related party. Therefore, the Company considered this is akin to deemed capital contribution.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP @ { of the Board of Directors of

ICAI Firm Regstration No. 30L003E E30
YV known as 1mc;arcﬁ€mng_g£uduurs P mw
S oz ; < /

“hartered Accountants
\ _-"I = Ld__\‘

W&QJ\
petr Pravin Tulsvan

Arvind Nanda _ . Ggutar_n- Sar -
Whale Time Director
DIy: 00449374

Managing Director
DIN: 00149426

“ Manish Kumar Garg Nidhi Goel
Chief Execunve Officer Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer
Membership no. A19279
Place : Gurugram Place : Noida
Daie : June 11, 2024 Date : June 11. 2024
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Interarch Bailding Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1933PLC017029

Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

Corporate information

Interarch Building Preducts Limited (formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited) ("the
Company”) was incorporated on November 30, 1983 as a private limited Company under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The Company's registered office is Farm No.-8, Khasra No. 56/23/2, Dera
Mandi Road. Mandi Village, Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi- 110047. The Company is engaged in the
manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of Pre- engineered steel construction solutions, metal roofing &
cladding system, metal false ceiling and light gauge framing system.

The Company has converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company, pursuant to a special
resolution passed in the extracrdinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on October 13,
2023 and consequently the name of the Company has changed to Interarch Building Products Limited pursuant to
a fresh certificate of incorporation by the Registrar of Companies on December 15, 2023,

The Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved in the mesting of Board of Directors
and authonsed for issue on June 11, 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) natify under the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time to time) and
presentation and disclosure requitements of Division II of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind-AS
comnpliant Schedule TH), as applicable.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

a}  Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

b}  Net defined benefit {asset)/ liability
The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it wili continue to operate as a going
concern.

The Finaneial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.} and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs.(Rs.
00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of material accounting policies
Current versus non—current classification
The Company presems assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is;
a}  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or
b)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading: or
¢} Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting year; or
d)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A Bability is current when:
a)  Ttisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle:; or
b}  Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
€)  Ttis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting vear; or
d)  There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
" reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC0O17029

Notes forming part of the Finanecial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

L.

I

Foreign currencies

Items included in the Financial Statements are measurad using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee
(Rs.), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company's al functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are wranslated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary iterns are recognised in profit or lass. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of initial transaction.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part
of it} on the derecognition of a non-monstary asset or non-monetary liability relating io advance consideration, the
date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or nen-
monetary Hability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,

the Company determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.
Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrument, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measwrement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 1akes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset ot Liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must he accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant’s ability 10 generate

economic benefiis by using Lthe asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in ils highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is reasured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is uncbservable
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Interarch Building Products Limited
(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201 DL1983PLCO17029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

v.

For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial staterments on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occutred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation {based

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporting,
year.

The Company’s finance department includes team that determines the policies and procedurss for both recurring
fair value measurement. such as valuation of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes.
including level 3 fair values.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets. such as I[nvestment properties, corporate
guarantee and personal guarantee. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the finance team
after discussion with and approval by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
Managing Director {MI)). Selection eriteria include marker knowledge. reputatian. independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

The finance team and CFO decides. atter discussions with the CEO. MD and external valuers. which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case. At each reporting date. the finance team analyses the movements in the
values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's
accounting policies. For this analysis. the finance team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation te contracts and other relevant documents.

The finance team also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

On an interim basis, the finance team present the valuation results to the CFO. CEQ. MD and the Company’s

independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions uscd in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis

of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained
above,

Fair value related disclosure for financial instruments and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value
are disclosed in the relevant notes.

Revenue from contract with customers

‘The Company enters into two types of contracts with customers ie. fixed price contract and variable price
contract. Variable price contracts are such contracts whercin price of goods or services is calculated by reference
lv a base sieel price agreed with customers at the time of contract execution. The Company enters in variable price
contracts for sale of pre-engineered building and sale of building material contracts. Under these contracts. price
of pre~engineered building and building material are calculated in reference to steel prices.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transierred 1o the
customer at an amount that retlects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangemenis.
because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosure of significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 32.
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)

CIN:U45201 DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sale of Pre-engineered building (PEB) contracts

In respect of pre-engineered building contracts, revenue is recognised over a period of time using the input
methed (equivalent to peroentage of completion method; POCM) of accounting with eontract costs incurred
determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,
price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer, Revenue also excludes
taxes collected from customers on behalf of the governmeni.

Percentage of completion is determined om the basis of proportion of the costs of shipment made and cost of
ercction incurred as against the total estimated cost of shipment and erection.

Contracts are combined when the Company believes the underlying goods and services are a single
performance obligation, single commercial objective or the consideration in one contract depends on another,
Else contracts are separated.

Where the total cost of a contract, based on technical and other estimates is expected to exceed the

corresponding contract value, such expected loss is provided for. The effect of any adjustment from revisions

to cstimate is included in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which revisions are made.

Liquidated damages (LD) represents the expected claim which the Company may need to pay for non-
fulfilment of certain commitments as per the terms of respective sales contract. These are determined on case
to case basis considering the dynamics of each contract and the factors relevant to that sale.

The Company provides installation services that are bundled together with the sale of products to a customner.
Contracts for bundled sales of product and installation services are considered as one performance obligations
because company believes underlying goods and services are a single performance obligation, single
commercial objective or the consideration in one contract depends on another, Hence the installation services
has been considered as a part of Sale of Pre-engineered building (PEB) contracts.

Sale of building materials

Revenue from sale of building materials is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the material. The payment terms depends upon each
contract entered into with the customer.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the coniract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated {¢.g., warranties). In determining the transaction price
for the sale of material, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

@®)

Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated ar contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue Teversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Interarch Building Preducts Limited
{formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. Jakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(ii)

(iii)

{iv)

Significant financing component
The Company applies the practical expedient for short-term advances received from customers. That is, the

promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component if the
vear between the transfer of the promised good or service and the payment is one year or less.
Warranty obligations

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale.
These assurance-type warfanties are accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the

applicable interest rate. Interest income is included umder the head “other income" in the statement of profit
and loss.

Other

Other items of income are accounted as and when the rght to receive such income arises and it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Contract balances

a.

c.

Contract Assets:

Revenue eamed but not billed to customers against erection and sale of goods and services is reflected as
Contract assets because the receipt of consideration is conditional on Company's performance under the
contract (i< transfer control of related goods or services to the customer). Upon completion of the

installation and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assefs is reclassified to trade
receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of

financial assets in section XVI Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade Receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideratior: that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
1s required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounling policies of financial assets in

section XVT Financial instraments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract Liabilities:

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is carlicr} from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Coniract liabilities are recognised as

revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.c., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known a¢ Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs_ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

V.

YL

Government grants

Govemment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all
attached conditions will be cormplied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the perieds that the relaled costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded al fair value
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of
the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments.

The Company has elected to present the grant in the balance sheet as deferred income, which is recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful Life of the asset.
Taxes:

a. Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be tecovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used io compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the couniries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current mcome tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(¢ither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable Lax regulations are subject to interpretation and
considers whether il is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely
method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

b. Deferred tax

Deferrcd tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their camying amounts for financial repoating purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a

business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible ternporary differences, the camy forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recogaition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assel to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are

recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset 0 be recovered.
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VIl

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax velating to ilems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in

ather comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forccast assumptions
used elsewhere in the Financial Statements and in other management reports.

¢.  Goods and service taxes {GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and service taxes paid, except :
- when the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable.
- when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable ta, the taxation authority is included as part of other
current assets or liabilities in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP, Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress were carried in the
balance sheet at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated mnpairment loss (if any). On transition to
Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition
ie. April 01, 2021 to [nd AS at its farr value and use that fair values as its deemed cost at that date.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equiprment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant pants of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major imspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as
a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The present vaiue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use
(if any) is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. As per
estimate of the management, the Company does not have any expected cost of decommission on any agset.

When significant parts are required o be replaced at regular intervals, the Company recognises such parts as
separate component of assets and depreciates separately based on their specific useful life. When an item of PPE

is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.
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VIIL

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Tangible assets Useful life as per Schedule I1 Useful life estimated by the management
(in years} based on techincal assessment

(im years)

Factory building* 30 years 40 years

Non factory building* 60 years 40 years

Electrical Fittings 10 years 10 years

Plant and equipment 1§ yeurs 13 years

Office equipment 3 years 3 years

Fumiture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

Vehicles* 8 vears 7-8 years

Machinery spares are depreciated on straight line basis over the remaining useful life of related plant and equipment
or useful life of spare part, whichever is lower,

*The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
Buildings and Vehicle over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the year over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment properties

On wansition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2021), the Company has ¢lected to continue with the carrying value of all
investment properties measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrving value as the deemed cost of
investment properties.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.
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Depreciation on factory buildings component of investment property having gross block of Rs. 132.52 lakhs is
calcnlated on a straight line basis over the remaining useful life after considering the overall useful life of 40
years (as re-assessed by the management in an earlier year based on technical evaluation), which is higher than the
useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation on residential property component of investment property of Rs. 30.52 lakhs, which is yet to be put
to use, will be calculated once the said property is put to use.

Depreciation on Leasehold land component of investment property taken on lease is caleulated over the useful life
or the year of primary lease of 90 years, whichever is Jower.

Though the Company measures investment properties using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment
properties are disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an

accredited extemal independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation
Standards Commitlee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal procesds and the camying amount of the asset is tecognised in profit or loss in the year of
derecognition. [n detemmining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of investment properties the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-
cash consideration, and consideration payabie to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property

transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

IX. Intangible assets:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the camrying value of all intangible asscts

recognised as at April 1, 2021 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of such other intanaible assets,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally gensrated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the yvear in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amontisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is

recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset,

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net digposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included

in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.
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XL

Computer software:

Cost relating to software and software licenses. which are acquired. are capitalized and amoctized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of three years or actual year of license. whichever is lower.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly altributable to the acquisition. construction or production ot an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time o get ready for its tntended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
vther bomowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cosis consist of interest and other
costs that an entily incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. That is. if the contract
convevs the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchanee for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all lcases. except for shori-term leases and
teases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease Liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Assets:

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lcasc liabilitics. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilites recognised. initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. as tollows:

Plant and machinery 8 years
Building 10 ycars
Land 9099 years

1f ownership of the leased asset wansters to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated usetul life of the asser.

The right-of-use asscls are also subject 1o impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section X111 Impairment of
non-tfinancial assets.

On transition to Ind AS {i.e. April 01, 2021), the Company has ¢lecied to measure Right-of-use assets (Leaschold
land} at its fair value and use fair value as its deemed cost.
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i)

iii)

Lease Liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include Fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments} less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also inchude the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the year in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date beceuse the interest vate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceration of mterest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the camrying amocunt of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lcase payments (e.g., changes to futurc payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such leasc payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying assei, The cost and accurnulated depreciation for right of use assets where
the leases gets matured or disposcd off before maturity are de-recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting
gains/{losses) are included in the statement of profit and less within other expenses /other income. Lease

liabilities and right of use asscts have been presented as separate line in the balance sheet, Lease payments have
been classified as cash used in financing activities,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption te its short-term leases of building and plant and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option}, except in case of lease contracts with refated partics since there cxist economic
incentive for the Company to continu¢ using the leased premises for a period longer than 11 months and
considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not foresee non-renewal of the lease torm for future
periods, thus basis the substance and economic of the arrangements, management believes that under Ind AS 1186,
the lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been determined considering the period for which
management has an sconomic incentive to use the leased assets (.e., reasonebly certain to use the asset for the
said period of economic incentive). Such assessment of incremental period is based on management asscssment
of various factors including the remaining useful life of the assets as on the date of transition. The management
has assessed period of awrangement with refated parties as 7-10 years as at April 01, 2021. It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of plant and equipment that are considered to be low value.

Lease paymenits on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direcl costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the year in which they are camed.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting year so as to reflect a

constant periodic rate of return on the net investment ouistanding in respect of the lease.
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XIIL.

XIIIL.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

L Raw materials and compouents, packing materials and stores and spares:
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventornies to their present location
and condition. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold
at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and components, packing materials and stores and spares is
determined on a moving weighted average method. Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

ii.  Work in progress, Semi-finished goods and finished gaods.
Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on novmal operating capacity. Cost is determined on a moving weighted
average basis.

iii. Scrap.
Scrap is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non - financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if any
indication exists, or when annual impaiment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carmying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
10 its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and farecast calculations, which are prepared

separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five vears, For longer year, a long-term growth rate is caleulated
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond perieds
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using
a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growih rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industrics, oT country or countries
in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
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X1V,

Impairment losses of continuing operations including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

The impairmént assessment for zli assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses ne longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exisls, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised itnpairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impajrment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the cammying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as revaluation increase.

The Company assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission-
reduction legislation that may increase manufacturing costs. These risks in relation to climate-related matters are
ncluded as key assumptions where they matedially impact the measure of recoverable amount, These assumptions

have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

i General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, for example, under an inswrance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virnally certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is matenial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the tiability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of Lime is recognised as a finance cost,

ii,  Omerous contracts
If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the confract is recognised and
measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impainment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract,

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company
cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations uader the contract ¢cxceed the economic
benefits expected 1o be received under it. The unaveidable cosis under a contract reflect the least net cost of
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract {i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).
iii. Contingent labilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligaticn that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurtence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that can not be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company
does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.
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iv. Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Financial Statements. however, when the realization of income

1s virtwably certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Retirement and other emplovee benefits
Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
pavable to the provident fund scheme as an ¢xpense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet

date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to , for example, a reduction

in future navment or a cash refund.
Defined benefic plan

The Company operates one defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit grafuiry plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have eamed in the current and prior perieds. discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation tesults in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). To calculate the present valug of economic
benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit lability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised
immediately in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on govemnment bends. This rate is applied on the net defined benefit liability (asset), both as
determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking inte account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability {asset) during the year as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (*past service cost” or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately
in profit or toss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement oceurs.

Short term employee benefits
Accunulated leave, which is expected 1o be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shori-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay

as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company recognizes

expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,
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Long term employee benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for
at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial
assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain 2
significant financing component or for which the Company has applizd the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
[nd AS 115. Refer to the accounting policizs in section (IV) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise 10 cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level, Financial

assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective 1 hold financial assets in order to collect contractmal cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the
abjective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in four categories:

1 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) _

ii.  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

ili.  Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derccognition (equity instruments)

iv.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i, The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

ii.  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenss of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

o
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Interarch Bujlding Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)

CIN:U45201 DL198B3PL.C017029

Ivotes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

This category is the most relevant 1o the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) mcthod. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fecs or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR ameortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or logs. The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost meludes trade
receivables, and security deposit included vnder other non-current financial assets. For more infonmation on

receivables refer note 7ib and A
Financial assets at fair value through OCl (FVTOCI) (debt instruments}

A ‘financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are mat:

i The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

il.  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through QCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OC1. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or
loss.

The Company has not designated any financial asset (debt instruments) at FVTOCL

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity insituments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investrnents as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32
Financial Instraments: Presentation and arc not held for trading, The classification is determined on an instrument:
by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such

gains are recorded in QCT. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.
The Company has not designated any financial asset {equity instrurnents) as at F¥TOCL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are camied in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes such finameial assets which the Company had not imrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through OCl. The Company has designated investments in mutual funds {equity instruments) in this
category.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability o1 nen-financial host, is separated from the
host and accounied for as a separate dedivative if: the economic chamacteristics and risks are not closely related to
the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit ot loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that sigrificantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or toss category.
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(formerly known as IEnterarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. kakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Derecoguition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)

is primanily derecognised {1.¢. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii.  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
artangement: and either (2) the Company has transterred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of

the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing

involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

associated liabitity are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of

the ongnal carying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

i Disclosures for significant assumptions — see Note 32

. Trade receivables and contract assets — see Note 7(b)

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses {(ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to teceive, discounted at an

approximation of the original effective interest rate, The expected cash Nows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL}). For those ¢redit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credic losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporling date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit less expenience, adjusied for forward-looking factors specific to the debiors and the econemic
environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in defaul: when contracrual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also comsider a financial asset to be in default when internal or cxternal
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A fivancial asset is written off when there 1s
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabtlities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is madz only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes 1o the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s
senior management determines change in the business meodel as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant 1o the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifics (inancial assets, it applics the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification
date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting year following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
mterest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment
Ameortised cost FVTPL Fair value 1s measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous amortized
cost and fair value is recognised in profit or
loss,

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new gross carrying amount. EIR is
calculated based on the new gross carrying
amount

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification
date. Difference between previous amortised
cost and fair value is recognised in OCL No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new amortised cost carrying amount,
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently,
the asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new carrving amount. No other
adiustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumuilative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCl 1s reclassified from equity
to profit or loss the reclassification date.
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(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Liabilities:

Initia] recognpition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as
approprate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequert measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
ii.  Financial habilities at amortised cost {loans and borrowings)

Finzncial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial hiahilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered inte by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded
derivatives are aiso classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an iniegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings, For more information refer note 14(a).
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

XVIL.

XVIIL

XIX.

Oifsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in vatue,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's
cash management.

Dividend:

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the disiribution is
authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the sharcholders. A comesponding amount is recognised
direcily in equity.

Earnings per share:

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of Company
(after deducting preference dividends and aftributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
cutstanding during the year.

The weighted average numhber of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted caming per share, the net profit or loss for the peried atributable to equity
sharchelders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all diluwtive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting
Identification of segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organised and managed on a single segment considering activities of
manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings and related services as ane single

operating segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the location in which the customers are
situated.
Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and prescnting the Financial Statements of the Company as whole.

Use of judgements and estimates

[n preparing the Financial Statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application
of the Company’s accounting policies and the reporied amounts ot assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively,

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significaat effects on the
amounts recognised in the Financial Statements are given at note no. 32.
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(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limiced)

CIN:U45201 DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2624
(Amoant in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

XXII.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companics (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules,
2023 dated March 21, 2023, to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual beginning on or after
April 01, 2023, The Company applied for the first titne these amendments,

{i} Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. [t has alse been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements,

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments te Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entitics provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirernent for entities to disclose their *significant” accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their “material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Singile Transaction - Amendments to [nd

AS 12
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer

applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

XXIII. Standards [ssued but mot yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the vear ended March 31, 2024,

MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicabie 10 the Company.
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly kmown as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN;L43201 DL19§3PLCOI 7029

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Investment properties

Particulars Leasehold Land Buildings Total
Gross hlack

Balance as at April 01, 2022 130,36 184.35 314.71
Additions during the year - . -
Disposals during the year - {17.61) (17.61)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 130.36 166.74 297.10
Additions during the year - B _
Disposals during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31. 2024 130.36 166.74 297.10
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2022 G371 6435 716
Depreciation for the year 071 6.7 6583
Disposals during the year - 10.40) 1040y
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.42 12.22 13.64
Depreciation for the year 071 611 682
Disposals during the vear - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 13 18.33 2046
Met block

Balance as at March 31, 2023 128.94 154.52 23346
Balance as at March 31, 2024 128.23 148.41 276.64

Motes:

(1} During the <arlier vear. the Company emered inte an agreement to sell the one residential flat (Cost Rs. 17.61 Lakhs, Net Block: Rs. 17.27 lakhs as at
March 31, 2022) for which advance of Rs. L.00 lakhs has been received from prospective buyers which has been sold during the previous year ended March

31,2023 at the consideration of Rs. 24.00 lakhs (net of commission Rs. 23 40 lakhs) (Cost: Rs. 17.61 lakhs, Net black Rs. 17.21 lakbs).

(i) Information regavding income and expenditure of Investment propertics

Particulars

As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31,2023

Rental mcome derived from investment properties 136.88 13539
Dircct operating expenses {including repairs and maintenance) arising from 6.42) 249
mvestment properties that generating rental income
Dirgct operating expenses {including repairs and mamtenance) arising from - =
investment properties that did not generate rental income
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect 130.46 132,90
expenses
Depreciation (6.82) 1683}
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expemses 123.64 126.02
(iii) Fair value

Particulars Asat As at

March 1. 2024 March 31,2023

Completed Investment properties 436249 3,671.47

Investment properties under construction 3205 32.03

Breakup:

Investment propetties

Fair value* 4304 54 370352
Cost (Nel block) 176 64 28346

* including amount of Rs. 32,05 lakhs { March 31, 2023: Rs, 32,03 lakhs) penaining to residential flat which is under construction.

Invesimeni property {Greater Moida Property ) having net block of Rs. 163.28 lakhs (March 31. 2023: Rs, 172,10 lakhs) is subject to charge! hypothecation

crcated against cash credit and working capital facilidies rom bank. (Refer Note 14(a)

The title deeds of investment properties {other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the

Jessee) are beld in the name of the Company
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Interarch Building Produets Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Preducts Private Limited)
CIN:U45201 DL1983PLCO1 7029

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

{(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Investment properties

These valuations are based on valuations performed by an aceredited independent valuer who is a specialist in valuing these rypes of investment properties
and 15 a registered valuer as delined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 201 7. A valuation model in accordance with that
recommended by the Inicrnational Valuation Standards Commitiee has been applied. The valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market
prices, significantly adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific assets,
The Company has noe restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment

properties or for repairs, mzintenance and enhancements.

Description of investment properties, valuation techniques {Leve) 3y used and key inputs to ¥aluation on such investment properties:

Particulars Valuation Significant March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Methodology  unobservable lnputs
Greater Noida property {(Land) ~- Commercial Comparable Comparable rate Range : Rs. 32250 - Range : Rs. 22,500 -Rs.
listing method per sq mt Rs. 33,750 37.500
under Market Rate used: Rs. 32,750 Rate used: Rs, 27,000
Approach
Greater Noida property (Building) - Replacement Cost Useful life 40 Years 40 Years
Commercial* method under (as reassessed by {as reassessed by
Cost Approach managetnent m an management in ar
garlier years based on  earlier years based on
technical evaluation)  techmical evaluation)
Depreciation Method  Straight Linc Method  Straight Line Method

Lavasa properties - Residential Guideline rate

method under

Market Approach Flat Guidelines rate per

Land Guidelines rate
per sq mt

sq mt

% of completion for
flat

Raile used : Rs. 4,860

Rate used : Rs. 55,130

60.00%

Rate used : Rs. 4 860

Rate used : Rs. 55,130

60.00%

* inctuding electrical fittings & furniture and fixtures of Rs. 4.19 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 4.35 lakhs)

The approaches used to determine fair value of the assets are provided in note 32.

(This page hus intentionally been left blank)
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5. Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Total
Softwares

Gross block

Balance as at April 01, 2022 23.29 23.29

Additions during the year 0.27 0.27

Disposals during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 23.56 23.56

Additions during the year 22,93 22,75

Disposals duting the year - -

Balamce as at March 31, 2024 46.31 46.31

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2022 10.14 10.14
Amortization for the year 9.72 9.72
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31. 2023 19.86 19.86
Amortization for the year 8.03 803
Disposals during the vear - -
Balance as at March 31. 2024 27.89 17.89
Net block

Balance as at March 31, 2023 370 3.70
Balance as at March 31. 2024 18.42 18.42
Note:

All intangibles assets are subject to charge/ hypothecation created against cash credit and working capital
facilities from bank. (Refer Note 14{a))

(This space has intentionally been lefi blank
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6. Right-of-use assets

Particulars Leasehold Land Buildings Plant and Total
equipment
Gross block
Balance as at April 01, 2022 4,894.90 447.88 25,28 5.372.06
Madification during the year - 237.42 - 237.42
Disposals during the vear = - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,894.90 685.30 29.28 5.609.48
Addition during the year 680.08 = = 680.08
Modification during the year* - (308.15) - {308.15)
Disposals during the year = = = -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,574.98 377.15 29.28 5.981.41
Accumulated depreciation
Batance as at April 01, 2022 65,72 44.79 0.64 11115
Depreciation for the year 65.72 7117 3.86 140.75
Disposals during the year - - = -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 131.44 115.96 4.50 251.90
Depreciation for the vear 71.98 7117 3.86 147.01
Modification during the year* = {(71.10 - (7.1
Disposals during the vear - s - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 203.42 116.02 8.35 327.80
Net carrying vatue
Balamce as at March 31, 2023 4,763.46 569.34 24.78 5,357.58
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,371.56 261.13 20.92 3,653.61

Note:

Leasehold lands are subject to charge/ hypothecation created against cash credit and working capital facilitics from bank, (Refer Note

14(a))

¥ The Company passed a board resolution on March 8, 2024. 10 purchase the lcased property from the lessor, Consequently. the lease
term, which was set to expire on March 31. 2031, is now revised to July 3E, 2024 considering the management expectation to
purchase the same by that time. This results in a modification of the right-of-usc assct and lease liability.
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7. Financial asset
Jia]. Investment

Particalars

As at As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ouvoted lnvestments
Tnvestment in mutual funds (at Fair value throagh profir ot Lass)
YRR, 73772 {Margh 31, 2023 9.88,737.72) units of HOHC Nifty SDL Index Fund Regular Growth of Rs. 104- each 10732 100 26
084231 82 (March 31, 2023- 9 84221 £2) units of 1CIC] Prudentia] Mufty SDL Index Fund Grivwth of Rs, 104 cach 107.30 100,26
971,211 84 (March 31, 2023: 9,701,211 84) umits of Nippon India Nifty A4A PSU Bond Plus SDT. Tndex Fund - Growth Plan of Rs. 10~ ¢ach 107 26 10019
0.65.762.03 (March 31, 2023: 9.65,762.03) uwnits of Tata Crisil-IBX Gifi Index Fungd- Regular Plan Growth of Bs. 10¢- cach 10322 [LLIXE
957 BUR2IT (March 31. 2023: 9.57.598 27) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Nifty SDL Plus PSU Bond Fund Regular Growth of Rs. 10/ cach L0731 100,22
Total 53642 S01.02
Aggregate beok value of quoted investments 53647 50102
Apgregale markel value of quoled investmments [refer nowe 383 536,42 301.02
T{bi) Trade receivables
Particolars Asat Asar
¥arch 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Mo current
‘Trade recervables 481326 383704
Total 4.813.26 3,837.04
Carrent
Trade rizceivables 17.075.19 15.870).75
Total 17.075.19 15.870.75
Break wp of security details
Gross trade receivables
Mon Current
Secursd. considered good - -
Unsecored, considered good 481326 383704
Unsecun:d, ¢redil impaired 20726 164.75
Current
Secured, considered good = -
Unsecared, considered govd 1707514 15.870.75
Linsecured, credit impaired 13527 65513
Total (A} 22.830.98 20.517.67
Impairment Allowance {allowance for had and doubiful debts)
Non corrent
Trade meeceivables which have signiticam increase in credit tisk = -
Tradc receivables - eredit impaircd {207.26) (164.75)
Current
Trade receivables which have significant inerease in crodin misk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired (73510 165513
Taotal (B} (942.53) (S19.88)
Tatal trade receivables (A+B) 2188845 19,707.79
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Particolars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment* Total
Npn current Carrent but Lcss than & months 1-2 years 2} More than
but ninit due fit e & manthe -1 vear vears 3 vears
() Undisputed Trade receivables - 4851326 1.740.04 13.628 73 T41.32 85120 113 9¢ - Z1.858 45
corsidered 2o0d
(it Uindisputed Trade Raeovables - credit 207 26 T4 BLU 3102 3665 490 942 53
imnpaired
(ifi} Disputed Trade Receivables - - = = - & = E
considered good
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables - credil - - - . - . - -
imoaired
Total 5.000.52 1.R14.98 14.215.5% 77324 SR1.E5 11%.50 - 21.830.9%

* Where due date of payment is not avadable date of transaction has bean considersd
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As at Mareh 31, 2023

Particulars Outstamjing for following periods from due date of payment* Total

Non current Current but Less than 6 mwaths 1-2 years 2-3 More than

hut not due not due 6 months =l vear VEATs 3 vears

(1) Undisputed Trads receivables - 383704 681,29 1365319 475 &b 18114 - 61293 19,439,329
considered good
(i) Unchsputed Trade Receivables - credit 164.75 425 58024 034 T8 - 304.36
impaited
(it} Disputed Trade Reccivables - = - = = 26540 26840
considered enod
{iv} Dispuied Trade Receivables . credit - - - - 11.52 - - 1132
impaired
| Tnial 4.001.79 71054 14.230.43 40394 465.84 - 612.0% 20.527.67
* Where due date of payment i not available date of tr. ion has been consigered

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of director is a partner, a director or g member

Al current assts (ineluding rade receivables) are subject to charge’ hvpothecation created againsi cash credil and working capital facilities from bank. {Refer Now 14a)}

These are non-interest bearing and are generally due from the date of certification ef work dong which normally takes G to 90 days from dale of nvgicing other than relention meney which

i duc upon cxpiry of Defect liabiliry period ranging from one year 1o two year frow date of Completion eentificate

Tib)(ii) Contract assets

As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Curcent
Conlrac assets
-Unhilled revenue® 352520 2.792.04
Total{A) AS825.20 2,792,094
Tmpairment Allowance (allowsnce for bad and doubiful debts)
Contract assets - credit impaired = -
Total (B) - =
| Total contract assets (A-B) 3.515.20 2.792.94
*The amouni 4t the begioning of the yeur has been billed to the cusiomers subsequently.
Set put below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets:
Particulars As al Az at
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment Allowance {allewance for bad and doubtful debssy
Opening Balinee B19.8% 1,783 58
Frovision for expected credit losses (net) 122.68 1963301
Closing Balance 942,52 216,82
All ewrrenit 453085 {including coniract assets) ace subject te charges hypathecation created against cash credit and wotking capital facilitics from bank. (Refer Note 14(a))
T(¢) Cash and cash cquivalents
Particulars As at As at
Ylarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks:
- Om cwrrent accounts 750 10,97
- O cash credit accounts 1,0} 56 2107
Nhepogits with anginal marurity of three months or less® 3014636 543014
Cash on hand 245 4.14
Taotal 6.157.67 £.866.32

" Fixed deposis! margin money deposit of Rs 379 89 lakhs {March 31, 2023: 5 99,13 lakhs) has been held as margin moncy aganst issuance of bank guarantee and Ietter of credits

pravided in favour of customers and suppliers.

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months. depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. and wam interest o1 the respective

shori-term deposit rales

All current assets (including cash and cash equivalents) are subject to charge/ hypothecation created againsi cash credit and working capital facifities from bank. (Refer Note 13(an

T{cHi} For the purpese of the statement of cash flows, cash und cosh equivalents comprise the following:

Particulars As at

As at

Mharch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balances with banks *
- On curment aceounts 7.30 10.97
- On cash credil accounts 1,001.56 421.07
Depasils with oniginal maturity of three months oF 1eas 514634 3430 14
Cash on hand 4 14
Total 5.866.32
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Tei(il) Changes in liabilities arizsing from financims actvities -

Particulars April 01,2023 Cash flows  Changesin ~ Maodification  Tnterest on lease March 31, 2024
{net) fajF v liabilits
Current horroswings {refer note 14(a)} bR 10 (54.44) - - 9040 &b
MNon Current berrowings (including current mancitics from 170h27 (3970 . - - 110,57
long term borrowings (refer note 14ia0)
Lcasc lisbilitics (refer note 144b) and 34) 31 43 (113.41) - {2597 690 3827
Total Viabilitles from fnancing activities 1.772.81 (231.55) - 1259.72) £6.96 1.334.50
Particulars April 01,2022 Cash flows Changes ja ~ Modification  Imterest om lease March 31, 2023
(net) fair values leability
Current borrowmgs (refer note 14ta)) 193 74 77436 - - - 6510
Non Cumrent bormowings (ineluding current maturities from 142 38 278y - - - 170.27
long term barrowings (refer note 14ia))
Lease lizbilities (cefer notz [4(b)and 34) 448.57 (113.39} = 23742 61 84 634 44
Tutal liabilities from financing activities 184.69 B8 R6 - 237,42 6184 1.772.51

7(d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
hlarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Dieposits with remaining matunty of less than 12 months™® 161250 6054 44

Tal 7612.50 6,054.44

* Fixed depasits * margin money deposit of Rs. 4.677 63 lakhs {March 31, 2023 R, 4,954,494 lakin} have been hetd as margin money ageinst issuance of bank guaramee and letier of credits
provided in favour of cusiomers and suppliers: Rs. 2,069 L5 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil) have been pledgedrlicn against cash credit and working capital Facilives from bank (refer note

I42)0: ond Rs, 0.30 Lakhs {(March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil) have been pledged with sales tax authorities. Vhe Company eam innerest al the respective term deposit rates
Fixed deposuts are subject to charge! hypatl ion created againgt cash credit and working capital Eacilities from bank. (Refer Mot 14(a))

Tle) Loans
Particulars

As at As 8t
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non carrent (Unsecured considered good)
{ ¢an 1o emplovess

4513 -
Total 45,15 R
Current (Linsecured considered good)
Loun to emplovees 6231 2763
Total 62.51 27.63
All current assets (including Loans) are subject to charge’ hypethecarion created againsi cash credit and working capital Facilitins from bank. (Refer Nowe 14(an
7(f) Other finuncial assets
Particulars As at As at

March 31, H024  March 31, 2023

Non-current {Unsecured considered good)

Deposirs with remaining mahurty of mare than 12 months 2 t&2 0% 66 ¥4
Securiry deposits .
- Related parties {refer note 36) 22 - 13 00
- Others 9711 T3.00
Toral 279.20 159.84

Currgnt (Unsecured comsidered good)

Interest acented om bank deposits and orhers 99.57 7987
Secority de posits
= Related parties (refer note 36) 28 18.00 B
= Others 24,59 21,06
Total 142,16 101.83

# Fixed deposits / margin money deposit of Rs. 180,96 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 66 56 lakhs) have been held as margin money against sguanee of bank guarantee and lettor of credits

provided in favour of custamers and supplicrs and of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 Rs. 0 28 Lakhs) have boen pledged with sales ax authontics. The Company eam interest at the respoctive
lerm deposit rates

All current assets (including other financials assets) are subject w charges hypothecation created againsy cash credit and working vapital facilitics from bank (Refer Note 1442

oz| Gurugram| —

NSRB/S
b ¢
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2% Security Deposit from related parties includes :-

Particulars

As at As ar
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dues from partnership finm (Intertee) m which the Company's dircetor is a panncr
™Non curtent - 1800
Current 1810 -
Breakup of Financial Assets carried at amortised cast
Particolars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Receivables irefer nate 7B 21 BRS.45 19,707,790
Cash and Cash cquivalent (refer note i ¢} a6,157.67 586632
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (refer nore 7(d)) T.B12.50 054,44
Loans (refer note 7{ @ 1) e 13 27.63
Other Fmancia)l assets (refer mote 7if) 421.36 26167
Tetal 3618744 31.917.85
8. Income tax assets ¢ (liabilities)
Particulars A5 at Asat
March 31. 2024  March 31, 2023
Opening balance |#7 85 526 40
Add: Taxes paid (net of refunds) 305373 1971 7%
Less: Tax expense (2,982 060 (2.376.33
Closing balamee 230.52 18785
Mon current tax asseis {net) 259,32 187.85
9: Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered aoad
Advances for Property, plamt and cquipment

180,38 312,94
Prepaid exponses 119 T2
Balances with stabnormssovernment authorities B3 IA 28 24
Total 270.73 408.12
10. Inventaries
Particulars Asat As at
¥arch 31, 2024 Blarch 31. 2023
(Al imveniiories except for scrap are valued ai the lower of cost or net realisable value wnd serap is valued o net realisable value}
Raw materials {In wmansit of Bs 1423 Jakhs (March 31, 2423 Bs 44 31 lakhs)) 9334 82 8.964,19
Wurk in progress 2.396.33 102134
Semi finished goods 232131 238327
Finished goods {In wansit of Re 19.97 lakhs | March 31 2023; Bs 3.06 lakhs}} 2587 1202
Packing matenals 4821 4202
Stores and spares 264 32 230010
Scrap 4328 3563
Total 14.684.34 [ LA97.58
Al current assets {including inventones) are subject 1o charge! hypothecation created against cash eredit and working capital facilitics from bank. (Refer Note [44a))
11. Other current assets
Particulars As at As al
March 31. 2034 March 31. 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid cxpenscs 200136 16071
falances with statutory’ gosemment authoritics
- VAT Entry Lax recoverable g 107,95
- Others T34 793 30
Advange 1o employoes 130 912
Unamortized Share ssee expenses* 557055 -
Advances for goods & scrviccs 66192 R38.45
Tatal 2.203.61 1.960.23

* During the year ended March 31. 2024, the Company incurred cxpenses in conngction with the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of :quity shares of the Company by way of fresh 1ssue
and an offer for salz by the existing shareholders. In relation o the IPO expenses incwrred till dave. except for listing Fees which shall be solelv bome by the Company. all other expenses will
be shared between the Company and the Selling Sharcholders on a pro-rata basis, in propertion 1o the Equity Shares issued and allotied by the Company in the fresh issue and the offered

shares sold by the selling shareholders n the ofTer for sale

All current assels are subject 1o chargehypothecation vieated against cash credit and working capital facilities from bank, (Refer Note 14{a))
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12: Equitv share capital
Particulars Ag at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorlsed:

20,000,000 {March 31, 2023: 20,000,000} equity shares of 2.000.00 2,000.00
Rz 10 each

Issucd, subscribed and Fully paid up:
1,44,13,892 (March 31, 2023: 1.50,00,600) equity shares 1.441.59 1,500.06
of Rs. 10 each

Total 1.441.59 1.54).06

A. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year §.50,00,600 150006 150,000,600 1,500.06
Changes in equity share capital during the year due to Buy {5.84,708) (58.47 -
back of shares (refer note 45)
Balance at the end of the year 144,15 892 1,441.59 1.50,00. 604 1,500,046
Notes:

a. Terms and rights artached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shases having pac value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one wvote per share, The holders of
equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time ta time.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, all preferential amounts, if any, shall be discharged by the Company. The remaining assets of the Company shall be
distibuted to 1he holders of equity shares in proportion to the numbsr of sharcs held to the total equity sharcs outstanding as on that date.

One of the shareholder of the Company viz. GIH Mauritius Limited (formerly known as Indivisien India Partners) has the following additiona) rights 23 per the Share
Subscription Agreement and Sharcholders Agraement namely:-

a. Participate in any contract which involves an amount in éxeess of Rs, 100.00 lakhs which is outside the ordinary course of business:

b. Commencement 9r settlement of litization where the amoutit involved is above Rs 100.00 lakhs in a single clamm m any particular financial year;

c. Vote in meetings on decisions where decision regarding divestment of or sale of assets, investments, lease, license or exchange or pledge in any other way proposing

t0 dispose off any assets or undertaking of the Cormpany except for those Iransactions which are in the ordinary course of business and those which have specifically
been conternplated under the Transaction documents;

d. Participate in decision regarding commencement of business/univdivision outside India:

e. Participate in decisions regarding revision in the salaries/compensation paid to the directors of the Company, including the Promoters;

f. Participate in the appointment or removal of the Chief Exccutive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company; and
. Participate in decision regarding nitial Public Offering (IPO) by the Company and appointrent of merchant hankers for an TPO,

b. Terms of Exit of OIH Mauritius Limited (formerfy known as Indivision India Partners)(*Tnvestor?)

As per the Sharcholder's Agreement entered on December 4, 2007 between OTH Mauritius Limited {formerly known as Tndivision India Parmers), Mauritivs. a public
company limited by shares with lnmited life, Interarch Building Products Prisate Limited (Company'y and Promoters (namety Arvind Nanda, Gautam Suri. Taipan
Associates Private Limited, Ishan Suri, Shobhna Suni and 1GS Holdings Private Limited and their respective successors and permitted assigns) (collectively referted as
“Parties”), and Share Subscription Agreement entered on even date. the Company had issued 1.00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each & premium of R5.9,900 each. As
on date, Q1H Mauritius Eimited (" Investor'y helds 1 7.97.600 equity share of Rs. 10 cach after splitand bonus shares

The Investor shall have the exit rights as below:

During the exit period (6 months commencing from the expiry of the IPQ Peried), Lnvestor shall have the right to sell the entire shares 10 a third party mutually agreed
upon by the Parties. The Parties hereby agree and acknowledge that they shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that a mutually acceptable third party purchaser zequires
the Investor Shares on terms and conditions acceptabis to the [nvestor,

The right of the: Invesior, during the Exit period shall also include the right to cause the Company to take all necessary steps and co-operate to facilitate the Investor exit

by way of an Ofter for Sale (OFS) of the shares and secking a listing of the Company en the exchange(s). The Investor shall have the right in priority te offer all the
Investor Shares for sale in the OFS of the Company.,

Far the avoidance of douby, it is clarified. that during the Exit period, the promaters right of first offer stand suspended

Where the Investor requires prior legal, governmental or regulatory consent. for disposing the [nvestor Shares then, not withstanding any other provision of the
Sharcholder’s Agreement, that party shall only be ebliged 19 acquire the shares once such consent or approval is obiained and the partics shall use their reasunable
endeavours 1o obtain any such required approvals. Any period within which the transfer of the Investor Shares has to be completed shall be extended by such further
period as is necessaty for the purpose of obtaining the above approvals.
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In the event that upon the completion of the Exit period, the partics have not been successful in finding a third party purchaser or concluding the OFS. then for the period
extending from after the completion of the Exit period to the next 6 months (Phase [}, the Investor will have the right to sell only to the Promoter or cause the Company
to buy back and the Promoter or the Company, as the case may be, will have an obligation 1o purchase or buy back all the Investor Shaves at the Ffair markel valus
determined in accordance with the procedure as mutually agrzed and set out in the Shareholders Agreement. The purchase of the Investor Shares by the Promoters
and/or the Company will be completed in Phase 1L

MNotwithstanding, the other provisions of the Shareholder's Agreement, in the event that the Individual Promoters, Tzipan Associates andior 1GS Heldings il to
purchase the Tnvestoc Shares during Phase L, as contemplatcd under the Shareholder's Agreement, the Investor shall have the right to sell the Investor Shares to any third
party.

During current year ended March 31, 2024, the parties to the Shareholder Agreement have entered inte Amendment Cirn Waiver Agreement dated March 08, 2024
where PO Peried has been extended 1o December 31, 2024 and paniies have agreed that upon the compietion of the Exit Period, if the Parties have not been successful
in finding a third party purchaser or concluding the OFS, then for the period extending from after the completion of the Exit Period 10 the next ¢ (six) months {Phase
117), the investor will have the right to s¢ll only to the Individual Promoters, Taipan Associates andfor 1GS Holdings end the Individual Promoters, Taipan Associates
and’or 1G8 Holdings as the case may be, will have an obligation to purchase all the [nvestor Shares at the Fair Market Value, detenmined in accordance with the
procedure set out in the Sharebolder’s Agreemenl The purchase of the Investor Shares by the Individual Promoters, Taipan Associates and/or 1GS Holdings will be
completed m Phase TLIn the cvent that the [ndividual Promoeters, Taipan Asseciates andior 1GS Holdings fail o purchase the Tnvestor Sharcs during Phase 1, as
cottemplated under the Shareholder's Agreement the Investor shall have the right to sell the lnvestor Shares to any third party.

B. Deetails of shareholders holding more than 5% sharves in the Company as on vear end

Particulars As at ¥arch 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No o: :l:;ares *% of holding No of shares held % of holding
Mr. Gautam Suri 44,44, 116 32.2% 47,753,300 31.83%
Mr. Arvind Nanda 47.29.046 39749, 50,20,200 10479
Mg OIH Mawritivs Limited ({formerly known as M/s 17,97,600 12.47% 20,00,000 13.33%

Indivision India Partners

Ag per revords of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest. above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

C. Details of shares held by promoters
As ait 31 March 2024

Promoter Name No, of shares Change No. of shares % of Total % Change

at the beginning doring at the end Shares during

of the vear the vear of the vear the year

Mr. Gautam Suri 43,75.300 (1,31,184% 4644116 32.23% -275%
Mr. Arvind Nanda 50201200 (1,91.154} §7.29,046 39740 -3.23%
Mrs Shobhna Sur 6,00.100 - 600,100 4.76% -
Mr Ishaan Suri 3,99.900 {39.970) 5,39.930 3.75% -10.00%
M/s Taipan Associates Pyt Lid 5,80,000 3,%0,0:00 4.02%, -
M/s 1GS Holdmg Pyt Lid 525,000 - 525,000 3.6d%, -
Total 1,30,00.500 (3,82,30%) 1.26,18,192 87.53% -15.98%
As at 31 March 2023
Promoter Name No, of shares Change No. of shares %e of Total Shares % Change during

at the beginning during at the end the year

of the vear the vear of the vear

Mr. Gautam Suri 47.75.300 - 47.75.300 31.83%
Mr. Arvind Nanda 59.20,200 - 59.20.200 39.47%
Mrs Shobhna Suri 6,00.100 - 600,100 4.00%%
Mr [shaan Suri 5,99.900 - 5,99.960 4.00%
/s Taipan Associates Pvt Ltd 5,820,000 5,830,000 3.37%
M/s IGS Holding P+ Ltd 5,235,000 5,25,000 3.50%
Total 1,30,00,500 - 1,30,00,500 86.67% -

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations reccived from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, above
shareholding represents both legal and baneficial ownership of shares.

In relation o Buy back, the Company bought back 3,84,70% cquity shares for an aggregate amount of Rs. 3,900.00 lakhs being 3 90% of the total paid up cquity share
capital at price of Rs. 667 per equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on September 25, 2023 (Refer note 45)
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13: Other equity
Particolars A at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Equity contribution 313.32 8490
Reserves and surplus
Capital redemption reserve 5947 x
Securities pramiwm account 9.149.97 9,142.97
General reserve 1,817.59 3.65%.12
Retained eamings 31.681.52 23.533.85
Total 43.020.87 38.427.84
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity contribution*
Openmg balance 2490 4255
Addinen during the year 228.42 42.35
Clysing balance 313.32 §4.99
Capital redemption reserve
Qpeniog balance - -
Add: Transfer from retained earmings (refer note 43) 58.47
Closing balance 58,47 5
Securities premium account
Opening balance 6.149.97 14997
Addition during the ycar - -
Closing balance 9.149.97 9.149.97
General reserve
Opening balance 5,659.12 5.659.12
Less: Buy back of equity shares (refac note 45} 13.841.531 -
Chosing balance 1.817.59 5.659.12
Retained earnings
Openiog balance 2353385 15,480.21
Net profit for the year % 62620 g, 14624
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax 807 {92 60)
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve (refer now 43) (38.47) =
Less: Tax on buy back af equity share (refer note 43) (428.13) -
Closing balance 31.681.52 23.533.85

* The fair value of guarantee charges for gurantee issued by promoter directors and Intertec for total Facilities/limits { fund and non fund bascd) from banks considered as
contribution by Shareholders and credited ta the equity. (Refer note 36(CKb))

{This space has intentionally been fefi biauwk)
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14. Financial Habilities

14(a): Borrowings

Particulars Effective interest rate {%5) Matwuricy! As at Asat
Repayment terms March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

Naon current barrawings
Secured
Vehicle loans Refer note 2 belopw Refer note 2 below 6457 110.56
Taotal 6437 1140.5a
Current borrowing
Secured
Caxh credit from banks Refer below nate 111} On demand Q00 66 91810
Currcnt materities of long-term bormaw ings

- Vahicls loans Refler nole ? below Refer note 2 below 46.20 3071
Unsecared
Bomewings from relawed parnes (refer note 36) Refer below note 3 On demang . 2
Total 955860 12781
Rafat note 400c) for matarivy prafil: of borewings
Notes:

1. Cash credit and working capital facilities from banks are secured hy:

(a) First pari-passu charge by way of hyporhecation of entire current assets including beok debts and inventory of the Company, both present and future of the company

(b} These facilities. are further secured by first pari-passu chargs over the cntirc movable fixed assets {except vehicles charged exclusively to the financer). both present and Future, of e
Company

(¢} These facilities feam all banks arc seeured by way of cquitable morgage on immovabl propertics sinated at {i) Plor No. B-30. Scclor-57, Noida, Uuar Pradesh {owned by the
Companyy: (ii) Flot Na. B-33, Scetor-37, Noida, Uttar Pradesh (owned by M/3 Tntertee (Panmership Finny; (1ii) Plot No. 28A, Udvog Vihar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradosh, being immosable
properties (owned by M/s Intertec (Partnership Firm)): (iv) Plot Ne. D-1/1_ SIPCOT, Industrial arca. Sniperumbudur. Chennai, Tamil Nadu, {owned by the Company): (v) Khasra no.-276-4,
Village Kisanpur, Pargana Rudrapur. Tehsil Kichha, Jila Udham Singh Magar, Uttarakhand (owned by the Company): (i) Plot No.29, Udyog Wihar, Greater Noida, Urtar Pradeshtcwned by

the Company): {v1i} Plot no. 14 & 144, Scctor-2. Pant Magar, Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand(owned by the Company) and (v} Plot no F 19, SIPCOT Indusirial Park. Sriperunpudur,
Kanchipuram {THY {owned by the Companyh.

{d) These facilivies are secured by way of interim charge by way of pledeef licn in favour of Lead Bank (acting for the benefit of the Consortium Banks), on [ised depusivs of Bs 2069 15
lakhs along with all of its right, tille, interest (including aceroed interest). benefits. claims and demands whatsoever 10 of in respect of the said fixed deposis The pledge / lien on these
FDRs will be released on perfection of morigage on properties as menioned above w peint {1} and (vi) of nole Tic).

(&) Further, secured by (a) personal guaraniee of twe direciors of the Company w all Banks (namely VI Arvind Nanda and Mr. Gautam Suri) and (b) corporate guaranies of MJs Intertec

{Partnership Firr}

() In respect of these Beilives, quarierly rowms or slatements of current assers filed by the Company with banks are in agrecment with the books of accounts

(&) The cash credir favilties are repayable on demand and cammy interest @ & 60% p.a to 11.15% p.a(March 31. 2023: 7 5% pa. to 0 L 10% pat

{h) The berrowings obtsined by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applicd for the purposcs far which such loans were uken

2. ¥chicles loaps amounting to Rs 110,57 lakhs (Mareh 31, 2023: Rs. 17127 lakhs) are secured by hypotheestion of underlying vehicles. The repasinent terms and maturity terms are as

below:
Party Name Rate of interest Number of equal Instalments M laturity vear As al A at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

HDFC Bank £ 80% -0.15% 36-60 months July 07, 2022 - Tunc (5, 2027 kL] 0018

October 05, 2021 - October 0,

Kaotak Mahindra Bank T10% - 9.65% 36-60) months 20l6 4002 &0.11

Axks Bank AL 6l monhs October 10, 2026 3225 4194

Benz Financial Services India Private Limited 0 00% 12 h April 91, 2024 142 1704

Tatat L10.57 170.27

3 Unsecured loan from directors are repayable on denmand aad camy interest G 6.00% (March 31, 2023 6.00%)

4 The Company has net defaulted on working capital bans, vehical loans or any other loan payables

14ib). Lease liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Nem- Current [refer nete 340 26T 76 5IT4

Current [refer nole 34) 5051 5670

Total 31427 £34.44

Refer note 40ic) for maturity profile oflzase Liabilities.

14(c): Trade pavahles
Particvlars As at As at

March 31. 2024

March 31, 2023

Trade payables {including scceptances)

- wal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small snterprises {refer note below for details of dues to 1.031.06 907 10

micre and small enlerposes)

- total oulstanding dues of creditors other than mucro coterprises and small enterprises 1227537 9,453 91
Tkl 13,3536.43 10.366.01
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Trade payables Ageing Schedule

As at ¥arch 31, 2024

Particulars Outstinding for following periods from due date of payment* Tosat

Linbilled Mot Dues Less than I-2 vears 2-3 vears More than

dues 1 vear 3 vears

Total ourstanding ducs of micro cnterprizses and small 194 13 681 73 15204 0.71 070 G675 108) 0o
enlerpreses
Total outzianding dues of creditors ather rthan micro 1L3%3 97 T.187 52 323055 48571 2352 4234 12.2260 3%
enlgrprises and small enterprises
Dizputed dues of micry enterptises and cmall anierprizes - - -
Digputed dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and - - - 24y 510 2321 4507
simail enlerpriges
Total 1,523, 10 §,169.25 3,362.37 70.08 29.32 132.30 1335642
* Where due date of payment 15 not available dale of nansaction has been considered
As at March 31, X235
FParticulars Ouistanding far fellowing periods from due diite of paymeni™ Total

Linbilled Mot Dues Less than -2 years 2-3 vears More than

dlwis | vear 3 vears

Toral curstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 4504 12834 334 48 473 4284 o E e ]
enlarplisas
Total putslanding dues ot creditors other than micro 1.014.74 1529 60 [NFER T 10719 1881 (K] 400 94
enterpiises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micto enterprises and simall enlerprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro emterprises and - - 7H 179 10 1924 1347
small enterprises
Total 1064138 1.057.94 H. Y1646 129 58 65 ity 13569 366,00

* Where due dale of payment is ot available dale of ransaction has been considerad

Trade payaltles are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within O - 45 days

Based on the information available with the Company reparding the stars of suppliers as defined under MSMED At 2006, there was no prinsipal amount o1erduc and no interest was
paxyable fo the Micro enierpnses and small enlerprises as per the lenms of conrract and based on awreement with s endors

Naote:

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

Cn the basis ofthe wlomation and records axailable winh management. details of dees w micro and siall eimenrises as defined uider the MSMED Acl, 2006 are as below:

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1. The principal amount and mterest dug thereon remaimng unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accountim yean
- Poncipal amownt * 111320 0710

- Interast thereon

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tenns of secton 16 ol the MSMCD Act 20H6 along with the ampunts of the paymeut
made ¢ the supplier bevond rhe appointed day during each accountinge vear

3 The amounl of imerest due and payable for the pesiod of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the vear) but withouwt adding the interest speaified under the MSMED Act 2006

4 The amount of interest acerued and remammg wnpard at the end of each aceounting year

5 The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable exen in the secoeeding years. until such dare when the interest dues as

above arc acrually paid to the small cntcrprise ior the purpose of disallowance as a deducuble expenditute under sectipn 23 of the
MEMED Act 20046

FIncludes ducs of micro enterprises and small enteqprises amounting Rs. 32 74 lakhs (March 31 2023 : Ry ™il) periaining, 1o payable on parchase oF property, plant ang equipmeny (e fer

nole |did))

141y Other fimaneinl finbilities

Particulars

As ar As ar

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2423
Payable on purchase ol Property. plant and equipment * i 130
Emplovee dugs 1433 32 1142 31
Secunity depoiils 3842 3042
Inretest acerned and due on borresvines < 1.52
Interest acerued but not due on bomowines 159 %]
Total 1.715.31 1,186, 44

*Inzludes does ol micre enterprises and small enterprises amcuniing Bs 32 74 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Hs My
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Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Particulars As ar As af
March 31 2024 March 31. 2023
Leage liabilities (aco-cwrent) {refer nate 14(b)) 25776 37774
Bomowings (non curent) (refer note 13(a)) 6137 110.56
Borrowings (current) irefer note 1-Ha)) 055 Rk 102781
Leuse lubilitizs (cwrent) (refer note L4(b)) 3051 3670
Trade payables (refor note 14 ¢h 13.156.43 1336601
Other Bimancial liabilities (refer nate 14¢d}} [.715.31 113644
Total financiad liabilities carried at amortised cost 16.410.24 13.325.26
15: Government Grant
Particulars As at As at
March 31 2024 March 31, 2023
Ciovernment erant 586 133
Tatal .86 p k]
Mon Current 4.3% 5.86
Curmenl 1.47 147
\Paxticulars Amount
Balance as 3t April 01, 2022 8.30
Received dunng the year .
Released to the siatenent of profit and loss 4T
Balance as at March 3t. 2023 7.33
Received dunng (he vear -
Beleased Lo the stalernent ol profit and [oss iLd4n
Balance as at March 31, 2024 586

16. Contract liabilitics

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies aliached o these grans.

Particulars

As As ar
WMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contraet Labilitics*

- Deferred revenues 153679 211292
- Advances from customers 10185 R, 480 &0
| Total 1L.638.64 10.602.61
Curant 11.638.64 10.602.61
Non. ¢urrent - -
*The contraci habiluies ouslanding at the beginning of the year primanily has been recognised as rvenue subsequently.
17. Provisions
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provisiom for emploves benefits
Compensated absencys

14792 137.00
Other provision
Anticipated loss on contruct 19 %3 0ds
Total 15775 13748
Current F67F 75 157 48
Mon- curment

Information about individual provisions and significant estimates

A provision is recognised for certain contracts with suppliers for which 1he wnavoidable ¢osis of meeting the oblizations exceed the economic benefits expected o be received I is

anticipated that these cosls will be incumed o the next financial year

Less order is provided for the coniracis where Lhe Company cxpecis 10 incur a loss. The table below gives information abowt movement in provision for anticipated ioss on contracrs. For

further detuls

Movements in provisions

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1087
Charged to prafit or loss Qg8
Utilised durini year 11,97
Balance as at March 31, 2023 .43
Charged Lo profit or loss 1983
Utiliszd during wear (0 48)
Bal. as at March 31. 2024 19,82
18: Other current liabilities
Pardculars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 1013
Statutory dues pavable 62243 591 59
[nterest payable on statutery duss 31545 315.55
| Total 3788 1.207.14
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19: Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 30, 2024

For the vear anded
Maveh 31, 2023

Revenue from contracts with cmstomers
Revenue from Pre-engineered building comtracts

SLEETO 98.613.68
Sale of produets
- Buildinz malerials 26,749 61 12,043 40
Other operaling revenue
- Serap sales 1.545 87 1,65%547
- Other services 17298 AO05
Total 1.29.130.16 1.12.392.60 |
Disagzregaled revenue informaltion
Set pul below is ke disaggregation of ihe Company’s revenue from contracts wilh customens:
Building matenals:
Metal ccilings and comuzaled roofing 6,670.07 2870 56
Stecl structure 2164196 £.211.04
Lizht gauge framing systems 193 44 42 B3
Cther iterns L2447 e a7
2974961 12,043 4G
Pre-engineersd buildinge G858 0 oR.613 6%
Others 1,721.85 1.7353.52
Total revenue from contracts with enstomers® 1.29.330.16 1.12.392.60
* meludes amount of Rs, 188.30 lakhs Gom outside India (March 31, 2023: Rs. 27 65 lakhs)
Timing of revenue recognition
Cioods transformed at 2 point in bme 31,298 48 13.698 87
Pre-engineersd buslding contracts and olher servicas tansferred over tme OR 03168 08.693.73
Total revenoe from contracts with cusiomers L29.330L16 1.12.392.60
Contract balances Ag at As at
Mareh 31, J024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables (refer note k111 21,888 .45 19.707.79
Contract asscts {rcfer note TR 352520 279294
Contract liabilitres {refer note 161 11638 d {1602 61
Refer note 7{b)(i1 and note 16 for details on rade receivables and Contract liahilities respectively.
Contract asset is recogniged when there is excess of revenue earmed over billings on contracts with eustomers
Right of return assets and refund habilites are ot present in contracts with cuskoners.
19.1 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of proflt and loss with the comtracted price:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ¢nded
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenque as pef coniracted price 1.29.304 48 1.14. 16461
Adjustovenis:
- Esclation / {Dewsclation) amgunt 25 65 (1.7T2.0M
Revemue from coniract with customers 1.29.330.18 112,390 6l
19.2 Performance abligation
Pleass refer note 20iv} in sccounting policies for pecfermance obligation in relation 19 revenue from contracts with uuskomers
20: Other income
Particulars For the vear ended For the yvear ended

March 31,2023

Interest income:

Bank dcposits 96797 $64.95

Income 1ax refund - 231

Others 14 83 686
Rental income on:

Lnwestraent properiies 136 88 13539

Others 3010 1500
Provision for doubtful debts! advances written back (net) = 448 68
Bad debis recovered 1913 3070
Met gain on disposal of property, pianr and equipment 12,483 10.88
Met gain on sale of invesiment prapertics - 6.19
Fair value wain on financial nstruments al Bir value throweh profie or foss (Unrealised) 3530 1.03
Gan on lease modibization 22 48 -
Govemment erants 147 147
Total 1,301 28 1.246.46
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21: Cost of ruw materials and compenents conswmed

Particulars For the year epded For the year ended
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventory st the beginning of the year 8.966.29 971575
Add: Purchascs during the wear 8373181 708N
Add: Creation / {Reversal) of provision for anticipaled loss on conlracts 13.33 (11.4%)
Less: Captive comsummtion (428800 (17115
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (3384820 15960629
Tatal §2.M03.83 T4.273.53

22: Change in inventories of finished goods and \\'nrk-imprz!grcg_\

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year emded

March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories at the beginoing of de year
Finished goouds 19.02 1956
Serm fmished goods 2,383.27 1.904 67
Work in progress 2,021 34 1.496 37
| Serap 3562 1347
Total imveniories at the beginming of the vear fA) 4.45%.26 31.434.07
Inventories at the end of the vear
Finished goods 2587 19.02
Semi finished poods 23131 238327
Work in progress 239633 2021 54
Scrap 43.28 33.63
Total inventories at the end of the year |B) 4,996.99 445926
(Inerease) in inventories (A-B) (527.73) (1.025.19)
23: Emplovee benelits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2021
Balarics, wages, allowances and bonus 10,1 8083 R.001 98
Contribution to provident and other funds 786,40 §26.07
Gratuily expenses (refer note 13) I5T T4 347 25
Seaff welfare expenses 57174 36510
Total 11.804.82 9.336.30
24: Finance costs
Particulars For the vear ended For the year emded
March 31, X024 March 31, 2023
Interest expenses:
- cash credit from banks and vehiclc 1298 37
= Income tax 042 1876
- lease lisbililies 3694 LIRS
~ uthers AL 966
Guarantee charges* L19 057
Other finange cost 134.50 13842
Total 21624 280,62
* inchudes fair value of guarantee charges of Rs, 119 lalkchy (March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.57 lakhs}
25: Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars For the vear ended Faor the year ended
March 31, 2034 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property. planl and equipment (rafer note 3) 63579 57729
Deprecaaton on investmenl propenics (refer nole 4) &82 6,58
Amathization of intangible assets (refer note 3) .03 @71
Depreciation of night-oi-use assers |refer nows Hy 147.01 140,74
Total TOTRS T30 6
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26: Other expenses

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Jeb work and installation charges 13.520 34 11,300.23
Equipment hirc and site charges (including insurance of sites amounting ta Rs. 79.63 lakhs 354 14 32405
{previeus year R 30015 lakhs))
Consumption of storcs, sparcs and packmg materals 282500 206191
Power and fuel 802.21 64595
Freight and forwarding charpes 3,381.54 2.17R.40
Rates and taxcs 60.56 24.52
Insurance 43.9% 37681
Repairs and maiptenance:
= Plani and machinery &) 74 6138
- Building 10932 102.07
- Others 118.60 175.57
Expendinge on corporate sccial responsibility (refier pote below ) 103.00 65.65
Advenising and sales promotion 20_40 53,08
Commizsicn to agents (other than of sclling agenis) o4 342
Travelling and conveyance 36561 497.04
Communication costs 4995 40 43
Printing and stafionery T2 6732
Legal and professional fees 57061 5&2 61
Paveris 1o auditors {refer note below) 3926 4062
Met loss on forcign cumoney trangsct iong 1.16 500
Rent (refec note 34) 62 83 3440
Allowance for doubtful debis and advances 122,65 -
Bad debisiadvances writken off {ner) 610 1434
Less: Provision for doubtful debts ret adivsted out of ahove - -356.47
Donation 023 .29
Testing sxpenscs 16.59 2059
Bark charees® 624 10 431.94
Leurity Semvice Cxponscs G1.95 91.%2
Miscellaneous exprenses*™* 73.95 AN.6T
Taotal 2378878 19.163.21

* includes fair value of yuarunies charges of Rs. 227 23 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 41,77 lakhs) recorded for wurantee issued by promoter directors and [ntentec for fund
and nen fund based limit. The comresponding impact is recorded as an adjusiment to equity. (Rofer nate 36(C b))

** Does not include any ilem of expenditare with & value of more than 1% of the revenue from operations.

Notes:
Pavments to auditors
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 30, 2023
As auditor
Audit fees 3447 3g.00
Certification Service 349 -
Reimbursemient of out of pocket expense 1.70 2 40
Total £9.26 Al.59

Corporate Social Responsibility:

Particulars

For tbe vear ended
March 31. 2024

For the yeur ended
March 31, 2023

a. Crross amount required to be spemt by the Conmpany duning the year
b Total of previvus vear (shortfallVexcess amount
<. Amount approved by the Boardirequired 10 be spent duning the year

4, Amount spent during the vear ended on March 31, 2024:

1. Comstruciondacquisition of any asset
ii. On purposes other than (i) above”

e. Amount spent doring the year ended on March 31, 2023:
1 Comstruclion/acquisivion of any assel
ii On purmoses other than (1) abovet
* Follovang are the nature of activities:
{21 Helping in settiing up clinics and providing education for women and children.
(b1 Promoting all activities foc physical, cultural, and social uplifimz of the general public,

In cash

103,00

6365

10300

103.00

Yet (o be paid In cash

65 63

B5 A5

Total

10300

£5 65

(This space s intentionallv been lofi tlank)
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27. Derivative instruments

The Company does not use derivative instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge its risk associated with foreign
currency fluctuations.

28: Pending Receipt of Appeal effect order for assessment year 2009-10 where the appeal has been decided in favour of the
Company by ITAT. Interest on income tax refund has not been recognised there of as the amount is not presently reasonably

determinable. Interest income on such refund shall be recognised in the year appeal effect order is received from Income tax
authorities.

29. During the year ¢ended March 31, 2022, one of the plants of the Company in Uttarakhand, Pantnagar Plant witnessed some
labour unrest, where the workmen resorted to deliberate “Go Slow production” resulting in fall in the preduction at Pantnagar Plant.
The management of the Company did tripartite conciliation meetings with the jurisdictional Assistant Labour Commissioner
Pantnagar, However no agreement could be made due to the adamant attitude of worker Unicn Representatives. The Company had to
declare Partial Lock Out as per the provisions of Section 6 (S) of the UP Indusinal Dispute Act, 1948 on March 16, 2022 which got
lifted on July 06, 2022 {* Lock out period') and the Panthagar Plant started to function normal since then. The Production loss in the

Pantnagar Plant during the Lockout period was covered by the increasing the production in other plants and engaging some outside
job workers.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Labour Secretary (Ministry of Labour and employment , Government of Uttarakhand )
declared the lock out Illegal, and the Company has also received a demand of Rs. 184.95 lakhs from Asstt. Labour Commissioner ,
Pantnagar (*ALC"), towards the wages of workers during the lockout period . The Company has challenged the labour secretary order
and demand raised by ALC and filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble High Court, Unarakhand. The Hon'ble High Couwrt has
granted stay on the demand raised and the above matter 1s still pending to be adjudicated.

In regard to the above matter, the Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, believes that there is no probable cash outflow
w1 this regard.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, 428 workers which were part of labour union went on strike in Pant Nagar and Kichha plants

w.e.f September 6, 2022 which continued till December 15, 2022 and the labour union reached an agreement between the Company
and labour union, which was signed.

In the said agreement it was agreed that the Company will provide increment to the striking workers w.e.f. January 01, 2023 instead
of July 01, 2022. The same will be payable m July 2023 as an arrear and workers agreed that they will not demand increment for
earlier months i.e., July 2022 to December 2022. The same is paid during the current year with arrear.

Production in these units have resumed with full vigour. Production loss during the strike period was managed with increasing
production in other unit and by outsourcing the preductien to job workers.

(This space has intentionally been left Blank)
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30: [Dcome Tax

The major cormponent of income 1ax expense (or the year ended March 302024 and March 31, 2023 are:
Statement of Profit and Loss

Profit or boss sectiom:

For the year ended For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2024 Aarch 31, 2021
Current iocome tax;
Currenl income Lax charge 208573 232344
Adjustrmes of ncome tax relating to carlier yvear (116 52.89
Deferred tax charge | (credit)y:
Belatinu to onuination and reversal of temporary differences ® t19 3R 372,70
Income Tax exgrense repgarted in the Statement of Profil and Loss 2.962.68 2.749.03
* ncluding charge{credity of Rs. Mil {March 31, 2023: Rs. (47 29) lakhs) in respect of carlier vears
OCI secrion:
Deferred wax related w nems recoanised in OCT during the vear:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2014 Moarch 11. 2023
Rcmcasurcments gain loss) oo defincd benefit liabilioy 27 {3114
Income tax charged to OCI - charge/(credit) 2.71 (3L.14)
Reconciliation of tux expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
Particulars For the year cnded For the year eaded
March 31_ 2174 March 30, Z023
Accounling profit before tax 11,588.88% 189517
AL slalulory inoorme (ax rate of 25 168%5 (March 11, 2022; 25 1682 19060 274212
Adjustments in respect of cument income tax of carlicr years 17.16) 52 8%
Adjustrments in respect of deferred income tax of earlier vears - {47.2%)
Proceeds from sale of investment properny - (1.56)
Tax effect of expentes that are not deduoctible im determining taxable profie:
Fair value of guarantee charges 5749 1066
Others (per differences) i4 34) 17.68)
At effective income tax rate of 25.56% (Prevhous year: 25.23%) 2.961.68 2.749.03
Incowme tax expense reported in the Stalement of Profit and Loss 2.962.68 1749.03
Deferred tay
Deferred tax relates to the following Balance Sheet Statement nf Profit and Liss

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

Moarch 31, 2013

Defereed tax liabhilities
Property, plant and equipmenc. intangible {1.712.95) (1.08% 94) 230

21105
assets and investment proponics
Right of use assets- Leasehold land (71900 (16 4l (33.29) (23.88)
Ripht of use assets- Others (7099} (149531 (78 54) 40,37
Cnhers (9180 - 216 16.27)
Total deferred tax Nimhility 141 f1.022.214 12.HH .87 {70, ) Th BT
Deferred tax assels
Leasc fiabilitics $0.00 159.67 19.57 {46.37)
Allowances for credit bogges 231 20633 (30,87 25297
Disallowance under section 454 AT0.06 420 82 {49 24 44,52
Effect of expenditure debited twr the statement 556.56 624 &4 68 18 60403
of profit and tosz in the current vear/zarlier
véars bun alluwable fur tax purpeses on
payment hasis
Others 647 .72 1473 i
Total deferred tax liability (B 1.350.41 1.413.40 £2.09 314.69
Deferred tax assers/{liability) (Netr (A + B> {5T1.80) (58847} (1567 341.56

and deferred 1ax liabilines velate to income taxes kevied by the same twx authomy.

The Company offsets tax asscis and labilitics it and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off cwrent tax assers and current rax Habilities and the deferred wx assers

Recoaciliation of deferred rax liabilities {neth Az at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Opening balance 1388470 1246.91)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss 1938 L7270}
Tax income({eXpense} during the year recommised in OC1 (2.71 314
Chiging halance {571,800 (SRR AT
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31: Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleutaled by dividing the profil for the year attribulable 1o equity holders of the Company by the weighted average oumber of cquity shares

quistanding Juring the year

Diluted EPS amounts ars caloulated by dividing the profit atiributable w cquity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of eyuity shares outstanding
during the year pius the weighted average nwnber of Equity shares that woukld be issued on conversion of all the dilwtive potential equity shares imo equity shares.

The (ollcwing table reflects ihe income and share data used in the basic und dilited EPS computations:

Particulars

For the vear ended For the year emded

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit atirbutable o equity holders 8,626.20 §.146.24
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS: 1.47 00258 1. 50.00.600
Basic and diluted earmimgs per equity share {in Rs.) SR68 $431

(This space has intentinnailc been feft Mank)
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32: Significant acconnting judgements , estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statcments requires management 0 make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revennes, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the acCompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustmen to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in Ruture periods

Other disclosuras relating to the Company’s exposure to Asks and uncetainties includes:

+ Capital managernent (refer note 41)

= Financial risk mapagement objectives and policies (refer note 40)

* Sensitvity analyses disclosures (refer notes 13 and 40)

Jodgements

I the process of applying the Compuny s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Staternents:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Cormpany determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods coversd by an option o

exlend the Tease if 1t is reasonably certain (o be exercised, or any periods covered by an opiion to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certamn not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evalualing whether it 15 reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option 0 renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it 10 exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencemnent date, the
Company rcassesses the Tease term il there is 2 significant event or change in circumstances that is within its contrel and affecls s
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (g.g., construction of significant leasehold irnprovements or
significapt customisation 10 the leased asset).

The Company included the renewal period as pan of the lease term for leeses with related party, since there exist econemic incentive
for the Company to continue wsing the leased prernises and it does not foresce non renewal of the lease term for future perods.
Furthermore. the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

Refer to note 43 for information on potential future rental payments.

Property lease classification — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into leases on its Investment property. The Company has retains substantially all the nisks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these propertics and accounts for the contracts as operating leascs.

Revenue from contraets with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the detennination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Uncertainty ¢n the Estimation of the Total Construction Revenue and Tetal Construction Cost:

The Company recognises revenue from the construction contracts over the period of eontract as per the input methad of IND AS 115
“Revenue from contracts with the customers”. The contract tevenue is determined based on proportion of contract cost incurmed to date
compared to estimaled total contract cost which involves significant judgement, identification of contractual obligations, and the
Company’s right to receive payments for performance completed till date, risk on collectability due to liquidation damages and other
penalties imposed by the customers, change in scope and consequential cevised contact price and recognition of the hability for loss
making contracis/ onerous obligations ete. The Company has efficient, coordinated system for calculation and forecasting its revenue
and expense reporting. However actual project outcome may deviate positively or negatively from the Company’s calculation and
forecasting which could impact the revenue recognition up to the siage of project completion and is recognised prospectively in the
Financial Statemente

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the fumre and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting dace. that have a significant
risk of causing a materal adjusiment to the camrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fimancial year, are described
below. The Company based 13 assumptions and cstimates on parameters available when the Financial Staterments were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about funure developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assvmptions when they occur.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company uses its technical cxpertise along with historical and industry trends for defermining the ¢congmic life of an
asset‘component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by the management peniodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a
revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining usefil life of the assets.
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Falr value of Investment properties
The Cotnpany disclose far value of mvestment properties. The Company engaged an accredited independent valuer to assess fair

value for reporting year at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024, The valuation igchniques and key inpuots used 10 determing fair value
of the asscls are provided in notc 4.

Approaches used in Valuation Methodology for fair valuation of property, plant and equipment, right to use assets and
investment properties:

Market Approach

Under this method the recent sales and listings of comparable assets are gathered. Adjusimenis are then applied to these observations
for differences in location, time ol sale, and physical characteristics between the subject assets and the comparable assets, o estimate a
fair market value for the subject assets

The comparative analysis performed in this approach focuses on similarities and differences among assets and transactions that affect
value including differences in the assets appraised the motivations of buyers and sellers, market conditions at the time of sale, size,
location, physical features and economic charactenstics. Elements of comparison are tested against market evidence to determine
which elements are sensitive to chanee and how thev affect value.

Cost Approach

Under replacement cost methed, this is nosmally the cost of replacing the property wilh @ modem equivalent al the refevant valuation
date. An exception 15 where an cquivalent property would need to be a replica of the subjcet property in order to provide a participant
with the same utility, in which case the replacement cost would be that of reproducing or replicating the subject building rather than
teplacing it with a modern ¢quivalent. The replacement cost reflects all incidental costs. as appropriate. such as the value of the lkmd,
infrastructure, design fees, finance costs and developer profit that would be inenrred by a participant m creating an equivalent assel.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company makes provision of ¢xperted eredit losscs on trade teceivables using a provision mawix. The provision matrix is based
on its historical abserved defiuit rates, adjusted for forward looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and the Company makes appropriaie provision wherever outstanding is for longer pedod and involves higher risk.

The assessment of the correlation berween historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant
estomate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive 1o changes in circumstances and of forccast econemic conditions. The Company's historical
credit loss expenence and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the Futwre.
The nformnation about the ECLs un the Company's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 40,

Taxes
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the

likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies
Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 30,

Defined benefit plans (Cratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity cbligation are
determined using actuertal valuations. An actuaral valuation involves making various assumptions that may ditfer from aciual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term natore, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject 1o change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond comespond to expeeted term of defined benefit obligation
The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds
on which the discount rate is based, on the basis thal they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to changc only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected funure inflation rates for the respecive
countries,

Further details about gratuily obligations are given in Note 33.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the far values of fimancial assets and financial Labilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannol be mieasured bascd on quoted
prices in active maskets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these modcls
are laken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establizhing fair
values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidiry risk, credit sk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer note 3% and 39 for further disclosures

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, 1t uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to
measure lease liabilities. The TBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar sccucity, the funds necessary to obtain an assct of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar cconomic cavironment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’. which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or
when they need 1o be adjusiad to refleet the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the [BR using observable igpus
ich as markel interest Tates) when available,
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33, Emplovee defined benefit obligation (net)

Particulars A% at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non- current

Gratuity-Mon current 11120 90638

Total 111.20 906.38

Current

Gratuity 1.194 98 £00.00

Total 1.194.98 800.00

The Company has a defined benefit grawity plan. Every employee who has compleied five or more vears of service gets a gratwity on departure a1 |5 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service or part thersof in excess of 6 monihs, a8 per the provisions of Payment of Grawity Act, 1972 Eoerlier the plan was
unfunded. The Company has set up a Gratuity Fund on February Q2. 2023 for providing benefits to employees and certain sum will be contributed by the Company to
the fund from time to time. The fund has been created in the form of a trusi and it is governed by the board of trustees. The tustee entered inte 2 Group Gratuity
Scheme with insurer and premium paid therefore by the Company will be considered as contabution to the fund

The fellowing tables swmmanse the components of net benefit expense recogmised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for

the gramity plan:
a) Giratuity
Changes in the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2024:
Particulars For the yvear ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Defined Fair value Benefit Defined Fair value Benefit
benefit of plan Tiability benefit of plan liability
obligativp assels oblivativn assels
Balance at the beginning of the vear {2.411.66) T05.28 (1,706.38) {Z.120.20} - (2,129.20)
Cost charged to profit and loss
Service Cost {231L.81) - {231.81% {19246} - {193 46)
Met Interest (expense)lncome {17798 52.08 (125.93) (152,98 4.19 (4879
Sub-tetal included in profit and loss {409.79) 52.05 (357.74) (346.44) 4.19 (342.25}
{refer mote 13}
Benefits Paid 131.43 {84.26) 47.17 186.70 - 186.7¢
Remeasurement gains/flosses) in other
comprehensive income
Retwrm on plan asset (excluding amounts - 0.76 076 (91 {0.91)
included in net interest ¢xpensc)
Actuarial changes arizing from changes in 42.21) - {4221} ({184.06} - {184.06)
financal assumptions
Expericnce adjustments 52.22 - §2.22 61.34 - 61.34
Sub-total included in OC1 10.01 076 10,77 {122.72) 0911 (123.63)
Contnbutions by emplover - 700.00 700.00 - 2,00 702.00
Balance at the end of the vear {2.680.01) 1.373.83 11,306.18) 2.411.66) T05.28 11.706.38)

The plan assets are managed by the Gratuity Trust formed by the Company. The management of 100% of the funds is entrusied according to norms of Gratuity Trust,

whose pattern of investment s available with the Company.

Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then asscis Liabilites mismatch & actual investment ccrum on assels lower than the discount rate assumad at the last valuation date

can impact the liability

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the tial plun assets are as i

{lows:
March 31, 2024 Moarch 31, 2023
investmens funds Amount % Amount Y
ICIC1 Prudential Life Insurance 74232 54.03% 328 71.36%
Futurc General India Life Insurance Company Limited 631.52 45.97% 20000 28.36%
(Cash and cash sauivalent - 00 24K 0_28%

The principal assumptions used in determining net emplovee defined beneiit liabilities are shown below:

Pariiculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ya %a

i) Discounting Rate 722 7.38

) Future Salary increase 7.00 7.00

iii} Retirement Age (years) 58.00 38.00

iv} Mortality Table 100% of TALM (2012 100% of TALM

- 14) {2012 - 14)

v) Attrition at Ages
-Upto 30 years 3.00 3.00
-From 31 o 44 years 200 200
-Above 44 vears 1.00 1.00
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A quantitabive séngitivity analysiz for significant assumption as at March 31, 2024 15 a5 shown below:

Assomptions March 31,3024 March 31, 2024
Disconnt Rate Future salarv increases
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Increase decrease (ncrease decrease
lmpact on defined benefit obligation {131.34) 142.0% 13028 (124.11)
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2023
Assumptions Discount Rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 3.5% 0.5%
INCTEase decreasc INCTCAsE decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (124.07) 13430 12572 (118243

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a resuli of reasonable changes in
key assumptions oecurring at the end of the reporting year. The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in a significant assemption, keeping all other assurmnptions

constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined henefit ohligation ag il iz unlikely thal changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation from one anoter.

The following are the maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As ot As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Within the next 12 months {next annual reperting vear) 22816 164.0%
Between 2 and 3 years 451.14 364.37
above 5 years 20007 1,853.20
Total expected payments 2,680.01 2,411.66

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 16.2F years { March 31. 2023: 15 69 years).

b} Drefined contribution plans
The Company also has ceriain defined contribution plans. Coniribulions are made o provident fund, employee pension scheme and employee’s state insurance scheme
for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered funds administered by ihe government. The obligation of the Company is limited 10 the

amount contributed and it has no further contractual or any constnictive obligation, The ¢xpense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs
73699 lakhs (March 31, 2023; Rs 586.45 lakhs).

The Code on Social Security. 2020 ('Code’) refating to employee benefits during employment and post-emplovment benefits received Presidential assent in September,
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the code came into effect on 3 May 2023 However, the final rules/inferpretation have

not yet been 1ssued The Company will assess the impact of the Code when final rales/interpretation it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the year
when the Code becomes =ffective.

34: Leases
Company as a Lessee

The Company has Icase conwacis fur various ilems of offices, tesidences. lands and cquipment’ machinery uscd in its operations. Lease of plant and machinery have
lease tenure of § years, buildings have lease tenmns of 10 years except one lease which is maturing on July 31, 2024 (refer note 6}, while land have lease term of 90/99
years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s litle 10 the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options, which are further discussed below

The Company also has certain leases of buildings with lease tenns of 12 months or less or with low value and certain leases of squipment’ machinery with low value,
The Company applies the “short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assels” recognition easmptions [or these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of nght-of-use assels recognised and the movements during the vear:

Particulars Land Buildings Flant and Total
equipment

As at April 01, 2022 4582913 403.09 2864 3.260.91
Meodification {rafer note &) = 33742 . 23742
Depreciation expense (65.72}) (71.17) {3.86) (140.75)
As at March 3, 2023 4,763.46 569.34 24,78 5.357.58
Additions {refer note 6) 68008 - 680.08
Modification (refer note 8) - (237.04) - (237.04)
Depreciation expense (71.9%) (7117 (3.86) {147.01)
As ar March 31, 2024 5,371.56 261.13 20.92 5,653.61
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Set out below are the carmying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

Opening Balance 634 .44 44857
Maodification { refer note 6) (259.71 23742
Aceretion of interest 56.96 61.84
Payments 11340 11339
Closing Balance 318.27 634,44
Non - Current 267.76 577.74
Current 50351 56.70

The maturity analysis of lease itabnlitics is disclosed in Note 40.

The effective interest rate for lease labilities is 9. 5¢ %6 with maturity between 2030-2031 and except one lease which is maturing on July 31, 2024 (1efer note 6),
The fellowing are the amounts recognised in profit and loss account:

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 147.00 140.74
Interest expense on lease liabilities 56 .90 61.84
Expense relating to short-term Leases & leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 62.33 34.40
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 266.80 256,98

The Company had tatal cash outflows for leases of Rs 11341 lakhs (including interest of Rs 56.96 lakhs) {March 31, 2023: Rs. 113.39 lakhs (inchiding imterest
payment of Rs. 61.84 lakhs)}. The Company alse had non-cash modification to right-of-use assets of Rs. (237 04) lakhs (March 31. 2023 Rs 237 .42 lakhs) and lease
liabilities of Rs (259.72) lakhs {March 31, 2023 Rs. 237.42)

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and ermination options. These options are negotiated by management te provide fexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolic and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgzement in determining whether these
extension and termination options are reasonably cerain 10 be sxervised,

Company as 2 Lessor

Commervial property given on operating lease.

The Company has entzred into operating lease agreement for leasing a part of the factory at Greater Noida (Uttar Pradesh} (sub-lease agreement). set up on leasehold
land as an investment property, The lease term for factory at Greater Noida was for 9 years. with an escalation clause of 15% afier completion of every 3 years along
with non-cancellable lease period of first 3 years. The lease term for the period of 9 years completed on April 30, 2021 and the Company extended the leass period for
ong year w.e.f May 01, 2021 to April 30. 2022, without rent escalation. The lease term for the period of | year completed on April 30, 2022 and the Company renew

the leasc period for three year woe.f May 01, 2022 to April 30. 2025 with a cancellable clause which can be eacrcised by either party _The cenial income in respect of
such lcases recognized in the statement of profit and loss is 136,88 takhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 135.39 lakhs).

Eguipments given on aperating lease:

The Company has entered into operating lease agreement for leasing its equipment for a short teom peried.  The rental incomg in respect of such leascs recognized in
the statement of profit and loss 1s Rs. 3018 Lakhs (Mareh 31, 2023 Rs. 12,00 Lakhs)

35: Commitments and Contingent liabilities
a) Commitments

Estimated amount of contraces remaining to be executad on capital account and not provided for {net of advances) : Rs. 2 17071 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs_ 1 404.14
lakhsy.
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b) Contingent liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

i) Demands received from Sales tax’ GST authenties® 205739 44235

ii) Dremands raised by Income tax authoritics being disputed by the Company for AY 2006-07 & AY 131.46 13146

2020-21

iil) Service tax demand** Nil Liability not

ascertainable

v} Ouistanding bank guarantees by the Company B677.24 6,461.32

v) Demand raised by the Ditector of Town & Couniry Planning, Chennal. towards Infrasmucture and 25.58 24.53

Armeniies charges with respect to Industrial Building approval {including interest). The Company has

deposited Rs. 700 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 7.00 Lakhs) against the demand which is included in

the “Balances with Statutory/Government Authorities” under note 9 to the Financial Statements,

1) Recovery suit filed by a vendor (including interest) 176.66 16311

vii) Pending labour cases Liability not Liability not
ascertainable ascertainable

viii) Demand raised by Asstt. Labour Commissioner . Pantnagar (*ALC"). towards the wages of 184,95 184,95

workers during the lockout peniod (refer note 29)

ix} Demand raised by Pondur Panchayat towards non payment of House Tax for the vear 2010-11 to 13.92 13,62

2022-23

x) Demand received trom Regional P.F. Commissioner, Haldwani towards assessment of PF dues 34.26 3425

related 1o job workers involvediengaged in job work by the Company or job work contraciors, in
connection with the work of the Company. The Company has Gled an appeal to Central Government
[ndustrial Tribunal {CGIT)-cam-Labour Court, Lucknow and the same is pending befare the autharity.
The Company has deposited Rs. 3.42 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 3.42 lakhs) against the demand
which is included in the Balances with statutory’govemnment authorities under nate 9 to the Financial
Stalements.
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*Briel desenpuon of labilities for (i) above:

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

(a) Demand received from Goa Sales Tax authorities towards higher duty on account of wrong
classification of goods for FY 2001-02 {including penalty and interest). The Company has filed appeal
with Bombay High Court at Goa.

(b) Demand received from West Bengal Sales Tax aothorities towards non production of
documents in support of VAT retum for FY 2007-08 w0 FY 2009-10, The Company has made appeal
before Senior Joint Commissioner, Kolkata

{c) Demand received from Dellu VAT Authornies on non submission of comimercial ax Form F
regards to intce-state sales for the AY 2010-11 (including interest).

{d) Demand reecived from Commercial Tax Depantment. Jamshedpur wwards short payment of VAT
for the FY 2000-1C on the amount of labour charges disallowed (ineluding interest). The Company has
deposited Rs. 040 lakb (March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.40 lakh) against the demand which is included in the
*Balances with Samtory/Government Authorities’ {refer note 9 to the Financial Statements).

(e} Demand received from Commercial Tax Department, Jharkhand towards short payment of VAT
for the FY 2008-09 on the amount of Jlabour charges disallowed (including interest). The Company has
deposited Rs. 1.75 lakh (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1.75 lakh) against the demand which is included in the *
Balance with samtory/goverment Authorities” {refer note 9 to the Financial Statemenis).

{f) Demand of penalty raised by the sates tax authority towards detenitivn of vehicle. The Company has
deposited Rs. 3.46 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 3.46 lakhs} against the demand which was included in
the "Balances with statutery/govemment Authorities” (refer note 9 to the Financial Staternents) till year
cnd March 31, 2022 The Company has written off this deposited amount during the year snded
Mareh 31, 2023,

(2) Demand received from Deputy commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Government of Karmataka for
the FY' 2012-13 on account of taxability (@14.5% instead of 3% on Work conwract wax amounting 1o
Rs. 707.42 Lakhs (March 31, 2023- Rs. 707.42 Lakhs). The Company filed writ petition in High Court
which allowed and asked Depury Commissioner to verify the documnents. However, Deputy
Commissioner again passed the order raising demand amounting to Rs. 726.92 Lakhs (March 31,
2023 Rs. 726,93 Lakhs).

The Company again filed the writ petition against the order passed by Deputy Commissiener. The
High Court, Karnataka vide its order dated Marah 09, 2023, quashed the earlier order giving liberty to
Deputy Commussioner 10 compute (he wx demand on wrmnover at the special rate.

The Depury Comrmissionsr, on the direction of High Court, Karataka, passed an order dated
27.11.2023 in favour of the Company.

(h) Demand on account of Vehicle Detention at Uttsrakhand. The matter is pending with statutery
authorities The Company has deposited Rs. 2.47 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 2.47 lakhs } against the
demand which is included i the “Balances with Starutory'Government Authoritics™ (refer note 9 to the
Financial Statements).

(i) Demand received from Uitarakchand GST on account of E-way bill not attached with invoice copy
at time vehicle checking. The Company has deposited Rs. 1.09 lakhs (March 31, 2023, Rs 1.09 lakhs?
against the demand which is included in the *Balances with Stattory/Government Autherities® (refer
note 9 to the Financial Starements),

(1) Demand on account of Vehicle Detention at Uttar Pradesh. The matter is pending with statutory
authoritics Fhie Company has deposited Rs. 1.44 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs 144 lakhs) against the
demand which is included in the ‘Balances with Stanutory/Government Authorities’ (refer note O to the
Financial Statements).

{k) Demand on account of Vehicle Detention at Uttrakhand. The matter 1s pending with stamtory
authoritics The Company has deposited Rs. 1.62 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 162 lakhs) against the
demrand which 15 included in the ‘Balances with Statutory/Sovemment Authoritics’ under note 9 to
the Financial Statements)

(It Demand received from GST authorites on account of disallowance of Input tax eredit (¥TC
(including penalty and inlerest) for FY 2017-18 o FY 2021-22, The Company has deposited Rs_ 1397
lakhs (March 31, 2023 Nil) agaivst the demand which is included in the ‘Balances wilh
Statutory/Government Authorities’ under nots 9 to the Financial Statements).

{m) Demand received from Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Sharkhand on sccount of

diszllowance of VAT for FY 2016-17 . The Company has made appeal before Joint Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes. Jharkhand.

44.04

11206

1.38

340

1751

Nil

247

1.0%

162

1.615.04

60.34

44.04

312.04

1.38

Q.40

17.51

Liability not
ascertainable

2.47

1.09

Total

2.057.39

442.35
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**Briel descnpnon of Labilities for (111) above:

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

(a) The Company during the earlier years received a demand, wherein the service tax authorities
alleged that the scrvices provided by the Company are not classifiable under the service category of
‘Commercial and industrial construction servies' after the miroduction of new entry of 'Works
contract service” in Finence Act 1994 on June | 2007 and alleged that the Company is required to pay
Service Tax under the service category of “Works contract service’ since June | 2047 and the cenvat
credit availed by it on inputs used should oot be admissible. The demand notice issued by the
apthoritics required the Company to opt for compositc WCT category of 2% and 4%, whereas
Campany had already paid full service tax @ 12 36% without prejudice to Company’s rights. The
Company had filed an appeal before the Hon'hle Customs, Central Excise and Service tax sppellate
Tribunal (CESTAT). CESTAT had during the earlier year, remanded back the matter to the
adjudicating authonty for re-determining the tax liability. During the earlier year. the Company
received 2 readjudicated demand order from the service tax authoritics, upholding the basis of demand
earlier raised. The Company had filed an appeal before the CESTAT, Allahabad Bench In earlier
year, the Company won the appeal. However, to carlier year the Department wont into appeal befors
Supreme Court.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court heard the appeal of Service Tax Authorities and issued its Order on May
02, 2023 The Supreme Court has remanded back the case to CESTAT to re-compute the demand in
terms of Rule 2A, which requires service 1ax liability to be calculated only on the service portion of the
Contract,

The CESTAT on the directions of the Supreme Count, reassessed the order dated March 31, 2017
passed by the Commissioner, Service Tax, Noida. The CESTAT set aside the order passed by the
Commissioner. Noida and concluded the matter in favour of the Company vide its order dated
September 29, 2023

The Details of demands amount s as under

{1} Wrong availment of CENVAT credit on inputs amounting to Rs. 11,174.00 lakhs;

{11}  Short payment of Service tax under WCT scheme vig-d-vis Industrial Construclion service
amounhing to Rs. 4.026.4% lakhs (including peoalty); and

(i}  Exccss duty collected and passed on to the clients and 5 demanded amounting to Rs
16,872.80 lakhs (including penalty).

Liability not
ascertainable

Taotal

Based on tavourable decision in similar cases and legal opinion obtained by the Company in discussions with the solicitors the Company believes that there is a fair
chance of decisions in its favour in respect of z/l the items Tisted in (i) 0 (ifi) & {v) to (x} above and hence no provision is considered necessary against the same.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Count (SC} judgement on PF dated February 28, 2019 on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose
of PF contribution as well as its applicability of effective date. As a marer of caution, the Company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the

SC order. The Company will update its provision. on receiving further clarily on the subject.
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36: Related party disclosure
A. Names of related parties and related party relationship

Nature of Relationship
i) Directors & Kev Management Personnel (" KMP™)

1) Relatives of Key Managenal Parsonnel

i1y Entitles in which Dircctors and Key Management Porsonnel {“KMP™)

have a significant influence / control with whom Cornpany have made
transaciions during the reporting years

B. Related Party Transactions:

Mature of rthe related partics

a) Arvind Nanda, Managing Director
b} Gautarn Surt, Whole Time Directar
¢) Ishaan Suri, Non Executive Director
d) Viraj Nanda, Non Executive Director
¢) Widhi Gocl, Company Sceretary and Compliance Officer

1) hlanish Kumar Garg, Chief Executive Officer

£} Anil Kumar Chandam, Chief Financial Officer (1il] February 12. 2024)

h) Dthanpal Arvind Jhaveri. Nominee Director (nominee of OTH Mauritius)

1} Vishal Sharma, Nen Executive Non Independent Director {6l March 04, 2024)

1} Sonali Bhagwati Dzlal, Chairperson and Independent Director (w.e.f. January 13, 2024)
k) Sanpv Bhasin, Independent Director (w.e f. January 15, 2024)
1} Mohit Gujral, Independent Director (w .l January 13, 2024}
m) Pushpendra Kumar Bansal. Chief Financial Officer (w2 f. Febreary 12, 2024)

Shobhna Suri

a) [nreree

b) Signu Recal Estates LLP

¢} Aries Developers LLP (formierly known a5 Aries Developers Private Limited)
d) Taipan Aszociates Private Limited

¢} Interarch Foundation

£y Artfiste Adventising LLP { formerly known as Anfoto Swudios)
e} Interarch Employees Group Gratuity Trast
h} IGS Hoelding Private Limited

The following table provides the totat amount of transactions thosc have been entered into with relateq partics for the celevan financial year:

(Rs: [n Lakhs)

Transactions during the year

Key Management Personnel

Entlties on which Key Management Personnel
(*KMP™ have a significant inDuence { control.

For the vear ended
March 31. 124

For the year ended
March 31. 2023

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

1. Sale of products
-Signu Real Estaies LLP
-Taipan Associates Pvt Limited

2. Lease vent paviient

-nterec

-Anes Developers LLP {formerly known as Anes Developers Privata
Limiled}

-Signu Real Estales LLP

3. Reimbursement of expenses received by:

-Intartes

4. Remuneration {refer note (i), (i) and (ii} bebow)
Short-term beoefit

- Arvind Nanda

- Gautam Suri

- ¥ira) Nanda

- Manish Kumar Carg

- Anil Kumar Chandani

- Hidhu Goel

- Pushpender Kumar Bansal

Long-term benefit

- Arvind Nanda

- Gautam Suri

- Viraj INanda

= Manish Kumar Garg

- Anil Kumar Chandam

- Nidhi Goe!

- Pushpender Kumar Bansal

5. Finance Cost
- Arvind Nanda
- Gautam Suri

6. Loan repaid
- Arvind Nanda
- (Gautam Suri

7. Corporate Sociul Responsibilides payment
- I[nterarch Foundation

8. Gratuity Contribution
- Interarch Employees Group Gratuity Trust

9. Advertisement Expenses
- Artfoto Studies

3122
46.52
16.11
166,83
7219
1733
1138

(0.66)
504
286
0,50
029

20,00

3215
1808
1570
15583
g102
1539

042
466
2.30
1.55

120
L)

145,00

5406
3700

4200
o

16.05

.32

37.00

42,00
9.00

4,83
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10. Buvback of Share {refer note 45)
-Arvind Nanda

~Giautzm Suri

-lsbaan Suni

11. Director's Sitting Fees
-Sonali Bhagwati

-Sanjiv Bhasin

~Mohit Gujral

L2500 -
87500
00,00

2350
375
325

C. Related party balances

) The foliownz table provides the total amount of balances outstanding (pavable recaivable to from related parties i

Key Management Perscnnel

Entities om which Key ¥anagement Personnel

. “KMP”) have a sionificant influence / contral.
I As at Asat ‘ ”]As at 2 AS at
March 31, 224 March 31, 1023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2021

1. Short term benefit Payable

- Arvind Nanda 37T 2.49

- Gautam Sun 336 371

- Wira] Manda 122 1.53 Z =
- Manish Komar Garg - 7.25

- Anil Kumar Chandani 569 455 - =
- Midhi Goel 7 1.61

- Pushpender Kumar Bansal 325

2. (rther long term benefit payable

- arvind Manda 2000 20 HY -

- Gautam Sen 2000 20.00

- Viraj Manda 0.66 " _
= Manish Kuornar Gurg 12.16 T 10 <

- Anil Kumar Chandari 7 431 -

- Madhi Goel TRl 602 - =
- Pushpendzr Kumar Bansal G629 = = =
3. Unsecured borrowings

- Arvind Nanda 2100 - -
4. Interest Pavahle

- Arvind Manda .27 - -
~ Ciautarn Sur - G533

5. Security Deposit given

- [ntertas - 1800 |8.00

by Teral facilitieslimity {fund and non fund based) from banks are secured by personal guammer of we promaier ditectors of the Company viz Mr. Arvind Nanda and Mr
Gautain Suri and Corporate guarantee given by M/s Intertse (Partnership firm). The guarantes charges fecognised m statement of profit or loss in regards to such guarantees is Rs.
228,42 lakhs (March 31. 2023 Rs. 4235 lakbs) and the same has been comespondingly credited to equity. The Joan ocwtstanding (Cash credit from banks) against such
facilivies/limils is Rs. 90266 lakhs (March 31, 2023, Rs. 94810 lakhs) (Refer note 14{a}y The outstanding non-fund based limit against such facilines/limits s Rs. 20,324 80

lakchs (March 3 b, 2023; Rs, 24.322.20 lakhs)

c) Total facilities/limits {fund and non fund based) from banks are sccured by way of equitable morigage on immovable propetties sttuated at: (a} Plot No. B-33. Sector- 57,
Noida, Lttar Pradesh (Cwned by M/s Tntertec{Partnership firm) and (b} Plot No. 284, Udyog Vihar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh. being immovable praperties owned by M/s

[ertex {Partnership firm) (Refer nvie 14(a))

Notes:

i) The remuneration ta Lhe key tnanagerial personnel includes value of perquisites (excluding rent) based on the actual payment or evaluated as per [ncome Tax Rule, 19462,
ii} The remuneration paid 10 Mr. Arving Nanda excludes remt of Rs. 42.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Re. 42.00 Lakhs) paid to M/s Aries Developers Pur Limited for his residence.

iil) Remuneration paid to Mr. Gautam Suri excludes rent of Rs. 9.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs, 9.00 Lakhs) paid to M/s Signu Real Estate LLP for his residence.
iv) All related party wansacions entered during the vear were in ordinary course of business and on arm length basis.
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37. Segment information

Business seament

The Company's activities are involved in manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings. meial toofing & cladding
system and metal false ceilings. Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations. thers are no separate reportable serments (business
andfor geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and hence, there are no

additional disclesures to be provided other than those already provided in the Financial Statements,

Geographical information

The custorners of the Company are located in the [ndia and outside India. Refer note 19 for revenue from customers Jocated culside india.

Non-current operating assets

The non-current assets of the Company ate located in the country of domicile i.e. [ndia. Hence no specific disclosures have been made.

The Executive Dircctors, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are the Chief Operating Dectsion Maker {CODM) and monitors the

operating resuits of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assesement.

Revenue from one customer generating sales of more than 10 % of total revenue as on March 31, 2024: Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs.13,762 lakhs).

38. Fair Value

Set out below. is a comparison by class of the carmying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments;
The carrying and fair value of financial instruments by categorics as at March 31, 2024 were as follows:

Particulars Amortised Financial Assets f Financial Carrying Fair
Cost liabilities at Gair | Assets/liabilitie Value Yalue
value throngh s at fair value
statement of profit | through OCI
and lnss
Assets:
Current and non-current
Investments - 53642 336.42 53642
Trade recaivables 2| R8% 45 - - 2188845 21 28845
Cash and cash egquivalents 6, 157.687 = 6,157.67 6,137 67
Bank balances other than cash and cash 761250 - - T612.50 761250
equivalents
Loans 107 46 - - 107.46 107.46
Other financial assets 421,34 - 421.36 421 .36
Total 36,187.44 53642 - 36.723.86 36.723.86
Liabilities;
Borrowings 95586 - - 955 86 95586
Non current Bommowins 64.37 - - 64.37 64,37
Trade payables 13,356.42 - 13,356.42 1335643
Dther fenancial liabilibes 1.715.31 - 1.715.31 1.71531
Total 16,091.97 - - 16.091,97 16.091.97
The carrving and (@ir valuc of Gnancial instruments by categories as at March 31. 2023 were as [ollows:
Particulars Amortised Financial Assets / Financial Carrying Fair
Cost liabilities at fair | Assets/liabilitie Value Value
value through 5 at fair value
statement of profit | through OCI]
and loss

Assets:
Current and non-current
[nvestments - 301.02 - 30102 501.02
Trade receivables 19,707.79 - - 19,707.79 14,707.79
Cash and cash equivalents 5.866.32 - - 5,866.32 586632
Bank balances other than cash and cash 05344 - - 6,054.44 6,054.44
equivalents
Loans 27.63 2763 27.63
Orther B ial asgets 241.67 - - 261.67 261687
Total 31.917.85 501402 - 3241887 1241887
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Liabilities:

Current and non-current

Bomrowings 1,027.581 - - 1,027.81 1,027.81
Non current Borrowings 110.36 - - 110.56 110.56
Trade payables 10,366.01 - - 10,366.01 10,360.0]
Other financial labilities 1.186.44 - - §.126.44 1.186.44
| Total 12.690.82 - - 12.690.82 12_690.82

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances). trade receivables, loans, trade payables and other current
financial assets and liabilitics approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maruritics of these instruments.

Valuoation technique used to determine fair value

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a foreed or liquidation sale. The following ruethods and assumptions were used to eslimate the fair values:

{i} The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the
1ssucr’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting year,

(ii) The fair value of security deposits and non current investments approximates the carrying value and hence the valuation technique and inputs
have not been gven

{11} Fair value of investments in mutual funds are based on marke1 observable inputs i.¢. Net Asset Value at the reporting date.

39: Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements arc categoriscd within the fair value hicrarchy.
desenbed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadiusted) tnarket pricas in active markets for identical assets or Tiabilities

Level 2 — Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either
direetly or indicectly.

Level 3 — Valualion techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on
observable market data.

{This page hay intentionally been feft hlank)
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The following table provides the fair value measurernént hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitatlve disclosures fair value measyrernent hierarchy for assers and liabillties:

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
valuation in active ohservable unobservable
markets tnpmts inpuis
(Level 1) {Level 2} {Level 3)
Financial assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Investnents March 31, 2024 536,42 - 536.42 =
March 31, 20623 501.02 - - 501.02
Trade receivables March 31, 2624 21 888 45 - - 21 888 435
March 31, 2023 19 70779 - - 19.707.7%
Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2024 015767 - - 6.15767
March 31, 2023 5,866.32 - - 5.866.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash e March 31, 2024 7.612.50 - - 7,612.50
March 31, 2023 605444 - - 6,054.44
Loans March 31. 2024 107.46 - - 107 46
March 31, 2023 27.63 - B 27.63
Other financial assets March 31, 2424 421.36 - - 421.36
March 31,2023 26167 - - 261.67
Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
valvation in active observable unebservable
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1} (Level 2} (Level 3)
Finaocial liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Bomowings March 31, 2024 955 86 = - 95586
March 31,2022 1,027.81 - - 1.027.81
Non current Borrowings March 31, 2024 6437 - - 6437
March 31,2023 110.56 - - 114.56
Trade payables March 31,2024 13,356 43 - = 13,356.43
March 31, 2023 10,366.01 % - 10,366.01
Other financial liabilitics March 31, 2024 L7153 - - 1.715.31
March 31, 2023 1.186.44 - - 1,156.44

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the year

{This space has inteniionaily been left biank)
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40: Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade payables, lease liabilitics and other financial liabilitics. The main
purpase of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to suppert its operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables. cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) and other financial assets that derive
directly from its eperations.

The Company is exposed to market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company’s senier management is supported by a intemal finange team that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Company. The internal finance eam provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk
activitics are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the

Company’s policics and risk objectives, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below:

(a) Market Risk:

Market cisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of Tisk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equiry price risk and commedity risk. Financial instraments
affected by market nsk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the hasis that the amount of net debt, the ratie of fixed to floating mterest rates of the debt at year end
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuicy 2nd other post-retirement obligations; provisions;
and the non-financial assets and liabilities.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item i¢ the effect of the asswmed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilitics held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

{i) Intercst rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marked interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-termn debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The risks are managed by periedic monitoring of interest rates.

Interest Rate sensitivity:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 12asonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other

variables held censtant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase in Interest % Decrease im interest %
Increase/ (decrease} in Increasef (decrease) in
profit profit
March 31, March 31, March3l, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Effect of Increase/ decrease {1.05) {1.89) 1.05 1.8%
in floating Interest rate by
100 basis points {1%)

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign exchange vates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates privacily to the Company’s foreign currency liabilities.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by forecasting highly probable foceign currency {FC) cash flows in advance.

Exposure to Toreign currency risk

The summary of quantitative data about the Company's cxposuce to eurrency risk, as cxpressed in [ndian Rupecs, 2s at March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023 are as below:

{a) Foreign currency risk exposure:
The Company exposure to [oreign currency nisk at the end of the reporting period. is as follow:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
USD Rupees usp Rupees
in lakhs in Jakhs in Jakhs im lakhs
Trade payahles and Payable for Property, plant and 0.62 3163 0.03 210
equipment
Total 0.62 51.63 0.03 2.10
Exposure (o foreign currency risk (liability) 0.62 51.63 0.03 2.10
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates. with all other variables held constant. The

impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of menetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure 1o foreign
currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Particulars Increase/ {(decrease) in
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023%
USD sensibivity
INRAUSD - Increase by 5% (2.58) (o1n
INR/USD - Decrease by 3% 2.58 0.13

rap

{iii) Commeodity price risk
The Company 15 exposed to movement in price of steel commadity. Profitability of Company may get affected by movement in the prices of steel. The
strategic move of the Company from fixed price contracts to variable price contracts helps mitigate steel price fluctuation rigk.

(iv) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the value of a equity financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market pricss.

The Company does not hold any quoted or marketable equity financial instrurnents, hence, is not exposed to any mevement in market prices.

{b) Credit Risk

Cr)edit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under @ financial instrument ot custorner contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily ade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instrumments. The Company only deals with partics which has goud credit rating/ worthiness
given by external rating agencies or based on Company's imemnal assessment.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Company’s exposure to eredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each custorner However, management also considers
the factors that may influence the credit risk of is customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and location in which
customers operale. The Company limits 1s cxposure 10 credil risk from trade reccivables by establishing @ maximum payment period. Quistanding

customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit obrained from reputable
banks.

The Cospany makes provision of cxpected credit losses on trade reccivables using a provision matrix. The provision mairix is based on its historical
observed default rates, adjusted for forward looking cstimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and Company
makes appropriate provision wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk. Generally, trade receivables are wnitten-off if past due
for more than one year and arc not subject to enforcement activity. The maximum exposure 1o credit nsk al the reporting date is the camying valug of
each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7 (b)(i) and 7 (b}(ii). The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other
forms of credil insurance are considered integral part of rade receivables and considered in the czlculation of impairment. The Company evaluates the

concentration of sk with respect 1o wrade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are lucated in several jurisdictions and industries and
operate in largely independent markets.

Sct out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company’s trade reccivables and contract assct using
Provision matrix:

Contract Trade receivable
asset Not Leess 6 months 1-2 23 More Total
due than 6 -k year years years than
months 3 vears

March 31, 2024

Estimated total gross 3.525.20 6.833.50 14,215.50 77324 BR7.85 118.80 E 26,356.18
carrying amount at default

ECL- simplified approach = 282.20 586.8¢ 31.92 30.05 4.90 - 942.53
Net carrying amount 3,525.20 6,553.30 | 13,628.73 T41.32 851.20 113,90 - 15,413.65
March 31, 2023

Estimated total gross 279254 | 471233 | 14.239.63 493.94 465.34 - 612.93 23.320.6]
carmying amount at default

ECL- simplified approach - 194.00 586.24 2034 19.30 - - 519.88
Net carrying amount 2,792.4 4,518.33 | 13,653.39 473.60 449.54 22,500.73
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Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. [nvestments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewsd by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on an annual basis and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's

Finance team. The limits ace set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to
make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the componants of the balance gheet at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 iz the carrying
amounts as illustrated in Note 7(c).

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract asset:

Ameunt

(Rs. In

lakh&)
Impairment allowance as on April 01, 2022 1,783.58
Add/ (less): Provision for expected credit losses {963.70)
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2023 819.88
Add: Provision for expected credit losses 122.65
Impairment allewance as on March 31, 2024 042.53

The sigmficant change m the balance of trade receivables and contract asset are disclesed in note 7(b){i) and 7(b)(ii) respectively.

{¢Y Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company
monitors its risk of a shortage of fonds using a liquidity planning taol.

Tha Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuing of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, cash
credits, and advance payment tenms.

{a) Financing arrangsements
The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowings fagilities at the end of the reporting

As at Agat
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Floating rate
Expiring within one vear { Cash credit from banks) 3,637 .67 3.551.90

3.637.07 3.351.90

{b) Maturities of financial liabilities
The table bebow summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based oo contractual undiscounted payments.

Balance as at March 31. 2024

Particulars On Less than 1105 »5 Total Carrying
demand 1 year years Years undiscounted amount of
contractual liabilities
eash flows
Lease liabilities - 7740 237.60 110.25 425.25 318.27
Borrowings
Vehicle loans* - 32.99 69.20 - 122.19 11116
Cash credit from banks 209.66 : 909.66 909.66
Trade payables - 13,356.43 - - 13.356.43 13.356.43
Payable on purchase of Property, plant - 22278 - - 22278 222.78
and cquipment
Employes dues - 1,433.52 - - 1.453.52 1,453.52
Security deposits - 3842 - - 38.42 38.42

* in¢luding interest accrued but not due on borrowings
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Balance as at March 31. 2023

Particulars On Less than 1te5 =5 Teotal Carrying
demand I year years vears undiscounted amount of
cantractnal liahilities
cash flows
Lease liabilities - 113,40 45360 33165 20865 634 .44
Borrowings
Vehicle loans™ - 70.01 122.18 - 19219 171.10
Cash credit from banks 948.10 - - - 048.10 943.10
Borrowings from related parties 20.00 - - - 20,00 20.00
Trade payables - 10.366.01 - - 10.366.01 10.366.01
Other financial liabilities - - - - -
Payable on purchase of Property, plant and equipment - 2.36 - = 236 136
Employee dues - 1.142.31 - - 1,142.31 1.142.31
Security deposits - 3942 - - 3942 39.42
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 1.52 - - 1.52 1.52

*including interest acerued but not due on borrowings

41: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securitics preminom and all other equity reserves
aftributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirememts of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders. return capital to sharcholders or
issuc new shares. The Company monitors capital uging a gearmg ratio, which 1s net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans and bomowings, ess cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings and lease liabtlities {refer note 14(a) and 14(b})) 1,338.50 1,772.81
Less: cash and cash equivalents {refer note 7( ¢)) 6,157.67 5,866.32
Net debt (4.319.17) (4.093.51)
Equity 44 462 46 39.027.90
Total Capital 44.462.46 39.927.90
Capital and net debt 39.643.29 35,834.30
Gearing Ratio -12.16% =11.42%

In order o achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing leans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenamts would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the reporting vear.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

oo | Gurugram

SKR
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42, Ratio analvsis and ity el

Ratio

March 31,

%o/ Times Numerator Demominatar 2024 March 31, 2023 | % change | Reason for variance > 25%
Current Ratio Times Current assets Current liabilities 1.71 1.83 -6.32% | Not applicable
Primarly on account of
Debt-Equity Ratio Times Total debt* Total Equity 0.03 0.04]  -32.20%|decrease in total debt in the
vear ended March 31, 2024,
Eamings Iavalla.ble for Debt service =
debt service= Net profit L. .
hefore taxes — Interest & Prncipal Primarly on aceount af
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Times . Repayments 95.61 54.04 49 30" | decrease in debt in the year
depreciation and . i
o ) including lease ended March 31, 2024
amortization+ Finance lisbilicy
Cost abilicy
Retun pn Equity Ratio %% Prefit for the year™™ Average toial equily 20.44% 22 % -9.94% | Not applicable
Inventory Tumover Ratio Times Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 530 340 T.50% | Not applicabls
Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio | Times Revenue from operations A\'crz_agc L= 622 723  -12.90%|Not applicable
Receivablesits
Met purchases = Gross Averase Trade
Trade Pavables Tumover Ratio Timnes purchases - purchase Py abf 1.06 Bt =11 87%| Mot applicable
cetarm yabies
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Times Revenue from operations ;&a‘;irt:lge Working 6.10 G.13 -1-55%| Mot applicable
Net Profit Ratio B Profit for the year** Revenue 6.67% T.25% -8.00%| Now applicable
operaticns
Earmings before interest | Capital Employed =
, ) & and tax = Profic forthe | Total equity- " Je o .
Retum oo Capital Empleyed % year + Finance costs + (ntangible assets + 25.719% 26.75% 3.61%| Not applicable
Total tax expense Taotal debt®
Betum on Investment % Income on Invesiment Average Lnvestroents 2071% 24.84%|  -16.61%|Not applicable

*Total debt is calenlated as non-corrent borrowings plus current borrowings plus non-current lease liabilitics plus current lease habilibies.

** Profil after tax before ether comprehenyive income
## includes both current and non current Trade receivables.
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43. Other Statuiury Information

1} The Company does not have any Benami property, wherg any procesdings has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami propurty

i} The Company does not have any ransactions with struck-off companies under scotion 248 of The Companies Act, 2013,

iii) The Company does nut have any changes or satisfaction which 15 yet to be registered with ROC beyond the staturory peried.

i¥) The Company has not traded or invested in crypie cumency or vinual currency

¥} The Company has not advanced any lean or investad fund in any other person(s) or entity(ies), mcluding farcign entities {intermedtaries) with the understanding that the
intermediary shall:

a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on of the behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) Provide any guaranteg, security o the like to or on behalf of the ultimaie beneficianes.

vi} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) ot entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recordad in writing or
otherwise) that the company shall:

) Direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entities identified in anv manner whatsoever by or on of the behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) Provide any guaranty, secunity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiares

vii) The Company docs not have any such transactions which is not recorded in books of account that have been surtendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessment under the Income Tax Aci, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provision of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961)
viii) The Company hus not been declarcd as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institation or other lender,

4. Employee Stock Orptivn Scheme

The Company has adopted the Interarch Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 (“ESOP 2023") pursvant to the teselutions passed by the Board of Directors on August 17, 2023 and
our Shareholders on August I8, 2023 which was amended pursuant to cesclution passed by the Board of Directors on 8th March 2024, and our Shareholders on 5th March, 2024,
As per the ESOP 2023, the Company has the right w grant share options to qualifying employees once they have successfilly completed a year of service. However, the acual
vesting of these share optiens depends on completion of a specified minimum employment period with the company and/or the fulfillment of any specified perforrmance conditions.
The Compensation Committee namely Nomination and Remuneration Committes will determine the exercise price and pricing formula, following the guidelines laid down by
applicable accounting standards. The method for valuation of options shall be deienmined by the Compensation Commitiee namely Nomination and Remuneration Committee
from time to time in accordance with ESOP 2023, As on date oo sieck options have becn granted under the ESQP 2023

45, Buyback of shares

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 17, 2023 and by Shareholders by passing Special Resclution atan Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August
18, 2023, approved & proposal to buy back the equity shares of the Company. This scheme includes buy back of fully paid-up equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10} each of the
Compuny 2t 3 prive Rs. 67 per equity share from the shareholders of the Company payable in cash which 1s more than 10% of the aggregaie of the total paid-up share capital and
free reserves of the Company, based on the latest audited financial statements of the Company as on March 31, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of Section 68 and
Section 70 of the Companics Act, 2013 (“Act’) read with Rule 17(1)(n) of the Companics {Share capital and debentures Rules), 2014, as amended and other applicable pravisions
(the process hereinafier referred to as the “Buyback™} The Company has boughl back 5.84,708 No's of equity shazes for an aggregate amount of Rs 3,900.00 lakhs being 11 34%
of the ‘Total paid up equity share capital and Free reserves’ as defined in the Act as at March 31, 2023 at price of Rs. 667 per equity share The equity shares bought back were
extinguished on September 25, 2023, Capital redemption reserve was credted to the exlent of share capital extinguished {Rs. 58 47 lakhs) from retained eamings. The excess cosl

of buyback of Rs 3.841.53 lakhs over par value of shares were offered from gencral rescrve and comesponding tax on buyback of Rs. 428.13 lakhs were offset from retained
eamings.

46. The Company uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audin trail facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except for direct changes to database using certain access rights. Wherever andit trail is enabled, there has net beea any
instance where audit trail feature has been tampered with, in respect of the accounting software.

47. Events after the reporting year

(i) All other events has been disclosed under the respective notes to accounts wherever requiced

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of:
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NOTICE OF AGM

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 41** ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED (“THE COMPANY”) WILL BE HELD ON AUGUST 3™
2024 AT 09.30 A.M. (IST), AT SHORTER NOTICE AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
SITUATED AT Farm No-8, Khasra No. 56/23/2, DERA MANDI ROAD, MANDI VILLAGE, TEHSIL
MEHRAULI, NEW DELHI - 110047, India TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. ADOPTION OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 and the reports Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.

2. TO RE-APPOINT MR. GAUTAM SURI (DIN 00149374), WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR WHO RETIRES
BY ROTATION AS A DIRECTOR AND, IN THIS REGARD, TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO
PASS THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Gautam Suri who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as Director (designated as a Whole Time Director) on the Board of the Company. Mr.
Gautam Suri reappointed as a director immediately on retirement by rotation, shall continue to
hold his office of whole time director, and such re-appointment as such director shall not be
deemed to constitute a break in his appointment as WTD.

3. TO RE-APPOINT MR. ISHAAN SURI (DIN 02714298), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AS A
DIRECTOR AND, IN THIS REGARD, TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ishaan Suri (DIN 02714298), who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby Re-appointed as a Director
of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION TO COST AUDITORS:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
the remuneration payable to M/s JSN & CO, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 455),
appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, as Cost



Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
Financial Year ending March 31, 2025, amounting to Rs.65,000 (Rupees Sixty Five Thousand
Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred in connection
with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that approval of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors
of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including seeking all necessary
approvals to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that
may arise in this regard.”

5. INCREASE IN BORROWING LIMITS OF THE COMPANY

To consider and approve if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following as
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, ofthe
Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force), and the articles of association of the Company, consent is hereby accorded
to the Board to borrow any sum or sums of money from time to time at their discretion for the
purpose of the business of the Company, from any one or more banks, financial institutions,
mutual funds and other persons, firms, bodies corporate or by way of loans or credit facilities
(fund based or non-fund based) or by issue of bonds on such terms and conditions and with or
without security as the Board may think fit, which together with the moneys already borrowed
by the Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained fromthe bankers of the Company in
the ordinary course of business) and being borrowed by the Board at any time shall not exceed
in the aggregate at anytime Rs. 700 crores (Rupees Seven hundred Crores Only) irrespective of
the fact that such aggregate amount of borrowings outstanding at anyone time may exceed the
aggregate for the time being of the paid-up capitalof the Company and its free reserves that is
to say reserves not set apart for any specific purpose. The above amount is approved by the
Board for one year and to be reviewed again based on business requirements

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, to give effect to the above resolutions, Mr. Arvind Nanda, Managing
Director and Mr. Gautam Suri, Whole time Director of the Company, be and are hereby severally
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, including to settle any question,
difficulty or doubt that may arise and to finalise and execute all documents and writings as may
be necessary.”

6. TO SELL, LEASE OR OTHERWISE DISPOSE OFF WHOLE OR SUBSTANTIALLY WHOLE OF ANY
OF UNDERTAKING/S OF THE COMPANY:

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013
(as amended or re-enacted from time to time) and other applicable provisions, if any, and
subject to the approval of shareholders in general meeting, the consent of the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to charge/mortgage/hypothecation anyof its



movable and/ or immovable properties wherever situated both present and future or to sell,
lease or otherwise dispose off the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the
Company or where the Company owns more than one undertaking, of the whole or substantially
the whole of any such undertaking(s) and to create a charge/mortgage/hypothecation, on such
terms and conditions at such time(s) and in such form and manner, and with such ranking as to
priority as Mr. Arvind Nanda, Managing Director and Mr. Gautam Suri, Whole time Director,
severally, in its absolute discretion thinks fit on the whole or substantially the whole of the
Company's any one or more of the undertakings or all of the undertakings of the Company in
favour of any bank(s) or body(ies) corporate or person(s) whether shareholders of the Company
or not, together with interest, cost, charges and expenses thereon for amount at any time not
exceeding Rs. 700 crores (Rupees Seven hundred Crores Only) or theaggregate of the paid-up
capital and free reserves of the Company, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific
purpose at the relevant time, whichever is higher.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the securities to be created by the Company aforesaid may rank
prior/pari- passu/subservient with/to the charge/mortgage/hypothecation already created or
to be created by the company as may be agreed to between the concerned parties".

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, Mr. Arvind Nanda,
Managing Director and Mr. Gautam Suri, Whole time Director of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorized to do all such act(s), deed(s), matter(s) and thing(s) as may be
deemed necessary and settle any or all questions/matters arising with respect to the above
matter, and to execute all such paper(s), letter(s) and document(s) as may be necessary for the
purpose of giving effect to this resolution, and to take such other incidental and ancillary steps
in this regard, as may be considered desirable or expedient inthe best interest of the Company
and its shareholders.”

By the Order of the Board
FOR INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Date : 23/07/2024

Place : Noida Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN No. 00149426 DIN: 00149374



Notes:

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT
BE MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED.

2. The explanatory statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to
special business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Proxies, if any, in order to be effective must be received at the company’s registered office not
later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting. Proxies shall not have any right to
speak at the meeting.

4. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member
holding more than ten percent. of total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

5. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representatives to attend the Meeting in
terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the Company a certified copy
of the Board Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the
Meeting.

5. Documents relating to any of the items mentioned in the notice are open for inspection at the
registered office of the company on any working day during business hours.

6. Only bonafide members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members/Proxy
holders, in possession of valid attendance slips duly filled and signed will be permitted to attend the
meeting. The Company reserves its right to take all steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-
members from attending the meeting.

7. Members are requested to inform the company immediately, if any change in their address.

8. Consent has been obtained from the shareholders for holding this meeting on shorter notice.

9. The Route Map for the meeting is annexed with the notice.

10. Any query relating to financial statements must be sent to the Company’s Registered Office at
least seven days before the date of the Meeting.

11. The Register of Members of the Company shall remain closed from 29 July, 2024 to 03™ August,
2024 (both days inclusive).

By the Order of the Board
FOR INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Date : 23/07/2024

Place : Noida Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN No. 00149426 DIN: 00149374



Information of Directors who are being appointed/ re-appointment or whose remuneration is being
proposed at this AGM, applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards-
2, as on the date of Notice

NAME GAUTAM SURI ISHAAN SURI
DIN 00149374 02714298
Date of Birth 30/09/1952 04/08/1981
Age 71 Years 42 Years
Original date of 30/11/1983 26/09/2011

Appointment

Appointed as a Whole Time
Director w.e.f 15/01/2024

Qualifications

Bachelor’s Degree in technology
in Mechanical Engineering from
the Indian Institute of
Technology Delhi

Bachelor’s Degree in Science
from London School of
Economics and Political
Science

Experience and
expertise in
specific functional
area

30 years of Experience in Pre-
Engineered Steel Building
Industry

14 years of experience in Pre-
Engineered Steel Building
Industry

Terms & conditions
of re-appointment
and remuneration

As per Company’s Policy on Nomination, Remuneration and Board

Diversity

Remuneration
drawn during
FY 2023-24

Please refer Corporate Governance Report which forms part of

the Annual Report for FY 2023-24

No. of Board
Meetings attended
during FY 2023-24

8

Shareholding

5,729,046 Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each

5,39,930 Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each

Directorships
held in other
Indian companies
including equity
listed companies

SIGNU HOMES PRIVATE LIMITED

IGS HOLDINGS PVT LTD

SIGNU HOMES PRIVATE
LIMITED

IGS HOLDINGS PVT LTD

Membership/
Chairmanship of
committees in
Indian Companies

Stakeholder Relationship
Committee -Member
Risk Management Committee —
Chairman & Member
Corporate Social Relationship
Committee-Member

Stakeholder Relationship
Committee -Member




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE SECTION 102(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM No.4

As per Notification dated 31st December, 2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, provisions relating to the auditing of cost
accounting records are applicable to the Company. Accordingly, on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 11th June, 2024, approved the
appointment of JSN & CO, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 455), for the conduct of the
audit of the cost accounting records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March,
2025, at a remuneration of 65,000 (Rupees Sixty Five Thousand only) plus taxes as applicable
and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actuals subject to ratification by the Members
as required pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014.

JSN & CO , Cost Accountants have, as required under Section 141 of the Act, consented to act
as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 and confirmed their eligibility
to conduct the audit of the cost accounting records of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is concerned or interested
in the resolution. Accordingly, the Board recommends passing the resolution as set out in item
no. 4 of this notice as an ordinary resolution.

ITEM NO.5 & 6 INCREASE IN BORROWING LIMITS OF THE COMPANY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 180(1) (a) and 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act,
2013, the following powers can be exercised by the Board of Directors with the consent of the
company by a Special Resolution:

* To pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge all or any part of the moveable orimmovable
properties of the Company and the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company;

e To borrow money, where the money to be borrowed, together with the money already
borrowed by the Company will exceed the aggregate of the Company’s paid-up share capital
and free reserves and securities premium, apart from temporary loans obtained from the
company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business, except.

The Board is of the view that the in order to further expand the business activities of the
Company and for meeting the expenses for capital expenditure, the Company may be further
required to borrow money, either secured or unsecured, from the banks/ financial
institutions/other body corporate, from time to time, and to pledge, mortgage, hypothecate
and/or charge any or all of the movable and immovable properties of the Company and/or
whole or part of the undertaking of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to increase the limits to borrow money up to
Rs. 700 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred Crores) and to secure such borrowings by pledging,
mortgaging, hypothecating the movable or immovable properties of the Company amounting
up to Rs. 700 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred Crores).



It is, therefore, required to obtain fresh approval of members by Special Resolution under
Sections 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, to enable the Board of Directors
to borrow money in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the
Company and to create charge on the assets over the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolutions.

By the Order of the Board
FOR INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Date : 23/07/2024

Place : Noida Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN No. 00149426 DIN: 00149374



ATTENDANCE SLIP

41 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING | SATURDAY, 3%° AUGUST, 2024

INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Farm No-8, Khasara no. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road, Mandi Village, Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-

110047

CIN No.

U45201DL1983PLC017029

1.

Folio No./DP ID-Client ID

Name and Address of the
Shareholder in Block Letters

No. of Shares held

Name of Proxy (if any) in Block
Letters

| hereby record my presence at the 41 Annual General Meeting of the Company on Saturday, the
03.08.2024 at 09.30 a.m. at Farm No-8, Khasara no. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road, Mandi Village,
Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-110047

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy/Representaive*

*Strike out whichever is not applicable

Note:

1.

Please hand over the Attendance Slip duly completed and signed at the REGISTRATION
COUNTERS

Copy of the Annual Report 2024 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent to all the members at their respective email ID’s/ and
address registered with the company.




Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U45201DL1983PLC017029

Name of the Company: INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED,

Registered office: Farm No-8, Khasara No. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road Tehsil Mehrauli, New
Delhi-110047

Name of the Member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Clint Id:

NP ID-

I/ We being the member of ............ , holding.....shares, hereby appoint
1. Name: .....cce..e..

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ..........., or failing him
2. Name: ......ccce......

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ...........,
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 41 Annual
General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on 03" day of August 2024 at 9.30
A.M. on Shorter Notice at the registered office of the Company at Farm No-8, Khasara No.
56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-110047 and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S.No Type of Particulars Assent Dissent
Resolution
1 ORDINARY ADOPTION OF AUDITED
RESOLUTION STANDALONE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS-

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

2 ORDINARY TO RE-APPOINT MR.
RESOLUTION GAUTAM SURI (DIN
00149374), WHOLE
TIME DIRECTOR WHO
RETIRES BY ROTATION
AS A DIRECTOR

3 ORDINARY TO RE-APPOINT MR.
RESOLUTION ISHAAN  SURI  (DIN
02714298), WHO

RETIRES BY ROTATION
AS A DIRECTOR




4 ORDINARY RATIFICATION OF
RESOLUTION REMUNERATION TO
COST AUDITORS
5 SPECIAL INCREASE IN
RESOLUTION BORROWING LIMITS OF
THE COMPANY
6 SPECIAL TO SELL, LEASE OR
RESOLUTION OTHERWISE  DISPOSE
OFF WHOLE OR
SUBSTANTIALLY WHOLE
OF ANY OF
UNDERTAKING/S OF
THE COMPANY-
Signed this ..... day of...... 2024 Affix Revenue

Stamp
Signature of Shareholder
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, before the commencement of the Meeting.




ROUTE MAP FOR 41 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING-2024

{INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED}
AGM Venue: Farm No-8, Khasara No. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road,
Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-110047

Dera Village, Dera Mandi, New Delhi, Delhi to Interarch Building Products Private Limited, 56/23/2, Dera  Walk 430 m, 6 min
Mandi Rd, Dera Mandi Retreat, Dera Village, Dera Mandi, New Delni, South Delhi, Delhi 110074
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SR Batuisoi & Co. LLP

&7, Institutional Area
Grastersd Accountents Sector 44, Gurugram - 122 003

Haryana, [ndla

Tel: +21 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Interarch Building Products Limited (formerly known as Interarch
Building Products Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Interarch Building Products Limited
(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)(*the Company®), which comprise the
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) it the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit of the financial staterments in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of onr
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements wnder the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

%R, Bathuol & Co LLP, 2 Limaled Lisbility Partnership with LLP [dontity Mo, AAG-d 234
Fepd Otfes: 23, Caggns Blrect, Block "B, 1d Flacr, Kadoata T (16
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a trne and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detccting frauds and other
irregularities; sclection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the acconnting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fravd or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue ag a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of ¢he Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+  Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material migstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*+  Obtain an understanding of intenal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future evenis or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

*+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

¢ We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Repart) Order, 2020 (“the Order”™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (iXvi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss inciuding the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(c) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The medificationrelating to the maintenance of accounts and other matiers connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);
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(g) With respect fo the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(b) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid/
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(1) With respect to the other mattets to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

il

iv.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its finaneial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 35(b) to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any lopg-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The mavagement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief no, as
disclosed in the note 43 to the financial statements, funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), incInding foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person(s) or
entity(ies) identified in any manaer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 43 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other person(s) or entity(ies) identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on such audit procedwres performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, as stated in Note 46 to the financial
statements, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except for direct
changes to database using certain access rights. Wherever audit trail is enabled, during the
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course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of accounting software.

For S.R. Batlibei & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 108044
UDIN: 24108044BKFLYK 4094
Place of Signatare: Gurugram
Date: June 11, 2024
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I UNDER THE HEADING OF “REPORT
ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR AUDIT REPORT
OF EVEN DATE

Re: Interarch Building Products Limited (formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private
Limited) (‘the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the nommal course of audit and to the best of our kmowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i)(@)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment,

(i)(a}(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles

(i)

()

()(d)

)

{ii)(a)

(i) (b}

assets.

All Property, plant and equipment were physically verified by the management during
the year 2022-23 in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held
in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory including inventory
lying with third parties at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the
coverage and the procedures of such verification by the management is appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggrepate for each class of inventory were noticed on
such physical verification.

As disclosed in note 14{a) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in aggregaie from banks or financial
institutions during the vear on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks or
financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.
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(iii)(a)

(11)(b)

(tii)(c)

(iit)(d)

(@i)(e)

(@i)(f)

(v}

)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

During the year, the Company has not made investment in, provided any loans or
advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured, stood guarantee or provided
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partmerships or any other parties except
loan to employees which are as follow:

Particulars Amount (INR in lakhs)
Agpregate amount of loans provided during the year 179.56
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect 104.41

of above loans

The terms and conditions of the grant of all such loans to employees are not prejudicial
to the Company’s interest.

In respect of loans granted to employees, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

There were no loans granted to employees which was fallen due during the year, that
have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
Scction 143(1} of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of goods, and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same,

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, providemt fund,

employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularty deposited with
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the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excige, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues which were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.
(viid(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as
follows:
Amount Period to .
Na;lt:t':;eme Nature of dues (INR in which the Forunils ;r::;;nt:spute
lakhs)* amount relates
Finance Act,1994 Interest on Service Tax (Non- 125.37 200809 and | Commissioner
payment of interest on Service 2009-10 Customs, Excise &
Tax demand on import of Service Tax Appellate
design charges under reverse Tribunal, Allahabad
charge)
West Bengal Value | VAT (Non-production of 312.06 2007-2008 to | Senior Joint
Added Tax Act, documents in support of the 2009-2010 Commissioner,
2003 VAT return) Commercial Tax,
Kolkata
Goa, Daman and Sales Tax (Higher duty 4404 2001-2002 Bombay High Court at
Diu (Sales Tax) Act, | demand on account of wrong Goa
1964 classification of goods)
Jharkhand Value VAT (including penalty) 15.76 2008-09 Joint commissioner of,
Added Tax, 2005 (Demand of tax and penalty on Commercial Tax,
account of excess deduction of Jharkhand
labour cost)
Income Tax Act, Income Tax (Disallowance 129.34 AY.2006-2007 | Income Tax Appellate
1961 under Section §0-IB) Tribunal (ITAT), New
Delhi
Income Tax Act, Income Tax (Double taxation 46.44 ALY, 2020- Commissioner of
1961 of Interest Income and 2021 Income Tax (Appeals)
disallowance of other amount
allowable as deduction)
Central Sales Tax CST (Non submission of Form 1.38 2010-2011 Additional
Act, 1956 F) Commissioner
{DVAT), Delhi
Pondur Panchayat, | House Tax (Demand raised by 13.92 2010-11to | President (A)
Tamil Nadu Pondur Panchayat towards non 2022-23 Executive Officer,
payment of House Tax) Sriperumbudur
Panchayat Union
State Industries Infrastructure and Amenities 18.58 2008-09 to Madras High Court
Promotion charges with respect to 2023-24
Cotporation of Industrial Building approval
Tamil Nadu Limited | (including interest)
(SIPCOT) Rules
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Amount Period to .
gtint:let:f the Nature of dues (INR in which the E.:-:;ndi;: cre dispute
lakhs)* amount relates
Employees Provident fund 30.73 200708 to Central Government
Provident Fund & 2014-15 Industrial Tribunal
Miscellaneous (CGIT)-cum-Labour
Provisions Act, Court, Lucknow
1952
Finance Act, 1994 Interest on Service Tax and 143.36 2017-18 to Commissioner
Krishi Kalyan Cess (KKC) 2021-22 Customs, Excise &
Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Allahabad
Tharkhand Value VAT (Demand of tax on 60.34 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner
Added Tax, 2005 account of disallowance of of Commercial Taxes,
VAT) Jharkhand
Goods and Service | GST (including penalty) on 67.02 2017-18 to CGST Appeals,
tax Act, 2017 account of disatlowance of 2021-22 Chennai
Input tax ¢redit (ITCH.
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 930.32 2017-18 High Court,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Uttarakhand
disallowance of Input tax
credit ('TTCY).
Goods and Service | GST (including interest) on 7.44 2017-18 CGST Appeals, West
tax Act, 2017 account of disallowance of Bengal
Input tax credit (ITC").
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 74.45 2017-18 to CGST Appeals,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of 2021-22 Rajasthan
disallowance of Input tax
credit ('TTC").
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 3.15 2017-18 CGST Appeals,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Gujarat
disallowance of Input tax
eredit CITCY.
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 106.59 2018-19 Agsistant
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Commissioner,
disallowance of Imput tax Vadodara
credit (TTCY.
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 97.13 2017-18 SGST Appeals, Assam
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of
disallowance of Input tax
credit (ITC").
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 24.76 2018-19 Assistant
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Commissioner, SGST
disallowance of Input tax Tezpur Assam
credit (TTC".
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 225 2018-19 State Tax Officer,
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Bhubaneswar, Odisha
disallowance of Input tax
credit (TTC).
Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 154,27 2018-19 Deputy commissioner
tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of of State Tax,
disallowance of Input tax Maharashtra
credit (TTC).
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Amount Period to
gtf:;:fthe Nature of dues {INR in which the zor:]?ldi:here dispute
lakhs)* amount relates P i

Goods and Service | GST on account of 12.55 2018-19 Superintendent of

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax Central Tax,
credit ('TTC". Kamataka

Goods and Service | GST on account of 13.07 2019-20 Superintendent of

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax Central Tax, Dadar
eredit (TTC").

Goods and Service | GST (including interest and 4225 2019-20 Proper Officer,

tax Act, 2017 penalty) on account of Faridabad, Haryana
disallowance of Input tax
credit {'TTCH.

Goods and Service | GST on account of 3440 2019-20 Deputy comumisstoner

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax of State Tax, Andhra
credit ('1TC". Pradesh

Goods and Service | GST (including interest) on 2243 2019-20 Excise and Taxation

tax Act, 2017 account of disallowance of Officer State, Punjab
Input tax credit ('[TC").

Goods and Service | GST on account of 3.53 2019-20 Superintendent, CGST

tax Act, 2017 disallowance of Input tax Division, Telangana
eredit ('TTC").

Goods and Service | GST (inclnding interest) on 5.46 201920 Superintendent, CGST

tax Act, 2017 account of disallowance of & Excise, Gujarat
Input tax credit "ITC).

* Net of amounts paid under protest of Rs. 26.14 lakhs.

{viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously
unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments nnder the lncome Tax Act,
1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thercon to any lender.

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
instittion or government or any government authority.

(ix)(¢) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no fimds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(ix)}f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(x)(a)

()(b)

(x1)(a)

(xi)(b}

(xi)(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(@)

(xiv)(b)

(xv)

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer,
Turther public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
¢lause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the vear,

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As repregented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement 1o report on clause 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are

(xvi)(b)

(xvi)(c)

(xvi)d)

not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clanse (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clanse 3(xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

{xxXa)

(xx)(b)

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial vear and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us o believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance shest date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act),
in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This
matter has been disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

There are no ungpent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of Section
135 of Companies Act. This matfer has been disclosed in note to 26 the financial
statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301 003E/E300005

UDIN No: 24108044BKFLYK4094
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 11, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the intemnal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Interarch
Building Products Limited (formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited) (“the
Company™) as of March 31,2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAT?).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditer’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAJL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance gbout whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of intemal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed nisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasgnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Cowpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material
misstatements due to error or frand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batlibot & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
I irm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Membership Number: 108044
UDIN: 24108044BKFLYK4094
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 11, 2024
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{formerly known as [nterarch Building Products Private Limdted)
CIN: U45201 DL 1983 PLCOITO2Y

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless slberwise statedy

Particulars MNotes As al As at
March 31, 2024 Mlarch 31, 1833
Agsets
Nob-ourrent assets
Fropeny, plant and equipment 3 Ige 72 10,39] 53
Capital work-in-progress 3 1268 14 -
Invesimrenn prope mies 4 27664 FLER L
Inanaible assets 3 1542 170
Right-nf-use asscls & 363361 335758
Fimancial assets
{i Imvgstments HEL 53647 50142
(i} Trade reczivables TibNi 481324 1.857.04
{iii} Laans ey 4513 -
{iv] Other financial assels TN 27020 |59 %4
TOT-CUmENT tax 355¢1s (Nck) 3 230 52 187 8%
Nzt NOR-CUTTENS ASSELS Y 27073 40832
Total md-0 Wrront a86cts 2403753 21,130.75
Corremt assets
Inverionies I} 14,684 34 13,607 38
Cantract assers TN 132320 2,791 %4
Finameial agsels
{1 Trasdy reveivables - 1707519 15.670.73
(i) Cash and cash equivalentz Teeh 615767 5.866.32
{iii} Bank balances other than (1i) shove Ty T.elZ 50 6,054 44
0w Loans Teh 6231 21.63
{v) Olher fmancial assels k] 142 16 100 83
Othet current a:sas 11 2,203 61 1.960 13
Total current assets 51.461.98 4637152
Total assets 75,500,851 67.582.5T
Equity and Fabilities
Equity
Equity share capical 12 1.4 5 1,500 06
Onher aquily
Equity coninibution 13 31332 24 40
Capital redeimpuion raserve 13 A7 -
Soecuritics promium 13 514997 2.149.97
Deneral reserve 13 1EIT S 565D (2
Retained carmings 13 3L6EL 52 AR ]
Total equity 4446246 39.927.90
Liabili thea
Nom-curremt liabilities
Financial liabibes
i} Bormwings 14ia) 44.37 11056
it} Lease abilitics L i 57774
Ciosemment grants 15 139 386
Employes defined benefit linbiliies (ne 33 111200 0638
Defemred tax liabwlines (net) 3 371 80 JEY 47
Taotal non-current liabilities 181952 Ligem
Current liabilities
Contract liabilives 16 11638 64 10,602 61
Finanzial liabilities
[1} Bermawingy Ihay AR 102781
[nib Lease liabiliies 14b) 50,51 5670
[in} Trade payables T4y
-Tonal outstanding ducy of mivey enlerprises snd small erlerprises 1,081 66 907,10
<Totat ourstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small 12.275.37 EEEER |
CULCTPGCE
[iv} Qther Mionapcial labiliiey 141d) 171331 L. 186 44
Provigiens 17 16775 13748
Grogvemment grants 1% 1.47 147
Ernployes defingd bens G lakilitiss (net) 33 119458 FORG
Oher curtent liabilities IR Y37 8R 12407 14
Taotal current liabilities 301583 25385646
Toral biabilitics 31 43835 IT.53T467
Total equity apd liabilities I5.500.51 4750257

The sceompanying otes forrm an intégral part of these Financial Statements
As per our repont of cven date

— N
For S.R. Batliboi & o, LLP Forand on behalf of the Board gl 17
1Al Firm Registratvon No 300056300005 rarch Building Products l,?nilgd

wirtered Mecounianis %
/ -~ e W
LN / N

Arvind Nanda . I
Managing Direcior
DIN: H)14%426

Manish Kemar Garg
Chiel Exgeutive Officer

Plavs ; Gurugram
Datc: June L1, 2024

Hlace : Noida
Dane - June 11, 2024
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loterarch Building Products Limited

{formerly konown as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO17029

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Face value of R4, 10.00 (March 31. 2023 Rs 10.00)

Particulars Notes For the year ¢nded For the year ended
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
lacome
Revenue from operations 19 12933016 1,12,392.60
Other income 20 1300 28 1.246 46
Total income (I} 1.30.631.44 1.13.639.06
Expenses
Cost of raw matenal and components consumed 21 82,903 83 7427353
Changes im inventories of finished goods and work in progress 22 (33773 (1.02519)
Employee benefits expense 23 11,896 82 933630
Finance costs 24 21624 25962
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 797 65 72962
Qther expenses 26 23 75575 19.169.91
Tolal expenses (IT} 11904256 1.02.743.79
Profit before tax {1-II=111) 11.588.88 1(.8%95.27
Tax expense
- Current 1ax 30 298922 232344
- Adiustment of income tax relating to earlier years (net} 1] (7.16) 528%
- Deferred tax (credit) / charge 30 (19.38) 42009
- Deferred tax {credit) for earlier year 30 - 147 3%)
Total income tax expense (IV) 2.962.63 2.749.03
Profit for the vear (III-1V=V) 8.626.20 §.146.24
Other comprehensive income (OCIH (V)
Ttem that will nat be re-classified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurement gams/(losses) of defined benefit habilicy 33 1078 (123714
Income tax effect i2 T} 3114
Other comprehensive income (OCI) for the year (net of tax) (V1) - gain/{loss) 8.07 {92.60)
Total comprehensive income (1) for the year (Y+VI[ = Y1I) §.634.27 8.053.64
Earnivgs per equity share
Basic & Diluted (in Rs ) 3l 3868 sS4 31

The accompanying notes form an miegral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
IC AT Firm Registration No  301003E/E300005

Eor and on behalf of the

Arvind Nanda
Managing Director
DIN: 00149424

-

Membership no 108044

: irectors of
Z Products Limited
own as Interarc i

ing Products Private Limited)

Goautam Suri
Whole Time Director

DIN uuu%ig?f
M
. é/

Al

Manish Kemar Garg Nidhi Goel
Chief Executive Officer Chiel Financial ONeer Company Secretary and
Compliance Otlicer
Membership no A19279
Place - Gurugram Place : Noida

Date June |1, 2024 Dare  June 11,2024
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO1T02Y

Statemnent of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2024

{Awmount in Rs. lakhs, vnless otherwise stated)

FParticulars Notes For the year ¢ended March 31, For the vear ended
2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 11,588 38 10,895 27
Adjustments (o reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows;
Depreciation and amortization expensc 25 797 63 12962
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances 26 12265 z
Bad debtsfadvances written off {net} 20 610 238 37
Bad debis recovered 20 (79 13) {30 70)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and gquipment 20 (1283 (10 §8)
Net gain on sale of investment properties 20 - {6 19)
Fair value gain on financial instrurnents at fair value through profit or loss (Unrealised) 20 (3539 {103)
Government grants 20 {1 47) 147
[ntersst income 20 {982 80y (574 12)
Provision for doubtful debis/ advances written back {ner) 20 - (448 68)
Fair value of guarantee charges 29&125 22842 42 3%
Gain on lease modification 20 (22 68) =
Interest expense 24 &0 35 12062
Ogerating profit before working capital changes 1168995 1095317
Adiustments for working capital:
Decrease in provisions (35915 (524 86}
Increase in trade payables 2,950 42 2497 70
Increase in other financial liabilities 31021 9208
Increase in other liabilities 766 87 1,852 04
[ncrease in trade recetvables {2,230 28 18,194 65)
[nerease in mventories {986 76) (254 82)
[nciease in other assets (970.51) (1,318 28)
{Increase) / Decrease in other financial agsets (24 73} 3393
Cash genercated from operations 11.186 02 5.106 37
Drect taxes paid (net of refunds) 8 303373 1,977 78
Net cash generated from operating activities (&) 8,152 29 3.128 59
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assats (1,838 66) (1,364 75)
Payment towards purchase of right to use assets (680 08) -
Proceeds from sale of property. plant 2nd equipment 3299 2662
Proceeds from sale of investment properties - 2340
(Purchase) of investiments = (300 00)
Emplayee lgans repayment 9973 64 45
Employee loans given {179 36) {58.42)
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturty of more than three months) (3,051 63) {4066 41)
Praceeds from bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 3373 342363
Interest received 963 09 33260
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (327581 {1.598 83)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Payment for buy back of shares 12, 13 & 45 (3,900 00) -
Tax on buy back of equity shares 13 & 43 (428 13) -
Proceeds frotm long-term borrowings FiCXiD - 3711
Repayment of long-term bomowings FleKn) {39 70) (4922)
(Repayment) of / Procgeds from short-term borrewings (net) F{CH i) {38 44} 77436
[mierest paid {25 45} (62 74}
Interest paid on Jeass liability 3 {56 96} (61 §4)
Payment towards principal portion of lease Hability 34 {56 45} (51 54)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities {C) (4,585 1% 52613
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 291.35 1,555.84
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year Fic) 5.866 32 4.010 48
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year Ficl 6.157.67 5.866.32
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Interarch Building Produacts Limited

(formerly known as lnterarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO1 7029

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless ptherwise stated)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
Particulars Masch 31. 2029 March 31. 2023
Balance with banks:
- LN CUITent ACCOunts 730 1097
- i cash credit accounts 1.001 56 42107
Depasits with eriginal maturity of three months or less 514636 543014
Cash on hand 245 414
|Cash and cash equivalents [vefer note 7(cKi)l 6,157.67 5,866.32
MNotes:
(i) Non-cash financing and investing actvities
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Modification of right to use assets 53 (237.04) 23742
(ii) Refer Nete 7{cXii) for Change in liabilities arising from financing activilies
The accompanying netes form an integral part of these Financial Statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batlibei & Co. LLP For and on behal{of Thectors-al

Chartered Accountants
irm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

vin Tulsyan Arvind Nanda
Managing Directo

DIN 00149426
”

Partnies

~Manish Kumar Garg
Chief Executive Offtcer

Place - Gurligram
Date . June 11. 2024

Place : Noida
Date . Jung 11, 2024
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Interarch Building Producis Limited

(formerly known as loterarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL 1983 PLCO17029

Statement of changes in equity for ¢the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs, Jakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity share capital
For the vear ended March 31, 2023

Farticulars Note Nomber of shares Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1,50,00,604 1,500.00
Changes in equity share capital
during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 12 1.50.00.60) 1.500.06
For the vear ended March 31. 2024
Facticulars MNote Number of shares Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2023 1,50,00,600 1,500.06
Changes in equity share capital during the year
due 10 buyback of shares (refer note 45} (5.84.708) {52.47)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 12 1.44.15,892 1.441.59
B, Other equity
For the vear ended March 31. 2023
FParticulars Reserve and surplus
Equity Capital. Securities | General Retained
contribution redempti | premium | reserve carnings Total
(Nate-13} on {Note 13) | {Note 13) {Note 13)
TESErYg
{Note 13}
Balance as at April 01, 2022 42,55 - | 914997 £,659.12 15,480.21 30,331.85
Addition during thg vear 42.35 - - - - 42.35
Profit for the vear - = - §,146.24 B, 14624
Other comprehensive income for the vear-{lossh - - - - {92,601 (92.60)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 84.90 - 9.149.97 5.659.12 23,533.85 35,427,654
For the yvear ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Reserve and surplus
Equity Capiral Secur?ﬁes Genersl Retai.ned
contribution redempti | premium | reserve earpings Total
(Note-13) on (Note 13) | [(MNote 13) (Note 13}
reserve
{Note 13)

Balance as at April 01, 2023 8490 - 9,149.97 5,659.12 23,533.85 38,427.84
Addition during the year 22842 - - - 22842
Profit for the year = - - §,6260.20 B.626.20
Other comprehensive income for the year-gain - - - - B.07 8.07
Total cemprehensive income for the year 313.32 - 9.149,97 505912 ¥2.168.12 47.290.53
Transactlons with owners of the Company
Buyback of equity shares (refer note 43) - 53.47 - (3.841.53) {58.4T) (3,841,53)
Tax on buy back of equity shares (refer note 43) - - - - {428.13) {42813
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3332 58.47 | 9.149.97 1.817.59 31.681.52 43.020.87
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Nature and purpose of reserves
Capital Redempfion Reserve

As per Comparnies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium, A

sum equal to the ngminal value of the shares so purchased is transforred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the
provisions of scction 69 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Secuarities premivm

Secarittes premium account represents the amoum received in cacess of par value of securitics (vquity sharcs), The reserve is utilised in accordance with
the provisions of the Companiss Aet, 2013,

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companics Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance
with applicable regulations. This represents appropriation of prafit by the Company. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of
cquity 1o another and is not an item of other comprehicnsive income.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits thar the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers 1o general reserve. Retained earnings include re-measurement
gain / {1oss) of defined benefit liability, net of taxes that will net be reclassificd to Statement of Profit and Loss. [t alse includes fair valus gain (net of tax)
on Property. plant and equipment and Right to use assets recognised on transition to Ind AS i.e. April 01, 2021,

Equity contribution

As per provisions of Ind AS, Guarantees reecived from related parties is indircetly a conteibution in form of Equity to the Company. The Company shoutd
record the guarantee charges at fair value ! at am’s length transaction. The fair value of the guarantee would have been paid for taking a similae
guarantee for a sotal fuciiities/limits (fund and non fund based) from banks taken by the Company from unrelated third party. The Company had not paid
any commission to the related party. Therefore, the Company considered this is akin to deemed capital contribution.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP @ { of the Board of Directors of
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Interarch Bailding Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1933PLC017029

Nates forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

Corporate information

Interarch Building Preducts Limited (formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited) ("the
Company”) was incorporated on November 30, 1983 as a private limited Company under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The Company's registered office is Farm No.-8, Khasra No. 56/23/2, Dera
Mandi Road. Mandi Village, Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi- 110047. The Company is engaged in the
manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of Pre- engineered steel construction solutions, metal roofing &
cladding system, metal false ceiling and light gauge framing system.

The Company has converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company, pursuant to a special
resolution passed in the extracrdinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held on October 13,
2023 and consequently the name of the Company has changed to Interarch Building Products Limited pursuant to
a fresh certificate of incorporation by the Registrar of Companies on December 15, 2023,

The Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved in the mesting of Board of Directors
and authonsed for issue on June 11, 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) natify under the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as amended from time to time) and
presentation and disclosure requitements of Division II of Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind-AS
comnpliant Schedule TH), as applicable.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

a}  Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments)

b}  Net defined benefit {asset)/ liability
The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it wili continue to operate as a going
concern.

The Finaneial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.} and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs.(Rs.
00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of material accounting policies
Current versus non—current classification
The Company presems assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is;
a}  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or
b)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading: or
¢} Expected to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting year; or
d)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A Bability is current when:
a)  Ttisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle:; or
b}  Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
€)  Ttis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting vear; or
d)  There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
" reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC0O17029

Notes forming part of the Finanecial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

L.

I

Foreign currencies

Items included in the Financial Statements are measurad using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee
(Rs.), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company's al functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are wranslated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary iterns are recognised in profit or lass. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of initial transaction.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part
of it} on the derecognition of a non-monstary asset or non-monetary liability relating io advance consideration, the
date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or nen-
monetary Hability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance,

the Company determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.
Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrument, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measwrement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 1akes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset ot Liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must he accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant’s ability 10 generate

economic benefiis by using Lthe asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in ils highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is reasured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is uncbservable
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Interarch Building Products Limited
(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201 DL1983PLCO17029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

v.

For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial staterments on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occutred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation {based

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) al the end of each reporting,
year.

The Company’s finance department includes team that determines the policies and procedurss for both recurring
fair value measurement. such as valuation of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes.
including level 3 fair values.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets. such as I[nvestment properties, corporate
guarantee and personal guarantee. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the finance team
after discussion with and approval by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
Managing Director {MI)). Selection eriteria include marker knowledge. reputatian. independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

The finance team and CFO decides. atter discussions with the CEO. MD and external valuers. which valuation
techniques and inputs to use for each case. At each reporting date. the finance team analyses the movements in the
values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's
accounting policies. For this analysis. the finance team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation te contracts and other relevant documents.

The finance team also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

On an interim basis, the finance team present the valuation results to the CFO. CEQ. MD and the Company’s

independent auditors. This includes a discussion of the major assumptions uscd in the valuations.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis

of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained
above,

Fair value related disclosure for financial instruments and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value
are disclosed in the relevant notes.

Revenue from contract with customers

‘The Company enters into two types of contracts with customers ie. fixed price contract and variable price
contract. Variable price contracts are such contracts whercin price of goods or services is calculated by reference
lv a base sieel price agreed with customers at the time of contract execution. The Company enters in variable price
contracts for sale of pre-engineered building and sale of building material contracts. Under these contracts. price
of pre~engineered building and building material are calculated in reference to steel prices.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transierred 1o the
customer at an amount that retlects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangemenis.
because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

The disclosure of significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 32.
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)

CIN:U45201 DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sale of Pre-engineered building (PEB) contracts

In respect of pre-engineered building contracts, revenue is recognised over a period of time using the input
methed (equivalent to peroentage of completion method; POCM) of accounting with eontract costs incurred
determining the degree of completion of the performance obligation,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,
price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer, Revenue also excludes
taxes collected from customers on behalf of the governmeni.

Percentage of completion is determined om the basis of proportion of the costs of shipment made and cost of
ercction incurred as against the total estimated cost of shipment and erection.

Contracts are combined when the Company believes the underlying goods and services are a single
performance obligation, single commercial objective or the consideration in one contract depends on another,
Else contracts are separated.

Where the total cost of a contract, based on technical and other estimates is expected to exceed the

corresponding contract value, such expected loss is provided for. The effect of any adjustment from revisions

to cstimate is included in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which revisions are made.

Liquidated damages (LD) represents the expected claim which the Company may need to pay for non-
fulfilment of certain commitments as per the terms of respective sales contract. These are determined on case
to case basis considering the dynamics of each contract and the factors relevant to that sale.

The Company provides installation services that are bundled together with the sale of products to a customner.
Contracts for bundled sales of product and installation services are considered as one performance obligations
because company believes underlying goods and services are a single performance obligation, single
commercial objective or the consideration in one contract depends on another, Hence the installation services
has been considered as a part of Sale of Pre-engineered building (PEB) contracts.

Sale of building materials

Revenue from sale of building materials is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the material. The payment terms depends upon each
contract entered into with the customer.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the coniract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated {¢.g., warranties). In determining the transaction price
for the sale of material, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

@®)

Variable Consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated ar contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue Teversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Interarch Building Preducts Limited
{formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. Jakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(ii)

(iii)

{iv)

Significant financing component
The Company applies the practical expedient for short-term advances received from customers. That is, the

promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component if the
vear between the transfer of the promised good or service and the payment is one year or less.
Warranty obligations

The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale.
These assurance-type warfanties are accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the

applicable interest rate. Interest income is included umder the head “other income" in the statement of profit
and loss.

Other

Other items of income are accounted as and when the rght to receive such income arises and it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Contract balances

a.

c.

Contract Assets:

Revenue eamed but not billed to customers against erection and sale of goods and services is reflected as
Contract assets because the receipt of consideration is conditional on Company's performance under the
contract (i< transfer control of related goods or services to the customer). Upon completion of the

installation and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assefs is reclassified to trade
receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of

financial assets in section XVI Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade Receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideratior: that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time
1s required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounling policies of financial assets in

section XVT Financial instraments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract Liabilities:

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is carlicr} from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Coniract liabilities are recognised as

revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.c., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known a¢ Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs_ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

V.

YL

Government grants

Govemment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all
attached conditions will be cormplied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the perieds that the relaled costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded al fair value
amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of
the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments.

The Company has elected to present the grant in the balance sheet as deferred income, which is recognised in
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful Life of the asset.
Taxes:

a. Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be tecovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used io compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the couniries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current mcome tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(¢ither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable Lax regulations are subject to interpretation and
considers whether il is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely
method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

b. Deferred tax

Deferrcd tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their camying amounts for financial repoating purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a

business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible ternporary differences, the camy forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recogaition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assel to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are

recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset 0 be recovered.
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Interarch Building Products Limited
(fermerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1982PLC0O17029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

VIl

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax velating to ilems recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in

ather comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forccast assumptions
used elsewhere in the Financial Statements and in other management reports.

¢.  Goods and service taxes {GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and service taxes paid, except :
- when the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable.
- when receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable ta, the taxation authority is included as part of other
current assets or liabilities in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment

Under the previous GAAP, Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress were carried in the
balance sheet at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated mnpairment loss (if any). On transition to
Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all items of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition
ie. April 01, 2021 to [nd AS at its farr value and use that fair values as its deemed cost at that date.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equiprment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant pants of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major imspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as
a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. The present vaiue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use
(if any) is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. As per
estimate of the management, the Company does not have any expected cost of decommission on any agset.

When significant parts are required o be replaced at regular intervals, the Company recognises such parts as
separate component of assets and depreciates separately based on their specific useful life. When an item of PPE

is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.
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Interarch Building Products Limited
(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201 DL1983PLC0O17029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless atherwige stated)

VIIL

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Tangible assets Useful life as per Schedule I1 Useful life estimated by the management
(in years} based on techincal assessment

(im years)

Factory building* 30 years 40 years

Non factory building* 60 years 40 years

Electrical Fittings 10 years 10 years

Plant and equipment 1§ yeurs 13 years

Office equipment 3 years 3 years

Fumiture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

Vehicles* 8 vears 7-8 years

Machinery spares are depreciated on straight line basis over the remaining useful life of related plant and equipment
or useful life of spare part, whichever is lower,

*The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
Buildings and Vehicle over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair
approximation of the year over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment properties

On wansition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2021), the Company has ¢lected to continue with the carrying value of all
investment properties measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrving value as the deemed cost of
investment properties.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.

86



Interarch Building Products Limited
(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO1702%

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Depreciation on factory buildings component of investment property having gross block of Rs. 132.52 lakhs is
calcnlated on a straight line basis over the remaining useful life after considering the overall useful life of 40
years (as re-assessed by the management in an earlier year based on technical evaluation), which is higher than the
useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation on residential property component of investment property of Rs. 30.52 lakhs, which is yet to be put
to use, will be calculated once the said property is put to use.

Depreciation on Leasehold land component of investment property taken on lease is caleulated over the useful life
or the year of primary lease of 90 years, whichever is Jower.

Though the Company measures investment properties using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment
properties are disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an

accredited extemal independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation
Standards Commitlee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal procesds and the camying amount of the asset is tecognised in profit or loss in the year of
derecognition. [n detemmining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of investment properties the
Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-
cash consideration, and consideration payabie to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property

transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

IX. Intangible assets:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the camrying value of all intangible asscts

recognised as at April 1, 2021 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of such other intanaible assets,

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally gensrated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the yvear in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amontisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is

recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset,

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net digposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included

in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognised.
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XL

Computer software:

Cost relating to software and software licenses. which are acquired. are capitalized and amoctized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of three years or actual year of license. whichever is lower.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly altributable to the acquisition. construction or production ot an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time o get ready for its tntended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
vther bomowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing cosis consist of interest and other
costs that an entily incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is. or contains. a lease. That is. if the contract
convevs the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchanee for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all lcases. except for shori-term leases and
teases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease Liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Assets:

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lcasc liabilitics. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilites recognised. initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. as tollows:

Plant and machinery 8 years
Building 10 ycars
Land 9099 years

1f ownership of the leased asset wansters to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated usetul life of the asser.

The right-of-use asscls are also subject 1o impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section X111 Impairment of
non-tfinancial assets.

On transition to Ind AS {i.e. April 01, 2021), the Company has ¢lecied to measure Right-of-use assets (Leaschold
land} at its fair value and use fair value as its deemed cost.
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i)

iii)

Lease Liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include Fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments} less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also inchude the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the year in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date beceuse the interest vate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceration of mterest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the camrying amocunt of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lcase payments (e.g., changes to futurc payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such leasc payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying assei, The cost and accurnulated depreciation for right of use assets where
the leases gets matured or disposcd off before maturity are de-recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting
gains/{losses) are included in the statement of profit and less within other expenses /other income. Lease

liabilities and right of use asscts have been presented as separate line in the balance sheet, Lease payments have
been classified as cash used in financing activities,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption te its short-term leases of building and plant and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option}, except in case of lease contracts with refated partics since there cxist economic
incentive for the Company to continu¢ using the leased premises for a period longer than 11 months and
considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not foresee non-renewal of the lease torm for future
periods, thus basis the substance and economic of the arrangements, management believes that under Ind AS 1186,
the lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been determined considering the period for which
management has an sconomic incentive to use the leased assets (.e., reasonebly certain to use the asset for the
said period of economic incentive). Such assessment of incremental period is based on management asscssment
of various factors including the remaining useful life of the assets as on the date of transition. The management
has assessed period of awrangement with refated parties as 7-10 years as at April 01, 2021. It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of plant and equipment that are considered to be low value.

Lease paymenits on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direcl costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the year in which they are camed.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting year so as to reflect a

constant periodic rate of return on the net investment ouistanding in respect of the lease.
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XIIL.

XIIIL.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

L Raw materials and compouents, packing materials and stores and spares:
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventornies to their present location
and condition. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold
at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and components, packing materials and stores and spares is
determined on a moving weighted average method. Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

ii.  Work in progress, Semi-finished goods and finished gaods.
Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on novmal operating capacity. Cost is determined on a moving weighted
average basis.

iii. Scrap.
Scrap is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non - financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. if any
indication exists, or when annual impaiment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carmying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
10 its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and farecast calculations, which are prepared

separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five vears, For longer year, a long-term growth rate is caleulated
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond perieds
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using
a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growih rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industrics, oT country or countries
in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
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X1V,

Impairment losses of continuing operations including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

The impairmént assessment for zli assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses ne longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exisls, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised itnpairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impajrment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the cammying amount of the asset does
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as revaluation increase.

The Company assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission-
reduction legislation that may increase manufacturing costs. These risks in relation to climate-related matters are
ncluded as key assumptions where they matedially impact the measure of recoverable amount, These assumptions

have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value-in-use amounts.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

i General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision 1o be reimbursed, for example, under an inswrance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virnally certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is matenial, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the tiability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of Lime is recognised as a finance cost,

ii,  Omerous contracts
If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the confract is recognised and
measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impainment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract,

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company
cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations uader the contract ¢cxceed the economic
benefits expected 1o be received under it. The unaveidable cosis under a contract reflect the least net cost of
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract {i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).
iii. Contingent labilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligaticn that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurtence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that can not be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company
does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.
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iv. Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Financial Statements. however, when the realization of income

1s virtwably certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Retirement and other emplovee benefits
Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
pavable to the provident fund scheme as an ¢xpense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet

date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to , for example, a reduction

in future navment or a cash refund.
Defined benefic plan

The Company operates one defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of defined benefit grafuiry plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have eamed in the current and prior perieds. discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. When the calculation tesults in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). To calculate the present valug of economic
benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit lability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised
immediately in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on govemnment bends. This rate is applied on the net defined benefit liability (asset), both as
determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking inte account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability {asset) during the year as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service (*past service cost” or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately
in profit or toss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement oceurs.

Short term employee benefits
Accunulated leave, which is expected 1o be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shori-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay

as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Company recognizes

expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,
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Long term employee benefits

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are
immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The obligations are presented as
current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for
at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial
assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain 2
significant financing component or for which the Company has applizd the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
[nd AS 115. Refer to the accounting policizs in section (IV) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise 10 cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level, Financial

assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective 1 hold financial assets in order to collect contractmal cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the
abjective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in four categories:

1 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) _

ii.  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

ili.  Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derccognition (equity instruments)

iv.  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

i, The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

ii.  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenss of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,
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This category is the most relevant 1o the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) mcthod. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fecs or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR ameortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or logs. The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost meludes trade
receivables, and security deposit included vnder other non-current financial assets. For more infonmation on

receivables refer note 7ib and A
Financial assets at fair value through OCl (FVTOCI) (debt instruments}

A ‘financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are mat:

i The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

il.  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through QCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OC1. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or
loss.

The Company has not designated any financial asset (debt instruments) at FVTOCL

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity insituments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investrnents as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32
Financial Instraments: Presentation and arc not held for trading, The classification is determined on an instrument:
by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such

gains are recorded in QCT. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.
The Company has not designated any financial asset {equity instrurnents) as at F¥TOCL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are camied in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes such finameial assets which the Company had not imrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through OCl. The Company has designated investments in mutual funds {equity instruments) in this
category.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability o1 nen-financial host, is separated from the
host and accounied for as a separate dedivative if: the economic chamacteristics and risks are not closely related to
the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit ot loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that sigrificantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or toss category.
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Derecoguition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)

is primanily derecognised {1.¢. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii.  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
artangement: and either (2) the Company has transterred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of

the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing

involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

associated liabitity are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of

the ongnal carying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

i Disclosures for significant assumptions — see Note 32

. Trade receivables and contract assets — see Note 7(b)

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses {(ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to teceive, discounted at an

approximation of the original effective interest rate, The expected cash Nows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL}). For those ¢redit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credic losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporling date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit less expenience, adjusied for forward-looking factors specific to the debiors and the econemic
environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in defaul: when contracrual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Company may also comsider a financial asset to be in default when internal or cxternal
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A fivancial asset is written off when there 1s
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabtlities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is madz only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes 1o the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s
senior management determines change in the business meodel as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant 1o the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations.
If the Company reclassifics (inancial assets, it applics the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification
date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting year following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or
mterest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment
Ameortised cost FVTPL Fair value 1s measured at reclassification

date. Difference between previous amortized
cost and fair value is recognised in profit or
loss,

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new gross carrying amount. EIR is
calculated based on the new gross carrying
amount

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification
date. Difference between previous amortised
cost and fair value is recognised in OCL No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new amortised cost carrying amount,
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently,
the asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes
its new carrving amount. No other
adiustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumuilative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCl 1s reclassified from equity
to profit or loss the reclassification date.
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Liabilities:

Initia] recognpition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as
approprate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequert measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
ii.  Financial habilities at amortised cost {loans and borrowings)

Finzncial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial hiahilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss,

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered inte by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded
derivatives are aiso classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/
losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an iniegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings, For more information refer note 14(a).
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

XVIL.

XVIIL

XIX.

Oifsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the labilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in vatue,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's
cash management.

Dividend:

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the disiribution is
authorised, and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the sharcholders. A comesponding amount is recognised
direcily in equity.

Earnings per share:

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of Company
(after deducting preference dividends and aftributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
cutstanding during the year.

The weighted average numhber of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted caming per share, the net profit or loss for the peried atributable to equity
sharchelders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all diluwtive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting
Identification of segments

The Company’s operating businesses are organised and managed on a single segment considering activities of
manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings and related services as ane single

operating segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the location in which the customers are
situated.
Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and prescnting the Financial Statements of the Company as whole.

Use of judgements and estimates

[n preparing the Financial Statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application
of the Company’s accounting policies and the reporied amounts ot assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively,

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significaat effects on the
amounts recognised in the Financial Statements are given at note no. 32.

| Gurugram|;

ASRR
4
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limiced)

CIN:U45201 DL1983PLC017029

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2624
(Amoant in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

XXII.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companics (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules,
2023 dated March 21, 2023, to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual beginning on or after
April 01, 2023, The Company applied for the first titne these amendments,

{i} Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. [t has alse been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements,

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments te Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entitics provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirernent for entities to disclose their *significant” accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their “material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Singile Transaction - Amendments to [nd

AS 12
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer

applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

XXIII. Standards [ssued but mot yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the vear ended March 31, 2024,

MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicabie 10 the Company.
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly kmown as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN;L43201 DL19§3PLCOI 7029

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Investment properties

Particulars Leasehold Land Buildings Total
Gross hlack

Balance as at April 01, 2022 130,36 184.35 314.71
Additions during the year - . -
Disposals during the year - {17.61) (17.61)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 130.36 166.74 297.10
Additions during the year - B _
Disposals during the year - - -
Balance as at March 31. 2024 130.36 166.74 297.10
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2022 G371 6435 716
Depreciation for the year 071 6.7 6583
Disposals during the year - 10.40) 1040y
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.42 12.22 13.64
Depreciation for the year 071 611 682
Disposals during the vear - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 13 18.33 2046
Met block

Balance as at March 31, 2023 128.94 154.52 23346
Balance as at March 31, 2024 128.23 148.41 276.64

Motes:

(1} During the <arlier vear. the Company emered inte an agreement to sell the one residential flat (Cost Rs. 17.61 Lakhs, Net Block: Rs. 17.27 lakhs as at
March 31, 2022) for which advance of Rs. L.00 lakhs has been received from prospective buyers which has been sold during the previous year ended March

31,2023 at the consideration of Rs. 24.00 lakhs (net of commission Rs. 23 40 lakhs) (Cost: Rs. 17.61 lakhs, Net black Rs. 17.21 lakbs).

(i) Information regavding income and expenditure of Investment propertics

Particulars

As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31,2023

Rental mcome derived from investment properties 136.88 13539
Dircct operating expenses {including repairs and maintenance) arising from 6.42) 249
mvestment properties that generating rental income
Dirgct operating expenses {including repairs and mamtenance) arising from - =
investment properties that did not generate rental income
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect 130.46 132,90
expenses
Depreciation (6.82) 1683}
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expemses 123.64 126.02
(iii) Fair value

Particulars Asat As at

March 1. 2024 March 31,2023

Completed Investment properties 436249 3,671.47

Investment properties under construction 3205 32.03

Breakup:

Investment propetties

Fair value* 4304 54 370352
Cost (Nel block) 176 64 28346

* including amount of Rs. 32,05 lakhs { March 31, 2023: Rs, 32,03 lakhs) penaining to residential flat which is under construction.

Invesimeni property {Greater Moida Property ) having net block of Rs. 163.28 lakhs (March 31. 2023: Rs, 172,10 lakhs) is subject to charge! hypothecation

crcated against cash credit and working capital facilidies rom bank. (Refer Note 14(a)

The title deeds of investment properties {other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the

Jessee) are beld in the name of the Company
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Interarch Building Produets Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Preducts Private Limited)
CIN:U45201 DL1983PLCO1 7029

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

{(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Investment properties

These valuations are based on valuations performed by an aceredited independent valuer who is a specialist in valuing these rypes of investment properties
and 15 a registered valuer as delined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 201 7. A valuation model in accordance with that
recommended by the Inicrnational Valuation Standards Commitiee has been applied. The valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market
prices, significantly adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific assets,
The Company has noe restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment

properties or for repairs, mzintenance and enhancements.

Description of investment properties, valuation techniques {Leve) 3y used and key inputs to ¥aluation on such investment properties:

Particulars Valuation Significant March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Methodology  unobservable lnputs
Greater Noida property {(Land) ~- Commercial Comparable Comparable rate Range : Rs. 32250 - Range : Rs. 22,500 -Rs.
listing method per sq mt Rs. 33,750 37.500
under Market Rate used: Rs. 32,750 Rate used: Rs, 27,000
Approach
Greater Noida property (Building) - Replacement Cost Useful life 40 Years 40 Years
Commercial* method under (as reassessed by {as reassessed by
Cost Approach managetnent m an management in ar
garlier years based on  earlier years based on
technical evaluation)  techmical evaluation)
Depreciation Method  Straight Linc Method  Straight Line Method

Lavasa properties - Residential Guideline rate

method under

Market Approach Flat Guidelines rate per

Land Guidelines rate
per sq mt

sq mt

% of completion for
flat

Raile used : Rs. 4,860

Rate used : Rs. 55,130

60.00%

Rate used : Rs. 4 860

Rate used : Rs. 55,130

60.00%

* inctuding electrical fittings & furniture and fixtures of Rs. 4.19 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 4.35 lakhs)

The approaches used to determine fair value of the assets are provided in note 32.

(This page hus intentionally been left blank)
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly kmown as [nterarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DLI983PLCO17029

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Total
Softwares

Gross block

Balance as at April 01, 2022 23.29 23.29

Additions during the year 0.27 0.27

Disposals during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 23.56 23.56

Additions during the year 22,93 22,75

Disposals duting the year - -

Balamce as at March 31, 2024 46.31 46.31

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 01, 2022 10.14 10.14
Amortization for the year 9.72 9.72
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31. 2023 19.86 19.86
Amortization for the year 8.03 803
Disposals during the vear - -
Balance as at March 31. 2024 27.89 17.89
Net block

Balance as at March 31, 2023 370 3.70
Balance as at March 31. 2024 18.42 18.42
Note:

All intangibles assets are subject to charge/ hypothecation created against cash credit and working capital
facilities from bank. (Refer Note 14{a))

(This space has intentionally been lefi blank
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO17029

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

{Amouvnt in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6. Right-of-use assets

Particulars Leasehold Land Buildings Plant and Total
equipment
Gross block
Balance as at April 01, 2022 4,894.90 447.88 25,28 5.372.06
Madification during the year - 237.42 - 237.42
Disposals during the vear = - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,894.90 685.30 29.28 5.609.48
Addition during the year 680.08 = = 680.08
Modification during the year* - (308.15) - {308.15)
Disposals during the year = = = -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,574.98 377.15 29.28 5.981.41
Accumulated depreciation
Batance as at April 01, 2022 65,72 44.79 0.64 11115
Depreciation for the year 65.72 7117 3.86 140.75
Disposals during the year - - = -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 131.44 115.96 4.50 251.90
Depreciation for the vear 71.98 7117 3.86 147.01
Modification during the year* = {(71.10 - (7.1
Disposals during the vear - s - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 203.42 116.02 8.35 327.80
Net carrying vatue
Balamce as at March 31, 2023 4,763.46 569.34 24.78 5,357.58
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,371.56 261.13 20.92 3,653.61

Note:

Leasehold lands are subject to charge/ hypothecation created against cash credit and working capital facilitics from bank, (Refer Note

14(a))

¥ The Company passed a board resolution on March 8, 2024. 10 purchase the lcased property from the lessor, Consequently. the lease
term, which was set to expire on March 31. 2031, is now revised to July 3E, 2024 considering the management expectation to
purchase the same by that time. This results in a modification of the right-of-usc assct and lease liability.
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Interarch Boilding Produets Limited

(formerly kmowmn as Interarch Building Produces Private Limited)

CIN:U45101DL1983FLCOIT029
Notes to Financial Stateaents os at Mareh 21, 2024
(Amount inn Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7. Financial asset
Jia]. Investment

Particalars

As at As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ouvoted lnvestments
Tnvestment in mutual funds (at Fair value throagh profir ot Lass)
YRR, 73772 {Margh 31, 2023 9.88,737.72) units of HOHC Nifty SDL Index Fund Regular Growth of Rs. 104- each 10732 100 26
084231 82 (March 31, 2023- 9 84221 £2) units of 1CIC] Prudentia] Mufty SDL Index Fund Grivwth of Rs, 104 cach 107.30 100,26
971,211 84 (March 31, 2023: 9,701,211 84) umits of Nippon India Nifty A4A PSU Bond Plus SDT. Tndex Fund - Growth Plan of Rs. 10~ ¢ach 107 26 10019
0.65.762.03 (March 31, 2023: 9.65,762.03) uwnits of Tata Crisil-IBX Gifi Index Fungd- Regular Plan Growth of Bs. 10¢- cach 10322 [LLIXE
957 BUR2IT (March 31. 2023: 9.57.598 27) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life Nifty SDL Plus PSU Bond Fund Regular Growth of Rs. 10/ cach L0731 100,22
Total 53642 S01.02
Aggregate beok value of quoted investments 53647 50102
Apgregale markel value of quoled investmments [refer nowe 383 536,42 301.02
T{bi) Trade receivables
Particolars Asat Asar
¥arch 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Mo current
‘Trade recervables 481326 383704
Total 4.813.26 3,837.04
Carrent
Trade rizceivables 17.075.19 15.870).75
Total 17.075.19 15.870.75
Break wp of security details
Gross trade receivables
Mon Current
Secursd. considered good - -
Unsecored, considered good 481326 383704
Unsecun:d, ¢redil impaired 20726 164.75
Current
Secured, considered good = -
Unsecared, considered govd 1707514 15.870.75
Linsecured, credit impaired 13527 65513
Total (A} 22.830.98 20.517.67
Impairment Allowance {allowance for had and doubiful debts)
Non corrent
Trade meeceivables which have signiticam increase in credit tisk = -
Tradc receivables - eredit impaircd {207.26) (164.75)
Current
Trade receivables which have significant inerease in crodin misk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired (73510 165513
Taotal (B} (942.53) (S19.88)
Tatal trade receivables (A+B) 2188845 19,707.79
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Particolars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment* Total
Npn current Carrent but Lcss than & months 1-2 years 2} More than
but ninit due fit e & manthe -1 vear vears 3 vears
() Undisputed Trade receivables - 4851326 1.740.04 13.628 73 T41.32 85120 113 9¢ - Z1.858 45
corsidered 2o0d
(it Uindisputed Trade Raeovables - credit 207 26 T4 BLU 3102 3665 490 942 53
imnpaired
(ifi} Disputed Trade Receivables - - = = - & = E
considered good
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables - credil - - - . - . - -
imoaired
Total 5.000.52 1.R14.98 14.215.5% 77324 SR1.E5 11%.50 - 21.830.9%

* Where due date of payment is not avadable date of transaction has bean considersd
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(nterarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited}
CIN:U45201 DLI9EIPLCH 7029

Motes to Financial Suacoments a5 at March 31. 2024

(Amount in Rs. hakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at Mareh 31, 2023

Particulars Outstamjing for following periods from due date of payment* Total

Non current Current but Less than 6 mwaths 1-2 years 2-3 More than

hut not due not due 6 months =l vear VEATs 3 vears

(1) Undisputed Trads receivables - 383704 681,29 1365319 475 &b 18114 - 61293 19,439,329
considered good
(i) Unchsputed Trade Receivables - credit 164.75 425 58024 034 T8 - 304.36
impaited
(it} Disputed Trade Reccivables - = - = = 26540 26840
considered enod
{iv} Dispuied Trade Receivables . credit - - - - 11.52 - - 1132
impaired
| Tnial 4.001.79 71054 14.230.43 40394 465.84 - 612.0% 20.527.67
* Where due date of payment i not available date of tr. ion has been consigered

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of director is a partner, a director or g member

Al current assts (ineluding rade receivables) are subject to charge’ hvpothecation created againsi cash credil and working capital facilities from bank. {Refer Now 14a)}

These are non-interest bearing and are generally due from the date of certification ef work dong which normally takes G to 90 days from dale of nvgicing other than relention meney which

i duc upon cxpiry of Defect liabiliry period ranging from one year 1o two year frow date of Completion eentificate

Tib)(ii) Contract assets

As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Curcent
Conlrac assets
-Unhilled revenue® 352520 2.792.04
Total{A) AS825.20 2,792,094
Tmpairment Allowance (allowsnce for bad and doubiful debts)
Contract assets - credit impaired = -
Total (B) - =
| Total contract assets (A-B) 3.515.20 2.792.94
*The amouni 4t the begioning of the yeur has been billed to the cusiomers subsequently.
Set put below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets:
Particulars As al Az at
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment Allowance {allewance for bad and doubtful debssy
Opening Balinee B19.8% 1,783 58
Frovision for expected credit losses (net) 122.68 1963301
Closing Balance 942,52 216,82
All ewrrenit 453085 {including coniract assets) ace subject te charges hypathecation created against cash credit and wotking capital facilitics from bank. (Refer Note 14(a))
T(¢) Cash and cash cquivalents
Particulars As at As at
Ylarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balances with banks:
- Om cwrrent accounts 750 10,97
- O cash credit accounts 1,0} 56 2107
Nhepogits with anginal marurity of three months or less® 3014636 543014
Cash on hand 245 4.14
Taotal 6.157.67 £.866.32

" Fixed deposis! margin money deposit of Rs 379 89 lakhs {March 31, 2023: 5 99,13 lakhs) has been held as margin moncy aganst issuance of bank guarantee and Ietter of credits

pravided in favour of customers and suppliers.

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months. depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. and wam interest o1 the respective

shori-term deposit rales

All current assets (including cash and cash equivalents) are subject to charge/ hypothecation created againsi cash credit and working capital facifities from bank. (Refer Note 13(an

T{cHi} For the purpese of the statement of cash flows, cash und cosh equivalents comprise the following:

Particulars As at

As at

Mharch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balances with banks *
- On curment aceounts 7.30 10.97
- On cash credil accounts 1,001.56 421.07
Depasils with oniginal maturity of three months oF 1eas 514634 3430 14
Cash on hand 4 14
Total 5.866.32
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Tei(il) Changes in liabilities arizsing from financims actvities -

Particulars April 01,2023 Cash flows  Changesin ~ Maodification  Tnterest on lease March 31, 2024
{net) fajF v liabilits
Current horroswings {refer note 14(a)} bR 10 (54.44) - - 9040 &b
MNon Current berrowings (including current mancitics from 170h27 (3970 . - - 110,57
long term borrowings (refer note 14ia0)
Lcasc lisbilitics (refer note 144b) and 34) 31 43 (113.41) - {2597 690 3827
Total Viabilitles from fnancing activities 1.772.81 (231.55) - 1259.72) £6.96 1.334.50
Particulars April 01,2022 Cash flows Changes ja ~ Modification  Imterest om lease March 31, 2023
(net) fair values leability
Current borrowmgs (refer note 14ta)) 193 74 77436 - - - 6510
Non Cumrent bormowings (ineluding current maturities from 142 38 278y - - - 170.27
long term barrowings (refer note 14ia))
Lease lizbilities (cefer notz [4(b)and 34) 448.57 (113.39} = 23742 61 84 634 44
Tutal liabilities from financing activities 184.69 B8 R6 - 237,42 6184 1.772.51

7(d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
hlarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Dieposits with remaining matunty of less than 12 months™® 161250 6054 44

Tal 7612.50 6,054.44

* Fixed depasits * margin money deposit of Rs. 4.677 63 lakhs {March 31, 2023 R, 4,954,494 lakin} have been hetd as margin money ageinst issuance of bank guaramee and letier of credits
provided in favour of cusiomers and suppliers: Rs. 2,069 L5 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil) have been pledgedrlicn against cash credit and working capital Facilives from bank (refer note

I42)0: ond Rs, 0.30 Lakhs {(March 31, 2023 Rs. Nil) have been pledged with sales tax authorities. Vhe Company eam innerest al the respective term deposit rates
Fixed deposuts are subject to charge! hypatl ion created againgt cash credit and working capital Eacilities from bank. (Refer Mot 14(a))

Tle) Loans
Particulars

As at As 8t
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non carrent (Unsecured considered good)
{ ¢an 1o emplovess

4513 -
Total 45,15 R
Current (Linsecured considered good)
Loun to emplovees 6231 2763
Total 62.51 27.63
All current assets (including Loans) are subject to charge’ hypethecarion created againsi cash credit and working capital Facilitins from bank. (Refer Nowe 14(an
7(f) Other finuncial assets
Particulars As at As at

March 31, H024  March 31, 2023

Non-current {Unsecured considered good)

Deposirs with remaining mahurty of mare than 12 months 2 t&2 0% 66 ¥4
Securiry deposits .
- Related parties {refer note 36) 22 - 13 00
- Others 9711 T3.00
Toral 279.20 159.84

Currgnt (Unsecured comsidered good)

Interest acented om bank deposits and orhers 99.57 7987
Secority de posits
= Related parties (refer note 36) 28 18.00 B
= Others 24,59 21,06
Total 142,16 101.83

# Fixed deposits / margin money deposit of Rs. 180,96 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 66 56 lakhs) have been held as margin money against sguanee of bank guarantee and lettor of credits

provided in favour of custamers and supplicrs and of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 Rs. 0 28 Lakhs) have boen pledged with sales ax authontics. The Company eam interest at the respoctive
lerm deposit rates

All current assets (including other financials assets) are subject w charges hypothecation created againsy cash credit and working vapital facilitics from bank (Refer Note 1442

oz| Gurugram| —

NSRB/S
b ¢
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2% Security Deposit from related parties includes :-

Particulars

As at As ar
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dues from partnership finm (Intertee) m which the Company's dircetor is a panncr
™Non curtent - 1800
Current 1810 -
Breakup of Financial Assets carried at amortised cast
Particolars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Receivables irefer nate 7B 21 BRS.45 19,707,790
Cash and Cash cquivalent (refer note i ¢} a6,157.67 586632
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (refer nore 7(d)) T.B12.50 054,44
Loans (refer note 7{ @ 1) e 13 27.63
Other Fmancia)l assets (refer mote 7if) 421.36 26167
Tetal 3618744 31.917.85
8. Income tax assets ¢ (liabilities)
Particulars A5 at Asat
March 31. 2024  March 31, 2023
Opening balance |#7 85 526 40
Add: Taxes paid (net of refunds) 305373 1971 7%
Less: Tax expense (2,982 060 (2.376.33
Closing balamee 230.52 18785
Mon current tax asseis {net) 259,32 187.85
9: Other non-current assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered aoad
Advances for Property, plamt and cquipment

180,38 312,94
Prepaid exponses 119 T2
Balances with stabnormssovernment authorities B3 IA 28 24
Total 270.73 408.12
10. Inventaries
Particulars Asat As at
¥arch 31, 2024 Blarch 31. 2023
(Al imveniiories except for scrap are valued ai the lower of cost or net realisable value wnd serap is valued o net realisable value}
Raw materials {In wmansit of Bs 1423 Jakhs (March 31, 2423 Bs 44 31 lakhs)) 9334 82 8.964,19
Wurk in progress 2.396.33 102134
Semi finished goods 232131 238327
Finished goods {In wansit of Re 19.97 lakhs | March 31 2023; Bs 3.06 lakhs}} 2587 1202
Packing matenals 4821 4202
Stores and spares 264 32 230010
Scrap 4328 3563
Total 14.684.34 [ LA97.58
Al current assets {including inventones) are subject 1o charge! hypothecation created against cash eredit and working capital facilitics from bank. (Refer Note [44a))
11. Other current assets
Particulars As at As al
March 31. 2034 March 31. 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid cxpenscs 200136 16071
falances with statutory’ gosemment authoritics
- VAT Entry Lax recoverable g 107,95
- Others T34 793 30
Advange 1o employoes 130 912
Unamortized Share ssee expenses* 557055 -
Advances for goods & scrviccs 66192 R38.45
Tatal 2.203.61 1.960.23

* During the year ended March 31. 2024, the Company incurred cxpenses in conngction with the proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO) of :quity shares of the Company by way of fresh 1ssue
and an offer for salz by the existing shareholders. In relation o the IPO expenses incwrred till dave. except for listing Fees which shall be solelv bome by the Company. all other expenses will
be shared between the Company and the Selling Sharcholders on a pro-rata basis, in propertion 1o the Equity Shares issued and allotied by the Company in the fresh issue and the offered

shares sold by the selling shareholders n the ofTer for sale

All current assels are subject 1o chargehypothecation vieated against cash credit and working capital facilities from bank, (Refer Note 14{a))
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12: Equitv share capital
Particulars Ag at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorlsed:

20,000,000 {March 31, 2023: 20,000,000} equity shares of 2.000.00 2,000.00
Rz 10 each

Issucd, subscribed and Fully paid up:
1,44,13,892 (March 31, 2023: 1.50,00,600) equity shares 1.441.59 1,500.06
of Rs. 10 each

Total 1.441.59 1.54).06

A. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year §.50,00,600 150006 150,000,600 1,500.06
Changes in equity share capital during the year due to Buy {5.84,708) (58.47 -
back of shares (refer note 45)
Balance at the end of the year 144,15 892 1,441.59 1.50,00. 604 1,500,046
Notes:

a. Terms and rights artached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shases having pac value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one wvote per share, The holders of
equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time ta time.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, all preferential amounts, if any, shall be discharged by the Company. The remaining assets of the Company shall be
distibuted to 1he holders of equity shares in proportion to the numbsr of sharcs held to the total equity sharcs outstanding as on that date.

One of the shareholder of the Company viz. GIH Mauritius Limited (formerly known as Indivisien India Partners) has the following additiona) rights 23 per the Share
Subscription Agreement and Sharcholders Agraement namely:-

a. Participate in any contract which involves an amount in éxeess of Rs, 100.00 lakhs which is outside the ordinary course of business:

b. Commencement 9r settlement of litization where the amoutit involved is above Rs 100.00 lakhs in a single clamm m any particular financial year;

c. Vote in meetings on decisions where decision regarding divestment of or sale of assets, investments, lease, license or exchange or pledge in any other way proposing

t0 dispose off any assets or undertaking of the Cormpany except for those Iransactions which are in the ordinary course of business and those which have specifically
been conternplated under the Transaction documents;

d. Participate in decision regarding commencement of business/univdivision outside India:

e. Participate in decisions regarding revision in the salaries/compensation paid to the directors of the Company, including the Promoters;

f. Participate in the appointment or removal of the Chief Exccutive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and the Chief Operating Officer of the Company; and
. Participate in decision regarding nitial Public Offering (IPO) by the Company and appointrent of merchant hankers for an TPO,

b. Terms of Exit of OIH Mauritius Limited (formerfy known as Indivision India Partners)(*Tnvestor?)

As per the Sharcholder's Agreement entered on December 4, 2007 between OTH Mauritius Limited {formerly known as Tndivision India Parmers), Mauritivs. a public
company limited by shares with lnmited life, Interarch Building Products Prisate Limited (Company'y and Promoters (namety Arvind Nanda, Gautam Suri. Taipan
Associates Private Limited, Ishan Suri, Shobhna Suni and 1GS Holdings Private Limited and their respective successors and permitted assigns) (collectively referted as
“Parties”), and Share Subscription Agreement entered on even date. the Company had issued 1.00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each & premium of R5.9,900 each. As
on date, Q1H Mauritius Eimited (" Investor'y helds 1 7.97.600 equity share of Rs. 10 cach after splitand bonus shares

The Investor shall have the exit rights as below:

During the exit period (6 months commencing from the expiry of the IPQ Peried), Lnvestor shall have the right to sell the entire shares 10 a third party mutually agreed
upon by the Parties. The Parties hereby agree and acknowledge that they shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that a mutually acceptable third party purchaser zequires
the Investor Shares on terms and conditions acceptabis to the [nvestor,

The right of the: Invesior, during the Exit period shall also include the right to cause the Company to take all necessary steps and co-operate to facilitate the Investor exit

by way of an Ofter for Sale (OFS) of the shares and secking a listing of the Company en the exchange(s). The Investor shall have the right in priority te offer all the
Investor Shares for sale in the OFS of the Company.,

Far the avoidance of douby, it is clarified. that during the Exit period, the promaters right of first offer stand suspended

Where the Investor requires prior legal, governmental or regulatory consent. for disposing the [nvestor Shares then, not withstanding any other provision of the
Sharcholder’s Agreement, that party shall only be ebliged 19 acquire the shares once such consent or approval is obiained and the partics shall use their reasunable
endeavours 1o obtain any such required approvals. Any period within which the transfer of the Investor Shares has to be completed shall be extended by such further
period as is necessaty for the purpose of obtaining the above approvals.

110



Interarch Building Preducts Limited

(formerly kmown as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201 DL19SIPLCO17029

Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2024

{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

In the event that upon the completion of the Exit period, the partics have not been successful in finding a third party purchaser or concluding the OFS. then for the period
extending from after the completion of the Exit period to the next 6 months (Phase [}, the Investor will have the right to sell only to the Promoter or cause the Company
to buy back and the Promoter or the Company, as the case may be, will have an obligation 1o purchase or buy back all the Investor Shaves at the Ffair markel valus
determined in accordance with the procedure as mutually agrzed and set out in the Shareholders Agreement. The purchase of the Investor Shares by the Promoters
and/or the Company will be completed in Phase 1L

MNotwithstanding, the other provisions of the Shareholder's Agreement, in the event that the Individual Promoters, Tzipan Associates andior 1GS Heldings il to
purchase the Tnvestoc Shares during Phase L, as contemplatcd under the Shareholder's Agreement, the Investor shall have the right to sell the Investor Shares to any third
party.

During current year ended March 31, 2024, the parties to the Shareholder Agreement have entered inte Amendment Cirn Waiver Agreement dated March 08, 2024
where PO Peried has been extended 1o December 31, 2024 and paniies have agreed that upon the compietion of the Exit Period, if the Parties have not been successful
in finding a third party purchaser or concluding the OFS, then for the period extending from after the completion of the Exit Period 10 the next ¢ (six) months {Phase
117), the investor will have the right to s¢ll only to the Individual Promoters, Taipan Associates andfor 1GS Holdings end the Individual Promoters, Taipan Associates
and’or 1G8 Holdings as the case may be, will have an obligation to purchase all the [nvestor Shares at the Fair Market Value, detenmined in accordance with the
procedure set out in the Sharebolder’s Agreemenl The purchase of the Investor Shares by the Individual Promoters, Taipan Associates and/or 1GS Holdings will be
completed m Phase TLIn the cvent that the [ndividual Promoeters, Taipan Asseciates andior 1GS Holdings fail o purchase the Tnvestor Sharcs during Phase 1, as
cottemplated under the Shareholder's Agreement the Investor shall have the right to sell the lnvestor Shares to any third party.

B. Deetails of shareholders holding more than 5% sharves in the Company as on vear end

Particulars As at ¥arch 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No o: :l:;ares *% of holding No of shares held % of holding
Mr. Gautam Suri 44,44, 116 32.2% 47,753,300 31.83%
Mr. Arvind Nanda 47.29.046 39749, 50,20,200 10479
Mg OIH Mawritivs Limited ({formerly known as M/s 17,97,600 12.47% 20,00,000 13.33%

Indivision India Partners

Ag per revords of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest. above
shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

C. Details of shares held by promoters
As ait 31 March 2024

Promoter Name No, of shares Change No. of shares % of Total % Change

at the beginning doring at the end Shares during

of the vear the vear of the vear the year

Mr. Gautam Suri 43,75.300 (1,31,184% 4644116 32.23% -275%
Mr. Arvind Nanda 50201200 (1,91.154} §7.29,046 39740 -3.23%
Mrs Shobhna Sur 6,00.100 - 600,100 4.76% -
Mr Ishaan Suri 3,99.900 {39.970) 5,39.930 3.75% -10.00%
M/s Taipan Associates Pyt Lid 5,80,000 3,%0,0:00 4.02%, -
M/s 1GS Holdmg Pyt Lid 525,000 - 525,000 3.6d%, -
Total 1,30,00.500 (3,82,30%) 1.26,18,192 87.53% -15.98%
As at 31 March 2023
Promoter Name No, of shares Change No. of shares %e of Total Shares % Change during

at the beginning during at the end the year

of the vear the vear of the vear

Mr. Gautam Suri 47.75.300 - 47.75.300 31.83%
Mr. Arvind Nanda 59.20,200 - 59.20.200 39.47%
Mrs Shobhna Suri 6,00.100 - 600,100 4.00%%
Mr [shaan Suri 5,99.900 - 5,99.960 4.00%
/s Taipan Associates Pvt Ltd 5,820,000 5,830,000 3.37%
M/s IGS Holding P+ Ltd 5,235,000 5,25,000 3.50%
Total 1,30,00,500 - 1,30,00,500 86.67% -

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations reccived from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, above
shareholding represents both legal and baneficial ownership of shares.

In relation o Buy back, the Company bought back 3,84,70% cquity shares for an aggregate amount of Rs. 3,900.00 lakhs being 3 90% of the total paid up cquity share
capital at price of Rs. 667 per equity share. The equity shares bought back were extinguished on September 25, 2023 (Refer note 45)
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13: Other equity
Particolars A at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Equity contribution 313.32 8490
Reserves and surplus
Capital redemption reserve 5947 x
Securities pramiwm account 9.149.97 9,142.97
General reserve 1,817.59 3.65%.12
Retained eamings 31.681.52 23.533.85
Total 43.020.87 38.427.84
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity contribution*
Openmg balance 2490 4255
Addinen during the year 228.42 42.35
Clysing balance 313.32 §4.99
Capital redemption reserve
Qpeniog balance - -
Add: Transfer from retained earmings (refer note 43) 58.47
Closing balance 58,47 5
Securities premium account
Opening balance 6.149.97 14997
Addition during the ycar - -
Closing balance 9.149.97 9.149.97
General reserve
Opening balance 5,659.12 5.659.12
Less: Buy back of equity shares (refac note 45} 13.841.531 -
Chosing balance 1.817.59 5.659.12
Retained earnings
Openiog balance 2353385 15,480.21
Net profit for the year % 62620 g, 14624
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax 807 {92 60)
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve (refer now 43) (38.47) =
Less: Tax on buy back af equity share (refer note 43) (428.13) -
Closing balance 31.681.52 23.533.85

* The fair value of guarantee charges for gurantee issued by promoter directors and Intertec for total Facilities/limits { fund and non fund bascd) from banks considered as
contribution by Shareholders and credited ta the equity. (Refer note 36(CKb))

{This space has intentionally been fefi biauwk)
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14. Financial Habilities

14(a): Borrowings

Particulars Effective interest rate {%5) Matwuricy! As at Asat
Repayment terms March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

Naon current barrawings
Secured
Vehicle loans Refer note 2 belopw Refer note 2 below 6457 110.56
Taotal 6437 1140.5a
Current borrowing
Secured
Caxh credit from banks Refer below nate 111} On demand Q00 66 91810
Currcnt materities of long-term bormaw ings

- Vahicls loans Refler nole ? below Refer note 2 below 46.20 3071
Unsecared
Bomewings from relawed parnes (refer note 36) Refer below note 3 On demang . 2
Total 955860 12781
Rafat note 400c) for matarivy prafil: of borewings
Notes:

1. Cash credit and working capital facilities from banks are secured hy:

(a) First pari-passu charge by way of hyporhecation of entire current assets including beok debts and inventory of the Company, both present and future of the company

(b} These facilities. are further secured by first pari-passu chargs over the cntirc movable fixed assets {except vehicles charged exclusively to the financer). both present and Future, of e
Company

(¢} These facilities feam all banks arc seeured by way of cquitable morgage on immovabl propertics sinated at {i) Plor No. B-30. Scclor-57, Noida, Uuar Pradesh {owned by the
Companyy: (ii) Flot Na. B-33, Scetor-37, Noida, Uttar Pradesh (owned by M/3 Tntertee (Panmership Finny; (1ii) Plot No. 28A, Udvog Vihar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradosh, being immosable
properties (owned by M/s Intertec (Partnership Firm)): (iv) Plot Ne. D-1/1_ SIPCOT, Industrial arca. Sniperumbudur. Chennai, Tamil Nadu, {owned by the Company): (v) Khasra no.-276-4,
Village Kisanpur, Pargana Rudrapur. Tehsil Kichha, Jila Udham Singh Magar, Uttarakhand (owned by the Company): (i) Plot No.29, Udyog Wihar, Greater Noida, Urtar Pradeshtcwned by

the Company): {v1i} Plot no. 14 & 144, Scctor-2. Pant Magar, Udham Singh Nagar, Uttarakhand(owned by the Company) and (v} Plot no F 19, SIPCOT Indusirial Park. Sriperunpudur,
Kanchipuram {THY {owned by the Companyh.

{d) These facilivies are secured by way of interim charge by way of pledeef licn in favour of Lead Bank (acting for the benefit of the Consortium Banks), on [ised depusivs of Bs 2069 15
lakhs along with all of its right, tille, interest (including aceroed interest). benefits. claims and demands whatsoever 10 of in respect of the said fixed deposis The pledge / lien on these
FDRs will be released on perfection of morigage on properties as menioned above w peint {1} and (vi) of nole Tic).

(&) Further, secured by (a) personal guaraniee of twe direciors of the Company w all Banks (namely VI Arvind Nanda and Mr. Gautam Suri) and (b) corporate guaranies of MJs Intertec

{Partnership Firr}

() In respect of these Beilives, quarierly rowms or slatements of current assers filed by the Company with banks are in agrecment with the books of accounts

(&) The cash credir favilties are repayable on demand and cammy interest @ & 60% p.a to 11.15% p.a(March 31. 2023: 7 5% pa. to 0 L 10% pat

{h) The berrowings obtsined by the Company from banks and financial institutions have been applicd for the purposcs far which such loans were uken

2. ¥chicles loaps amounting to Rs 110,57 lakhs (Mareh 31, 2023: Rs. 17127 lakhs) are secured by hypotheestion of underlying vehicles. The repasinent terms and maturity terms are as

below:
Party Name Rate of interest Number of equal Instalments M laturity vear As al A at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

HDFC Bank £ 80% -0.15% 36-60 months July 07, 2022 - Tunc (5, 2027 kL] 0018

October 05, 2021 - October 0,

Kaotak Mahindra Bank T10% - 9.65% 36-60) months 20l6 4002 &0.11

Axks Bank AL 6l monhs October 10, 2026 3225 4194

Benz Financial Services India Private Limited 0 00% 12 h April 91, 2024 142 1704

Tatat L10.57 170.27

3 Unsecured loan from directors are repayable on denmand aad camy interest G 6.00% (March 31, 2023 6.00%)

4 The Company has net defaulted on working capital bans, vehical loans or any other loan payables

14ib). Lease liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

Nem- Current [refer nete 340 26T 76 5IT4

Current [refer nole 34) 5051 5670

Total 31427 £34.44

Refer note 40ic) for maturity profile oflzase Liabilities.

14(c): Trade pavahles
Particvlars As at As at

March 31. 2024

March 31, 2023

Trade payables {including scceptances)

- wal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small snterprises {refer note below for details of dues to 1.031.06 907 10

micre and small enlerposes)

- total oulstanding dues of creditors other than mucro coterprises and small enterprises 1227537 9,453 91
Tkl 13,3536.43 10.366.01
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(formerly known as [nterarch Building Products Private Limited)

CIN: U5 Z0TDL Y831 LCUT HIZY
Mates to Fimancial Staternends as at March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. lakhs, enless otherwise staved)

Trade payables Ageing Schedule

As at ¥arch 31, 2024

Particulars Outstinding for following periods from due date of payment* Tosat

Linbilled Mot Dues Less than I-2 vears 2-3 vears More than

dues 1 vear 3 vears

Total ourstanding ducs of micro cnterprizses and small 194 13 681 73 15204 0.71 070 G675 108) 0o
enlerpreses
Total outzianding dues of creditors ather rthan micro 1L3%3 97 T.187 52 323055 48571 2352 4234 12.2260 3%
enlgrprises and small enterprises
Dizputed dues of micry enterptises and cmall anierprizes - - -
Digputed dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and - - - 24y 510 2321 4507
simail enlerpriges
Total 1,523, 10 §,169.25 3,362.37 70.08 29.32 132.30 1335642
* Where due date of payment 15 not available dale of nansaction has been considered
As at March 31, X235
FParticulars Ouistanding far fellowing periods from due diite of paymeni™ Total

Linbilled Mot Dues Less than -2 years 2-3 vears More than

dlwis | vear 3 vears

Toral curstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 4504 12834 334 48 473 4284 o E e ]
enlarplisas
Total putslanding dues ot creditors other than micro 1.014.74 1529 60 [NFER T 10719 1881 (K] 400 94
enterpiises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micto enterprises and simall enlerprises - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro emterprises and - - 7H 179 10 1924 1347
small enterprises
Total 1064138 1.057.94 H. Y1646 129 58 65 ity 13569 366,00

* Where due dale of payment is ot available dale of ransaction has been considerad

Trade payaltles are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within O - 45 days

Based on the information available with the Company reparding the stars of suppliers as defined under MSMED At 2006, there was no prinsipal amount o1erduc and no interest was
paxyable fo the Micro enierpnses and small enlerprises as per the lenms of conrract and based on awreement with s endors

Naote:

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

Cn the basis ofthe wlomation and records axailable winh management. details of dees w micro and siall eimenrises as defined uider the MSMED Acl, 2006 are as below:

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1. The principal amount and mterest dug thereon remaimng unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accountim yean
- Poncipal amownt * 111320 0710

- Interast thereon

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tenns of secton 16 ol the MSMCD Act 20H6 along with the ampunts of the paymeut
made ¢ the supplier bevond rhe appointed day during each accountinge vear

3 The amounl of imerest due and payable for the pesiod of delay in making payment {which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the vear) but withouwt adding the interest speaified under the MSMED Act 2006

4 The amount of interest acerued and remammg wnpard at the end of each aceounting year

5 The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable exen in the secoeeding years. until such dare when the interest dues as

above arc acrually paid to the small cntcrprise ior the purpose of disallowance as a deducuble expenditute under sectipn 23 of the
MEMED Act 20046

FIncludes ducs of micro enterprises and small enteqprises amounting Rs. 32 74 lakhs (March 31 2023 : Ry ™il) periaining, 1o payable on parchase oF property, plant ang equipmeny (e fer

nole |did))

141y Other fimaneinl finbilities

Particulars

As ar As ar

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2423
Payable on purchase ol Property. plant and equipment * i 130
Emplovee dugs 1433 32 1142 31
Secunity depoiils 3842 3042
Inretest acerned and due on borresvines < 1.52
Interest acerued but not due on bomowines 159 %]
Total 1.715.31 1,186, 44

*Inzludes does ol micre enterprises and small enterprises amcuniing Bs 32 74 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Hs My
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{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Particulars As ar As af
March 31 2024 March 31. 2023
Leage liabilities (aco-cwrent) {refer nate 14(b)) 25776 37774
Bomowings (non curent) (refer note 13(a)) 6137 110.56
Borrowings (current) irefer note 1-Ha)) 055 Rk 102781
Leuse lubilitizs (cwrent) (refer note L4(b)) 3051 3670
Trade payables (refor note 14 ¢h 13.156.43 1336601
Other Bimancial liabilities (refer nate 14¢d}} [.715.31 113644
Total financiad liabilities carried at amortised cost 16.410.24 13.325.26
15: Government Grant
Particulars As at As at
March 31 2024 March 31, 2023
Ciovernment erant 586 133
Tatal .86 p k]
Mon Current 4.3% 5.86
Curmenl 1.47 147
\Paxticulars Amount
Balance as 3t April 01, 2022 8.30
Received dunng the year .
Released to the siatenent of profit and loss 4T
Balance as at March 3t. 2023 7.33
Received dunng (he vear -
Beleased Lo the stalernent ol profit and [oss iLd4n
Balance as at March 31, 2024 586

16. Contract liabilitics

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies aliached o these grans.

Particulars

As As ar
WMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Contraet Labilitics*

- Deferred revenues 153679 211292
- Advances from customers 10185 R, 480 &0
| Total 1L.638.64 10.602.61
Curant 11.638.64 10.602.61
Non. ¢urrent - -
*The contraci habiluies ouslanding at the beginning of the year primanily has been recognised as rvenue subsequently.
17. Provisions
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provisiom for emploves benefits
Compensated absencys

14792 137.00
Other provision
Anticipated loss on contruct 19 %3 0ds
Total 15775 13748
Current F67F 75 157 48
Mon- curment

Information about individual provisions and significant estimates

A provision is recognised for certain contracts with suppliers for which 1he wnavoidable ¢osis of meeting the oblizations exceed the economic benefits expected o be received I is

anticipated that these cosls will be incumed o the next financial year

Less order is provided for the coniracis where Lhe Company cxpecis 10 incur a loss. The table below gives information abowt movement in provision for anticipated ioss on contracrs. For

further detuls

Movements in provisions

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)
Balance as at April 01, 2022 1087
Charged to prafit or loss Qg8
Utilised durini year 11,97
Balance as at March 31, 2023 .43
Charged Lo profit or loss 1983
Utiliszd during wear (0 48)
Bal. as at March 31. 2024 19,82
18: Other current liabilities
Pardculars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 1013
Statutory dues pavable 62243 591 59
[nterest payable on statutery duss 31545 315.55
| Total 3788 1.207.14
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19: Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 30, 2024

For the vear anded
Maveh 31, 2023

Revenue from contracts with cmstomers
Revenue from Pre-engineered building comtracts

SLEETO 98.613.68
Sale of produets
- Buildinz malerials 26,749 61 12,043 40
Other operaling revenue
- Serap sales 1.545 87 1,65%547
- Other services 17298 AO05
Total 1.29.130.16 1.12.392.60 |
Disagzregaled revenue informaltion
Set pul below is ke disaggregation of ihe Company’s revenue from contracts wilh customens:
Building matenals:
Metal ccilings and comuzaled roofing 6,670.07 2870 56
Stecl structure 2164196 £.211.04
Lizht gauge framing systems 193 44 42 B3
Cther iterns L2447 e a7
2974961 12,043 4G
Pre-engineersd buildinge G858 0 oR.613 6%
Others 1,721.85 1.7353.52
Total revenue from contracts with enstomers® 1.29.330.16 1.12.392.60
* meludes amount of Rs, 188.30 lakhs Gom outside India (March 31, 2023: Rs. 27 65 lakhs)
Timing of revenue recognition
Cioods transformed at 2 point in bme 31,298 48 13.698 87
Pre-engineersd buslding contracts and olher servicas tansferred over tme OR 03168 08.693.73
Total revenoe from contracts with cusiomers L29.330L16 1.12.392.60
Contract balances Ag at As at
Mareh 31, J024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables (refer note k111 21,888 .45 19.707.79
Contract asscts {rcfer note TR 352520 279294
Contract liabilitres {refer note 161 11638 d {1602 61
Refer note 7{b)(i1 and note 16 for details on rade receivables and Contract liahilities respectively.
Contract asset is recogniged when there is excess of revenue earmed over billings on contracts with eustomers
Right of return assets and refund habilites are ot present in contracts with cuskoners.
19.1 Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of proflt and loss with the comtracted price:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ¢nded
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenque as pef coniracted price 1.29.304 48 1.14. 16461
Adjustovenis:
- Esclation / {Dewsclation) amgunt 25 65 (1.7T2.0M
Revemue from coniract with customers 1.29.330.18 112,390 6l
19.2 Performance abligation
Pleass refer note 20iv} in sccounting policies for pecfermance obligation in relation 19 revenue from contracts with uuskomers
20: Other income
Particulars For the vear ended For the yvear ended

March 31,2023

Interest income:

Bank dcposits 96797 $64.95

Income 1ax refund - 231

Others 14 83 686
Rental income on:

Lnwestraent properiies 136 88 13539

Others 3010 1500
Provision for doubtful debts! advances written back (net) = 448 68
Bad debis recovered 1913 3070
Met gain on disposal of property, pianr and equipment 12,483 10.88
Met gain on sale of invesiment prapertics - 6.19
Fair value wain on financial nstruments al Bir value throweh profie or foss (Unrealised) 3530 1.03
Gan on lease modibization 22 48 -
Govemment erants 147 147
Total 1,301 28 1.246.46
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21: Cost of ruw materials and compenents conswmed

Particulars For the year epded For the year ended
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventory st the beginning of the year 8.966.29 971575
Add: Purchascs during the wear 8373181 708N
Add: Creation / {Reversal) of provision for anticipaled loss on conlracts 13.33 (11.4%)
Less: Captive comsummtion (428800 (17115
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (3384820 15960629
Tatal §2.M03.83 T4.273.53

22: Change in inventories of finished goods and \\'nrk-imprz!grcg_\

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year emded

March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023
Inventories at the beginoing of de year
Finished goouds 19.02 1956
Serm fmished goods 2,383.27 1.904 67
Work in progress 2,021 34 1.496 37
| Serap 3562 1347
Total imveniories at the beginming of the vear fA) 4.45%.26 31.434.07
Inventories at the end of the vear
Finished goods 2587 19.02
Semi finished poods 23131 238327
Work in progress 239633 2021 54
Scrap 43.28 33.63
Total inventories at the end of the year |B) 4,996.99 445926
(Inerease) in inventories (A-B) (527.73) (1.025.19)
23: Emplovee benelits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2021
Balarics, wages, allowances and bonus 10,1 8083 R.001 98
Contribution to provident and other funds 786,40 §26.07
Gratuily expenses (refer note 13) I5T T4 347 25
Seaff welfare expenses 57174 36510
Total 11.804.82 9.336.30
24: Finance costs
Particulars For the vear ended For the year emded
March 31, X024 March 31, 2023
Interest expenses:
- cash credit from banks and vehiclc 1298 37
= Income tax 042 1876
- lease lisbililies 3694 LIRS
~ uthers AL 966
Guarantee charges* L19 057
Other finange cost 134.50 13842
Total 21624 280,62
* inchudes fair value of guarantee charges of Rs, 119 lalkchy (March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.57 lakhs}
25: Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars For the vear ended Faor the year ended
March 31, 2034 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property. planl and equipment (rafer note 3) 63579 57729
Deprecaaton on investmenl propenics (refer nole 4) &82 6,58
Amathization of intangible assets (refer note 3) .03 @71
Depreciation of night-oi-use assers |refer nows Hy 147.01 140,74
Total TOTRS T30 6
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26: Other expenses

Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Jeb work and installation charges 13.520 34 11,300.23
Equipment hirc and site charges (including insurance of sites amounting ta Rs. 79.63 lakhs 354 14 32405
{previeus year R 30015 lakhs))
Consumption of storcs, sparcs and packmg materals 282500 206191
Power and fuel 802.21 64595
Freight and forwarding charpes 3,381.54 2.17R.40
Rates and taxcs 60.56 24.52
Insurance 43.9% 37681
Repairs and maiptenance:
= Plani and machinery &) 74 6138
- Building 10932 102.07
- Others 118.60 175.57
Expendinge on corporate sccial responsibility (refier pote below ) 103.00 65.65
Advenising and sales promotion 20_40 53,08
Commizsicn to agents (other than of sclling agenis) o4 342
Travelling and conveyance 36561 497.04
Communication costs 4995 40 43
Printing and stafionery T2 6732
Legal and professional fees 57061 5&2 61
Paveris 1o auditors {refer note below) 3926 4062
Met loss on forcign cumoney trangsct iong 1.16 500
Rent (refec note 34) 62 83 3440
Allowance for doubtful debis and advances 122,65 -
Bad debisiadvances writken off {ner) 610 1434
Less: Provision for doubtful debts ret adivsted out of ahove - -356.47
Donation 023 .29
Testing sxpenscs 16.59 2059
Bark charees® 624 10 431.94
Leurity Semvice Cxponscs G1.95 91.%2
Miscellaneous exprenses*™* 73.95 AN.6T
Taotal 2378878 19.163.21

* includes fair value of yuarunies charges of Rs. 227 23 lakhs (March 31, 2023 Rs. 41,77 lakhs) recorded for wurantee issued by promoter directors and [ntentec for fund
and nen fund based limit. The comresponding impact is recorded as an adjusiment to equity. (Rofer nate 36(C b))

** Does not include any ilem of expenditare with & value of more than 1% of the revenue from operations.

Notes:
Pavments to auditors
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 30, 2023
As auditor
Audit fees 3447 3g.00
Certification Service 349 -
Reimbursemient of out of pocket expense 1.70 2 40
Total £9.26 Al.59

Corporate Social Responsibility:

Particulars

For tbe vear ended
March 31. 2024

For the yeur ended
March 31, 2023

a. Crross amount required to be spemt by the Conmpany duning the year
b Total of previvus vear (shortfallVexcess amount
<. Amount approved by the Boardirequired 10 be spent duning the year

4, Amount spent during the vear ended on March 31, 2024:

1. Comstruciondacquisition of any asset
ii. On purposes other than (i) above”

e. Amount spent doring the year ended on March 31, 2023:
1 Comstruclion/acquisivion of any assel
ii On purmoses other than (1) abovet
* Follovang are the nature of activities:
{21 Helping in settiing up clinics and providing education for women and children.
(b1 Promoting all activities foc physical, cultural, and social uplifimz of the general public,

In cash

103,00

6365

10300

103.00

Yet (o be paid In cash

65 63

B5 A5

Total

10300

£5 65

(This space s intentionallv been lofi tlank)
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27. Derivative instruments

The Company does not use derivative instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge its risk associated with foreign
currency fluctuations.

28: Pending Receipt of Appeal effect order for assessment year 2009-10 where the appeal has been decided in favour of the
Company by ITAT. Interest on income tax refund has not been recognised there of as the amount is not presently reasonably

determinable. Interest income on such refund shall be recognised in the year appeal effect order is received from Income tax
authorities.

29. During the year ¢ended March 31, 2022, one of the plants of the Company in Uttarakhand, Pantnagar Plant witnessed some
labour unrest, where the workmen resorted to deliberate “Go Slow production” resulting in fall in the preduction at Pantnagar Plant.
The management of the Company did tripartite conciliation meetings with the jurisdictional Assistant Labour Commissioner
Pantnagar, However no agreement could be made due to the adamant attitude of worker Unicn Representatives. The Company had to
declare Partial Lock Out as per the provisions of Section 6 (S) of the UP Indusinal Dispute Act, 1948 on March 16, 2022 which got
lifted on July 06, 2022 {* Lock out period') and the Panthagar Plant started to function normal since then. The Production loss in the

Pantnagar Plant during the Lockout period was covered by the increasing the production in other plants and engaging some outside
job workers.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Labour Secretary (Ministry of Labour and employment , Government of Uttarakhand )
declared the lock out Illegal, and the Company has also received a demand of Rs. 184.95 lakhs from Asstt. Labour Commissioner ,
Pantnagar (*ALC"), towards the wages of workers during the lockout period . The Company has challenged the labour secretary order
and demand raised by ALC and filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble High Court, Unarakhand. The Hon'ble High Couwrt has
granted stay on the demand raised and the above matter 1s still pending to be adjudicated.

In regard to the above matter, the Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, believes that there is no probable cash outflow
w1 this regard.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, 428 workers which were part of labour union went on strike in Pant Nagar and Kichha plants

w.e.f September 6, 2022 which continued till December 15, 2022 and the labour union reached an agreement between the Company
and labour union, which was signed.

In the said agreement it was agreed that the Company will provide increment to the striking workers w.e.f. January 01, 2023 instead
of July 01, 2022. The same will be payable m July 2023 as an arrear and workers agreed that they will not demand increment for
earlier months i.e., July 2022 to December 2022. The same is paid during the current year with arrear.

Production in these units have resumed with full vigour. Production loss during the strike period was managed with increasing
production in other unit and by outsourcing the preductien to job workers.

(This space has intentionally been left Blank)
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30: [Dcome Tax

The major cormponent of income 1ax expense (or the year ended March 302024 and March 31, 2023 are:
Statement of Profit and Loss

Profit or boss sectiom:

For the year ended For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2024 Aarch 31, 2021
Current iocome tax;
Currenl income Lax charge 208573 232344
Adjustrmes of ncome tax relating to carlier yvear (116 52.89
Deferred tax charge | (credit)y:
Belatinu to onuination and reversal of temporary differences ® t19 3R 372,70
Income Tax exgrense repgarted in the Statement of Profil and Loss 2.962.68 2.749.03
* ncluding charge{credity of Rs. Mil {March 31, 2023: Rs. (47 29) lakhs) in respect of carlier vears
OCI secrion:
Deferred wax related w nems recoanised in OCT during the vear:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2014 Moarch 11. 2023
Rcmcasurcments gain loss) oo defincd benefit liabilioy 27 {3114
Income tax charged to OCI - charge/(credit) 2.71 (3L.14)
Reconciliation of tux expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
Particulars For the year cnded For the year eaded
March 31_ 2174 March 30, Z023
Accounling profit before tax 11,588.88% 189517
AL slalulory inoorme (ax rate of 25 168%5 (March 11, 2022; 25 1682 19060 274212
Adjustments in respect of cument income tax of carlicr years 17.16) 52 8%
Adjustrments in respect of deferred income tax of earlier vears - {47.2%)
Proceeds from sale of investment properny - (1.56)
Tax effect of expentes that are not deduoctible im determining taxable profie:
Fair value of guarantee charges 5749 1066
Others (per differences) i4 34) 17.68)
At effective income tax rate of 25.56% (Prevhous year: 25.23%) 2.961.68 2.749.03
Incowme tax expense reported in the Stalement of Profit and Loss 2.962.68 1749.03
Deferred tay
Deferred tax relates to the following Balance Sheet Statement nf Profit and Liss

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

Moarch 31, 2013

Defereed tax liabhilities
Property, plant and equipmenc. intangible {1.712.95) (1.08% 94) 230

21105
assets and investment proponics
Right of use assets- Leasehold land (71900 (16 4l (33.29) (23.88)
Ripht of use assets- Others (7099} (149531 (78 54) 40,37
Cnhers (9180 - 216 16.27)
Total deferred tax Nimhility 141 f1.022.214 12.HH .87 {70, ) Th BT
Deferred tax assels
Leasc fiabilitics $0.00 159.67 19.57 {46.37)
Allowances for credit bogges 231 20633 (30,87 25297
Disallowance under section 454 AT0.06 420 82 {49 24 44,52
Effect of expenditure debited twr the statement 556.56 624 &4 68 18 60403
of profit and tosz in the current vear/zarlier
véars bun alluwable fur tax purpeses on
payment hasis
Others 647 .72 1473 i
Total deferred tax liability (B 1.350.41 1.413.40 £2.09 314.69
Deferred tax assers/{liability) (Netr (A + B> {5T1.80) (58847} (1567 341.56

and deferred 1ax liabilines velate to income taxes kevied by the same twx authomy.

The Company offsets tax asscis and labilitics it and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off cwrent tax assers and current rax Habilities and the deferred wx assers

Recoaciliation of deferred rax liabilities {neth Az at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Opening balance 1388470 1246.91)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss 1938 L7270}
Tax income({eXpense} during the year recommised in OC1 (2.71 314
Chiging halance {571,800 (SRR AT
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31: Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleutaled by dividing the profil for the year attribulable 1o equity holders of the Company by the weighted average oumber of cquity shares

quistanding Juring the year

Diluted EPS amounts ars caloulated by dividing the profit atiributable w cquity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of eyuity shares outstanding
during the year pius the weighted average nwnber of Equity shares that woukld be issued on conversion of all the dilwtive potential equity shares imo equity shares.

The (ollcwing table reflects ihe income and share data used in the basic und dilited EPS computations:

Particulars

For the vear ended For the year emded

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit atirbutable o equity holders 8,626.20 §.146.24
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS: 1.47 00258 1. 50.00.600
Basic and diluted earmimgs per equity share {in Rs.) SR68 $431

(This space has intentinnailc been feft Mank)
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32: Significant acconnting judgements , estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statcments requires management 0 make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revennes, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the acCompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustmen to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in Ruture periods

Other disclosuras relating to the Company’s exposure to Asks and uncetainties includes:

+ Capital managernent (refer note 41)

= Financial risk mapagement objectives and policies (refer note 40)

* Sensitvity analyses disclosures (refer notes 13 and 40)

Jodgements

I the process of applying the Compuny s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Staternents:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Cormpany determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods coversd by an option o

exlend the Tease if 1t is reasonably certain (o be exercised, or any periods covered by an opiion to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certamn not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evalualing whether it 15 reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option 0 renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it 10 exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencemnent date, the
Company rcassesses the Tease term il there is 2 significant event or change in circumstances that is within its contrel and affecls s
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (g.g., construction of significant leasehold irnprovements or
significapt customisation 10 the leased asset).

The Company included the renewal period as pan of the lease term for leeses with related party, since there exist econemic incentive
for the Company to continue wsing the leased prernises and it does not foresce non renewal of the lease term for future perods.
Furthermore. the periods covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

Refer to note 43 for information on potential future rental payments.

Property lease classification — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into leases on its Investment property. The Company has retains substantially all the nisks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these propertics and accounts for the contracts as operating leascs.

Revenue from contraets with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the detennination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Uncertainty ¢n the Estimation of the Total Construction Revenue and Tetal Construction Cost:

The Company recognises revenue from the construction contracts over the period of eontract as per the input methad of IND AS 115
“Revenue from contracts with the customers”. The contract tevenue is determined based on proportion of contract cost incurmed to date
compared to estimaled total contract cost which involves significant judgement, identification of contractual obligations, and the
Company’s right to receive payments for performance completed till date, risk on collectability due to liquidation damages and other
penalties imposed by the customers, change in scope and consequential cevised contact price and recognition of the hability for loss
making contracis/ onerous obligations ete. The Company has efficient, coordinated system for calculation and forecasting its revenue
and expense reporting. However actual project outcome may deviate positively or negatively from the Company’s calculation and
forecasting which could impact the revenue recognition up to the siage of project completion and is recognised prospectively in the
Financial Statemente

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the fumre and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting dace. that have a significant
risk of causing a materal adjusiment to the camrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fimancial year, are described
below. The Company based 13 assumptions and cstimates on parameters available when the Financial Staterments were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about funure developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assvmptions when they occur.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company uses its technical cxpertise along with historical and industry trends for defermining the ¢congmic life of an
asset‘component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by the management peniodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a
revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining usefil life of the assets.

122



Interarch Building Products Limited

{formerly kmown as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC0O17029

™otes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Falr value of Investment properties
The Cotnpany disclose far value of mvestment properties. The Company engaged an accredited independent valuer to assess fair

value for reporting year at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024, The valuation igchniques and key inpuots used 10 determing fair value
of the asscls are provided in notc 4.

Approaches used in Valuation Methodology for fair valuation of property, plant and equipment, right to use assets and
investment properties:

Market Approach

Under this method the recent sales and listings of comparable assets are gathered. Adjusimenis are then applied to these observations
for differences in location, time ol sale, and physical characteristics between the subject assets and the comparable assets, o estimate a
fair market value for the subject assets

The comparative analysis performed in this approach focuses on similarities and differences among assets and transactions that affect
value including differences in the assets appraised the motivations of buyers and sellers, market conditions at the time of sale, size,
location, physical features and economic charactenstics. Elements of comparison are tested against market evidence to determine
which elements are sensitive to chanee and how thev affect value.

Cost Approach

Under replacement cost methed, this is nosmally the cost of replacing the property wilh @ modem equivalent al the refevant valuation
date. An exception 15 where an cquivalent property would need to be a replica of the subjcet property in order to provide a participant
with the same utility, in which case the replacement cost would be that of reproducing or replicating the subject building rather than
teplacing it with a modern ¢quivalent. The replacement cost reflects all incidental costs. as appropriate. such as the value of the lkmd,
infrastructure, design fees, finance costs and developer profit that would be inenrred by a participant m creating an equivalent assel.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company makes provision of ¢xperted eredit losscs on trade teceivables using a provision mawix. The provision matrix is based
on its historical abserved defiuit rates, adjusted for forward looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and the Company makes appropriaie provision wherever outstanding is for longer pedod and involves higher risk.

The assessment of the correlation berween historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant
estomate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive 1o changes in circumstances and of forccast econemic conditions. The Company's historical
credit loss expenence and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the Futwre.
The nformnation about the ECLs un the Company's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 40,

Taxes
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the

likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies
Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 30,

Defined benefit plans (Cratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity cbligation are
determined using actuertal valuations. An actuaral valuation involves making various assumptions that may ditfer from aciual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term natore, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject 1o change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the
interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond comespond to expeeted term of defined benefit obligation
The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds
on which the discount rate is based, on the basis thal they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to changc only at interval in response to
demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected funure inflation rates for the respecive
countries,

Further details about gratuily obligations are given in Note 33.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the far values of fimancial assets and financial Labilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannol be mieasured bascd on quoted
prices in active maskets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these modcls
are laken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establizhing fair
values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidiry risk, credit sk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Refer note 3% and 39 for further disclosures

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, 1t uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to
measure lease liabilities. The TBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar sccucity, the funds necessary to obtain an assct of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar cconomic cavironment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’. which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or
when they need 1o be adjusiad to refleet the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the [BR using observable igpus
ich as markel interest Tates) when available,
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33, Emplovee defined benefit obligation (net)

Particulars A% at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non- current

Gratuity-Mon current 11120 90638

Total 111.20 906.38

Current

Gratuity 1.194 98 £00.00

Total 1.194.98 800.00

The Company has a defined benefit grawity plan. Every employee who has compleied five or more vears of service gets a gratwity on departure a1 |5 days salary (last
drawn salary) for each completed year of service or part thersof in excess of 6 monihs, a8 per the provisions of Payment of Grawity Act, 1972 Eoerlier the plan was
unfunded. The Company has set up a Gratuity Fund on February Q2. 2023 for providing benefits to employees and certain sum will be contributed by the Company to
the fund from time to time. The fund has been created in the form of a trusi and it is governed by the board of trustees. The tustee entered inte 2 Group Gratuity
Scheme with insurer and premium paid therefore by the Company will be considered as contabution to the fund

The fellowing tables swmmanse the components of net benefit expense recogmised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for

the gramity plan:
a) Giratuity
Changes in the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2024:
Particulars For the yvear ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Defined Fair value Benefit Defined Fair value Benefit
benefit of plan Tiability benefit of plan liability
obligativp assels oblivativn assels
Balance at the beginning of the vear {2.411.66) T05.28 (1,706.38) {Z.120.20} - (2,129.20)
Cost charged to profit and loss
Service Cost {231L.81) - {231.81% {19246} - {193 46)
Met Interest (expense)lncome {17798 52.08 (125.93) (152,98 4.19 (4879
Sub-tetal included in profit and loss {409.79) 52.05 (357.74) (346.44) 4.19 (342.25}
{refer mote 13}
Benefits Paid 131.43 {84.26) 47.17 186.70 - 186.7¢
Remeasurement gains/flosses) in other
comprehensive income
Retwrm on plan asset (excluding amounts - 0.76 076 (91 {0.91)
included in net interest ¢xpensc)
Actuarial changes arizing from changes in 42.21) - {4221} ({184.06} - {184.06)
financal assumptions
Expericnce adjustments 52.22 - §2.22 61.34 - 61.34
Sub-total included in OC1 10.01 076 10,77 {122.72) 0911 (123.63)
Contnbutions by emplover - 700.00 700.00 - 2,00 702.00
Balance at the end of the vear {2.680.01) 1.373.83 11,306.18) 2.411.66) T05.28 11.706.38)

The plan assets are managed by the Gratuity Trust formed by the Company. The management of 100% of the funds is entrusied according to norms of Gratuity Trust,

whose pattern of investment s available with the Company.

Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then asscis Liabilites mismatch & actual investment ccrum on assels lower than the discount rate assumad at the last valuation date

can impact the liability

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the tial plun assets are as i

{lows:
March 31, 2024 Moarch 31, 2023
investmens funds Amount % Amount Y
ICIC1 Prudential Life Insurance 74232 54.03% 328 71.36%
Futurc General India Life Insurance Company Limited 631.52 45.97% 20000 28.36%
(Cash and cash sauivalent - 00 24K 0_28%

The principal assumptions used in determining net emplovee defined beneiit liabilities are shown below:

Pariiculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Ya %a

i) Discounting Rate 722 7.38

) Future Salary increase 7.00 7.00

iii} Retirement Age (years) 58.00 38.00

iv} Mortality Table 100% of TALM (2012 100% of TALM

- 14) {2012 - 14)

v) Attrition at Ages
-Upto 30 years 3.00 3.00
-From 31 o 44 years 200 200
-Above 44 vears 1.00 1.00
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A quantitabive séngitivity analysiz for significant assumption as at March 31, 2024 15 a5 shown below:

Assomptions March 31,3024 March 31, 2024
Disconnt Rate Future salarv increases
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Increase decrease (ncrease decrease
lmpact on defined benefit obligation {131.34) 142.0% 13028 (124.11)
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2023
Assumptions Discount Rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 3.5% 0.5%
INCTEase decreasc INCTCAsE decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (124.07) 13430 12572 (118243

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a resuli of reasonable changes in
key assumptions oecurring at the end of the reporting year. The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in a significant assemption, keeping all other assurmnptions

constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined henefit ohligation ag il iz unlikely thal changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation from one anoter.

The following are the maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As ot As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Within the next 12 months {next annual reperting vear) 22816 164.0%
Between 2 and 3 years 451.14 364.37
above 5 years 20007 1,853.20
Total expected payments 2,680.01 2,411.66

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 16.2F years { March 31. 2023: 15 69 years).

b} Drefined contribution plans
The Company also has ceriain defined contribution plans. Coniribulions are made o provident fund, employee pension scheme and employee’s state insurance scheme
for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered funds administered by ihe government. The obligation of the Company is limited 10 the

amount contributed and it has no further contractual or any constnictive obligation, The ¢xpense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs
73699 lakhs (March 31, 2023; Rs 586.45 lakhs).

The Code on Social Security. 2020 ('Code’) refating to employee benefits during employment and post-emplovment benefits received Presidential assent in September,
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the code came into effect on 3 May 2023 However, the final rules/inferpretation have

not yet been 1ssued The Company will assess the impact of the Code when final rales/interpretation it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the year
when the Code becomes =ffective.

34: Leases
Company as a Lessee

The Company has Icase conwacis fur various ilems of offices, tesidences. lands and cquipment’ machinery uscd in its operations. Lease of plant and machinery have
lease tenure of § years, buildings have lease tenmns of 10 years except one lease which is maturing on July 31, 2024 (refer note 6}, while land have lease term of 90/99
years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s litle 10 the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options, which are further discussed below

The Company also has certain leases of buildings with lease tenns of 12 months or less or with low value and certain leases of squipment’ machinery with low value,
The Company applies the “short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assels” recognition easmptions [or these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of nght-of-use assels recognised and the movements during the vear:

Particulars Land Buildings Flant and Total
equipment

As at April 01, 2022 4582913 403.09 2864 3.260.91
Meodification {rafer note &) = 33742 . 23742
Depreciation expense (65.72}) (71.17) {3.86) (140.75)
As at March 3, 2023 4,763.46 569.34 24,78 5.357.58
Additions {refer note 6) 68008 - 680.08
Modification (refer note 8) - (237.04) - (237.04)
Depreciation expense (71.9%) (7117 (3.86) {147.01)
As ar March 31, 2024 5,371.56 261.13 20.92 5,653.61
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Set out below are the carmying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

Opening Balance 634 .44 44857
Maodification { refer note 6) (259.71 23742
Aceretion of interest 56.96 61.84
Payments 11340 11339
Closing Balance 318.27 634,44
Non - Current 267.76 577.74
Current 50351 56.70

The maturity analysis of lease itabnlitics is disclosed in Note 40.

The effective interest rate for lease labilities is 9. 5¢ %6 with maturity between 2030-2031 and except one lease which is maturing on July 31, 2024 (1efer note 6),
The fellowing are the amounts recognised in profit and loss account:

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 147.00 140.74
Interest expense on lease liabilities 56 .90 61.84
Expense relating to short-term Leases & leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 62.33 34.40
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 266.80 256,98

The Company had tatal cash outflows for leases of Rs 11341 lakhs (including interest of Rs 56.96 lakhs) {March 31, 2023: Rs. 113.39 lakhs (inchiding imterest
payment of Rs. 61.84 lakhs)}. The Company alse had non-cash modification to right-of-use assets of Rs. (237 04) lakhs (March 31. 2023 Rs 237 .42 lakhs) and lease
liabilities of Rs (259.72) lakhs {March 31, 2023 Rs. 237.42)

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and ermination options. These options are negotiated by management te provide fexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolic and align with the Company’s business needs. Management exercises significant judgzement in determining whether these
extension and termination options are reasonably cerain 10 be sxervised,

Company as 2 Lessor

Commervial property given on operating lease.

The Company has entzred into operating lease agreement for leasing a part of the factory at Greater Noida (Uttar Pradesh} (sub-lease agreement). set up on leasehold
land as an investment property, The lease term for factory at Greater Noida was for 9 years. with an escalation clause of 15% afier completion of every 3 years along
with non-cancellable lease period of first 3 years. The lease term for the period of 9 years completed on April 30, 2021 and the Company extended the leass period for
ong year w.e.f May 01, 2021 to April 30. 2022, without rent escalation. The lease term for the period of | year completed on April 30, 2022 and the Company renew

the leasc period for three year woe.f May 01, 2022 to April 30. 2025 with a cancellable clause which can be eacrcised by either party _The cenial income in respect of
such lcases recognized in the statement of profit and loss is 136,88 takhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 135.39 lakhs).

Eguipments given on aperating lease:

The Company has entered into operating lease agreement for leasing its equipment for a short teom peried.  The rental incomg in respect of such leascs recognized in
the statement of profit and loss 1s Rs. 3018 Lakhs (Mareh 31, 2023 Rs. 12,00 Lakhs)

35: Commitments and Contingent liabilities
a) Commitments

Estimated amount of contraces remaining to be executad on capital account and not provided for {net of advances) : Rs. 2 17071 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs_ 1 404.14
lakhsy.

(This page has intentionally been lefi blank)
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b) Contingent liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023

i) Demands received from Sales tax’ GST authenties® 205739 44235

ii) Dremands raised by Income tax authoritics being disputed by the Company for AY 2006-07 & AY 131.46 13146

2020-21

iil) Service tax demand** Nil Liability not

ascertainable

v} Ouistanding bank guarantees by the Company B677.24 6,461.32

v) Demand raised by the Ditector of Town & Couniry Planning, Chennal. towards Infrasmucture and 25.58 24.53

Armeniies charges with respect to Industrial Building approval {including interest). The Company has

deposited Rs. 700 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 7.00 Lakhs) against the demand which is included in

the “Balances with Statutory/Government Authorities” under note 9 to the Financial Statements,

1) Recovery suit filed by a vendor (including interest) 176.66 16311

vii) Pending labour cases Liability not Liability not
ascertainable ascertainable

viii) Demand raised by Asstt. Labour Commissioner . Pantnagar (*ALC"). towards the wages of 184,95 184,95

workers during the lockout peniod (refer note 29)

ix} Demand raised by Pondur Panchayat towards non payment of House Tax for the vear 2010-11 to 13.92 13,62

2022-23

x) Demand received trom Regional P.F. Commissioner, Haldwani towards assessment of PF dues 34.26 3425

related 1o job workers involvediengaged in job work by the Company or job work contraciors, in
connection with the work of the Company. The Company has Gled an appeal to Central Government
[ndustrial Tribunal {CGIT)-cam-Labour Court, Lucknow and the same is pending befare the autharity.
The Company has deposited Rs. 3.42 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 3.42 lakhs) against the demand
which is included in the Balances with statutory’govemnment authorities under nate 9 to the Financial
Stalements.

(This page has intentionall been left blank)

127




Interarch Building Producits Limited

{formerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCOLT029

Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31. 2024
{Amount in Bs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

*Briel desenpuon of labilities for (i) above:

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

(a) Demand received from Goa Sales Tax authorities towards higher duty on account of wrong
classification of goods for FY 2001-02 {including penalty and interest). The Company has filed appeal
with Bombay High Court at Goa.

(b) Demand received from West Bengal Sales Tax aothorities towards non production of
documents in support of VAT retum for FY 2007-08 w0 FY 2009-10, The Company has made appeal
before Senior Joint Commissioner, Kolkata

{c) Demand received from Dellu VAT Authornies on non submission of comimercial ax Form F
regards to intce-state sales for the AY 2010-11 (including interest).

{d) Demand reecived from Commercial Tax Depantment. Jamshedpur wwards short payment of VAT
for the FY 2000-1C on the amount of labour charges disallowed (ineluding interest). The Company has
deposited Rs. 040 lakb (March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.40 lakh) against the demand which is included in the
*Balances with Samtory/Government Authorities’ {refer note 9 to the Financial Statements).

(e} Demand received from Commercial Tax Department, Jharkhand towards short payment of VAT
for the FY 2008-09 on the amount of Jlabour charges disallowed (including interest). The Company has
deposited Rs. 1.75 lakh (March 31, 2023: Rs. 1.75 lakh) against the demand which is included in the *
Balance with samtory/goverment Authorities” {refer note 9 to the Financial Statemenis).

{f) Demand of penalty raised by the sates tax authority towards detenitivn of vehicle. The Company has
deposited Rs. 3.46 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs. 3.46 lakhs} against the demand which was included in
the "Balances with statutery/govemment Authorities” (refer note 9 to the Financial Staternents) till year
cnd March 31, 2022 The Company has written off this deposited amount during the year snded
Mareh 31, 2023,

(2) Demand received from Deputy commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Government of Karmataka for
the FY' 2012-13 on account of taxability (@14.5% instead of 3% on Work conwract wax amounting 1o
Rs. 707.42 Lakhs (March 31, 2023- Rs. 707.42 Lakhs). The Company filed writ petition in High Court
which allowed and asked Depury Commissioner to verify the documnents. However, Deputy
Commissioner again passed the order raising demand amounting to Rs. 726.92 Lakhs (March 31,
2023 Rs. 726,93 Lakhs).

The Company again filed the writ petition against the order passed by Deputy Commissiener. The
High Court, Karnataka vide its order dated Marah 09, 2023, quashed the earlier order giving liberty to
Deputy Commussioner 10 compute (he wx demand on wrmnover at the special rate.

The Depury Comrmissionsr, on the direction of High Court, Karataka, passed an order dated
27.11.2023 in favour of the Company.

(h) Demand on account of Vehicle Detention at Uttsrakhand. The matter is pending with statutery
authorities The Company has deposited Rs. 2.47 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 2.47 lakhs } against the
demand which is included i the “Balances with Starutory'Government Authoritics™ (refer note 9 to the
Financial Statements).

(i) Demand received from Uitarakchand GST on account of E-way bill not attached with invoice copy
at time vehicle checking. The Company has deposited Rs. 1.09 lakhs (March 31, 2023, Rs 1.09 lakhs?
against the demand which is included in the *Balances with Stattory/Government Autherities® (refer
note 9 to the Financial Starements),

(1) Demand on account of Vehicle Detention at Uttar Pradesh. The matter is pending with statutory
authoritics Fhie Company has deposited Rs. 1.44 lakhs {March 31, 2023: Rs 144 lakhs) against the
demand which is included in the ‘Balances with Stanutory/Government Authorities’ (refer note O to the
Financial Statements).

{k) Demand on account of Vehicle Detention at Uttrakhand. The matter 1s pending with stamtory
authoritics The Company has deposited Rs. 1.62 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 162 lakhs) against the
demrand which 15 included in the ‘Balances with Statutory/Sovemment Authoritics’ under note 9 to
the Financial Statements)

(It Demand received from GST authorites on account of disallowance of Input tax eredit (¥TC
(including penalty and inlerest) for FY 2017-18 o FY 2021-22, The Company has deposited Rs_ 1397
lakhs (March 31, 2023 Nil) agaivst the demand which is included in the ‘Balances wilh
Statutory/Government Authorities’ under nots 9 to the Financial Statements).

{m) Demand received from Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Sharkhand on sccount of

diszllowance of VAT for FY 2016-17 . The Company has made appeal before Joint Commissioner of
Commercial Taxes. Jharkhand.

44.04

11206

1.38

340

1751

Nil

247

1.0%

162

1.615.04

60.34

44.04

312.04

1.38

Q.40

17.51

Liability not
ascertainable

2.47

1.09

Total

2.057.39

442.35
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**Briel descnpnon of Labilities for (111) above:

Particulars

As at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,
2023

(a) The Company during the earlier years received a demand, wherein the service tax authorities
alleged that the scrvices provided by the Company are not classifiable under the service category of
‘Commercial and industrial construction servies' after the miroduction of new entry of 'Works
contract service” in Finence Act 1994 on June | 2007 and alleged that the Company is required to pay
Service Tax under the service category of “Works contract service’ since June | 2047 and the cenvat
credit availed by it on inputs used should oot be admissible. The demand notice issued by the
apthoritics required the Company to opt for compositc WCT category of 2% and 4%, whereas
Campany had already paid full service tax @ 12 36% without prejudice to Company’s rights. The
Company had filed an appeal before the Hon'hle Customs, Central Excise and Service tax sppellate
Tribunal (CESTAT). CESTAT had during the earlier year, remanded back the matter to the
adjudicating authonty for re-determining the tax liability. During the earlier year. the Company
received 2 readjudicated demand order from the service tax authoritics, upholding the basis of demand
earlier raised. The Company had filed an appeal before the CESTAT, Allahabad Bench In earlier
year, the Company won the appeal. However, to carlier year the Department wont into appeal befors
Supreme Court.

The Hon'ble Supreme Court heard the appeal of Service Tax Authorities and issued its Order on May
02, 2023 The Supreme Court has remanded back the case to CESTAT to re-compute the demand in
terms of Rule 2A, which requires service 1ax liability to be calculated only on the service portion of the
Contract,

The CESTAT on the directions of the Supreme Count, reassessed the order dated March 31, 2017
passed by the Commissioner, Service Tax, Noida. The CESTAT set aside the order passed by the
Commissioner. Noida and concluded the matter in favour of the Company vide its order dated
September 29, 2023

The Details of demands amount s as under

{1} Wrong availment of CENVAT credit on inputs amounting to Rs. 11,174.00 lakhs;

{11}  Short payment of Service tax under WCT scheme vig-d-vis Industrial Construclion service
amounhing to Rs. 4.026.4% lakhs (including peoalty); and

(i}  Exccss duty collected and passed on to the clients and 5 demanded amounting to Rs
16,872.80 lakhs (including penalty).

Liability not
ascertainable

Taotal

Based on tavourable decision in similar cases and legal opinion obtained by the Company in discussions with the solicitors the Company believes that there is a fair
chance of decisions in its favour in respect of z/l the items Tisted in (i) 0 (ifi) & {v) to (x} above and hence no provision is considered necessary against the same.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Count (SC} judgement on PF dated February 28, 2019 on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose
of PF contribution as well as its applicability of effective date. As a marer of caution, the Company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the

SC order. The Company will update its provision. on receiving further clarily on the subject.

(This page has intentionally been left blanky
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36: Related party disclosure
A. Names of related parties and related party relationship

Nature of Relationship
i) Directors & Kev Management Personnel (" KMP™)

1) Relatives of Key Managenal Parsonnel

i1y Entitles in which Dircctors and Key Management Porsonnel {“KMP™)

have a significant influence / control with whom Cornpany have made
transaciions during the reporting years

B. Related Party Transactions:

Mature of rthe related partics

a) Arvind Nanda, Managing Director
b} Gautarn Surt, Whole Time Directar
¢) Ishaan Suri, Non Executive Director
d) Viraj Nanda, Non Executive Director
¢) Widhi Gocl, Company Sceretary and Compliance Officer

1) hlanish Kumar Garg, Chief Executive Officer

£} Anil Kumar Chandam, Chief Financial Officer (1il] February 12. 2024)

h) Dthanpal Arvind Jhaveri. Nominee Director (nominee of OTH Mauritius)

1} Vishal Sharma, Nen Executive Non Independent Director {6l March 04, 2024)

1} Sonali Bhagwati Dzlal, Chairperson and Independent Director (w.e.f. January 13, 2024)
k) Sanpv Bhasin, Independent Director (w.e f. January 15, 2024)
1} Mohit Gujral, Independent Director (w .l January 13, 2024}
m) Pushpendra Kumar Bansal. Chief Financial Officer (w2 f. Febreary 12, 2024)

Shobhna Suri

a) [nreree

b) Signu Recal Estates LLP

¢} Aries Developers LLP (formierly known a5 Aries Developers Private Limited)
d) Taipan Aszociates Private Limited

¢} Interarch Foundation

£y Artfiste Adventising LLP { formerly known as Anfoto Swudios)
e} Interarch Employees Group Gratuity Trast
h} IGS Hoelding Private Limited

The following table provides the totat amount of transactions thosc have been entered into with relateq partics for the celevan financial year:

(Rs: [n Lakhs)

Transactions during the year

Key Management Personnel

Entlties on which Key Management Personnel
(*KMP™ have a significant inDuence { control.

For the vear ended
March 31. 124

For the year ended
March 31. 2023

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

1. Sale of products
-Signu Real Estaies LLP
-Taipan Associates Pvt Limited

2. Lease vent paviient

-nterec

-Anes Developers LLP {formerly known as Anes Developers Privata
Limiled}

-Signu Real Estales LLP

3. Reimbursement of expenses received by:

-Intartes

4. Remuneration {refer note (i), (i) and (ii} bebow)
Short-term beoefit

- Arvind Nanda

- Gautam Suri

- ¥ira) Nanda

- Manish Kumar Carg

- Anil Kumar Chandani

- Hidhu Goel

- Pushpender Kumar Bansal

Long-term benefit

- Arvind Nanda

- Gautam Suri

- Viraj INanda

= Manish Kumar Garg

- Anil Kumar Chandam

- Nidhi Goe!

- Pushpender Kumar Bansal

5. Finance Cost
- Arvind Nanda
- Gautam Suri

6. Loan repaid
- Arvind Nanda
- (Gautam Suri

7. Corporate Sociul Responsibilides payment
- I[nterarch Foundation

8. Gratuity Contribution
- Interarch Employees Group Gratuity Trust

9. Advertisement Expenses
- Artfoto Studies

3122
46.52
16.11
166,83
7219
1733
1138

(0.66)
504
286
0,50
029

20,00

3215
1808
1570
15583
g102
1539

042
466
2.30
1.55

120
L)

145,00

5406
3700

4200
o

16.05

.32

37.00

42,00
9.00

4,83
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10. Buvback of Share {refer note 45)
-Arvind Nanda

~Giautzm Suri

-lsbaan Suni

11. Director's Sitting Fees
-Sonali Bhagwati

-Sanjiv Bhasin

~Mohit Gujral

L2500 -
87500
00,00

2350
375
325

C. Related party balances

) The foliownz table provides the total amount of balances outstanding (pavable recaivable to from related parties i

Key Management Perscnnel

Entities om which Key ¥anagement Personnel

. “KMP”) have a sionificant influence / contral.
I As at Asat ‘ ”]As at 2 AS at
March 31, 224 March 31, 1023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2021

1. Short term benefit Payable

- Arvind Nanda 37T 2.49

- Gautam Sun 336 371

- Wira] Manda 122 1.53 Z =
- Manish Komar Garg - 7.25

- Anil Kumar Chandani 569 455 - =
- Midhi Goel 7 1.61

- Pushpender Kumar Bansal 325

2. (rther long term benefit payable

- arvind Manda 2000 20 HY -

- Gautam Sen 2000 20.00

- Viraj Manda 0.66 " _
= Manish Kuornar Gurg 12.16 T 10 <

- Anil Kumar Chandari 7 431 -

- Madhi Goel TRl 602 - =
- Pushpendzr Kumar Bansal G629 = = =
3. Unsecured borrowings

- Arvind Nanda 2100 - -
4. Interest Pavahle

- Arvind Manda .27 - -
~ Ciautarn Sur - G533

5. Security Deposit given

- [ntertas - 1800 |8.00

by Teral facilitieslimity {fund and non fund based) from banks are secured by personal guammer of we promaier ditectors of the Company viz Mr. Arvind Nanda and Mr
Gautain Suri and Corporate guarantee given by M/s Intertse (Partnership firm). The guarantes charges fecognised m statement of profit or loss in regards to such guarantees is Rs.
228,42 lakhs (March 31. 2023 Rs. 4235 lakbs) and the same has been comespondingly credited to equity. The Joan ocwtstanding (Cash credit from banks) against such
facilivies/limils is Rs. 90266 lakhs (March 31, 2023, Rs. 94810 lakhs) (Refer note 14{a}y The outstanding non-fund based limit against such facilines/limits s Rs. 20,324 80

lakchs (March 3 b, 2023; Rs, 24.322.20 lakhs)

c) Total facilities/limits {fund and non fund based) from banks are sccured by way of equitable morigage on immovable propetties sttuated at: (a} Plot No. B-33. Sector- 57,
Noida, Lttar Pradesh (Cwned by M/s Tntertec{Partnership firm) and (b} Plot No. 284, Udyog Vihar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh. being immovable praperties owned by M/s

[ertex {Partnership firm) (Refer nvie 14(a))

Notes:

i) The remuneration ta Lhe key tnanagerial personnel includes value of perquisites (excluding rent) based on the actual payment or evaluated as per [ncome Tax Rule, 19462,
ii} The remuneration paid 10 Mr. Arving Nanda excludes remt of Rs. 42.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Re. 42.00 Lakhs) paid to M/s Aries Developers Pur Limited for his residence.

iil) Remuneration paid to Mr. Gautam Suri excludes rent of Rs. 9.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs, 9.00 Lakhs) paid to M/s Signu Real Estate LLP for his residence.
iv) All related party wansacions entered during the vear were in ordinary course of business and on arm length basis.

131




Interarch Building Prodoets Limited

(Tormerly known as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC0O17029

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2424
(Amount in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37. Segment information

Business seament

The Company's activities are involved in manufacturing, supply, erection and installation of pre- engineered buildings. meial toofing & cladding
system and metal false ceilings. Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations. thers are no separate reportable serments (business
andfor geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and hence, there are no

additional disclesures to be provided other than those already provided in the Financial Statements,

Geographical information

The custorners of the Company are located in the [ndia and outside India. Refer note 19 for revenue from customers Jocated culside india.

Non-current operating assets

The non-current assets of the Company ate located in the country of domicile i.e. [ndia. Hence no specific disclosures have been made.

The Executive Dircctors, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are the Chief Operating Dectsion Maker {CODM) and monitors the

operating resuits of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assesement.

Revenue from one customer generating sales of more than 10 % of total revenue as on March 31, 2024: Nil (March 31, 2023: Rs.13,762 lakhs).

38. Fair Value

Set out below. is a comparison by class of the carmying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments;
The carrying and fair value of financial instruments by categorics as at March 31, 2024 were as follows:

Particulars Amortised Financial Assets f Financial Carrying Fair
Cost liabilities at Gair | Assets/liabilitie Value Yalue
value throngh s at fair value
statement of profit | through OCI
and lnss
Assets:
Current and non-current
Investments - 53642 336.42 53642
Trade recaivables 2| R8% 45 - - 2188845 21 28845
Cash and cash egquivalents 6, 157.687 = 6,157.67 6,137 67
Bank balances other than cash and cash 761250 - - T612.50 761250
equivalents
Loans 107 46 - - 107.46 107.46
Other financial assets 421,34 - 421.36 421 .36
Total 36,187.44 53642 - 36.723.86 36.723.86
Liabilities;
Borrowings 95586 - - 955 86 95586
Non current Bommowins 64.37 - - 64.37 64,37
Trade payables 13,356.42 - 13,356.42 1335643
Dther fenancial liabilibes 1.715.31 - 1.715.31 1.71531
Total 16,091.97 - - 16.091,97 16.091.97
The carrving and (@ir valuc of Gnancial instruments by categories as at March 31. 2023 were as [ollows:
Particulars Amortised Financial Assets / Financial Carrying Fair
Cost liabilities at fair | Assets/liabilitie Value Value
value through 5 at fair value
statement of profit | through OCI]
and loss

Assets:
Current and non-current
[nvestments - 301.02 - 30102 501.02
Trade receivables 19,707.79 - - 19,707.79 14,707.79
Cash and cash equivalents 5.866.32 - - 5,866.32 586632
Bank balances other than cash and cash 05344 - - 6,054.44 6,054.44
equivalents
Loans 27.63 2763 27.63
Orther B ial asgets 241.67 - - 261.67 261687
Total 31.917.85 501402 - 3241887 1241887
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Liabilities:

Current and non-current

Bomrowings 1,027.581 - - 1,027.81 1,027.81
Non current Borrowings 110.36 - - 110.56 110.56
Trade payables 10,366.01 - - 10,366.01 10,360.0]
Other financial labilities 1.186.44 - - §.126.44 1.186.44
| Total 12.690.82 - - 12.690.82 12_690.82

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances). trade receivables, loans, trade payables and other current
financial assets and liabilitics approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maruritics of these instruments.

Valuoation technique used to determine fair value

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a foreed or liquidation sale. The following ruethods and assumptions were used to eslimate the fair values:

{i} The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the
1ssucr’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting year,

(ii) The fair value of security deposits and non current investments approximates the carrying value and hence the valuation technique and inputs
have not been gven

{11} Fair value of investments in mutual funds are based on marke1 observable inputs i.¢. Net Asset Value at the reporting date.

39: Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements arc categoriscd within the fair value hicrarchy.
desenbed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadiusted) tnarket pricas in active markets for identical assets or Tiabilities

Level 2 — Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either
direetly or indicectly.

Level 3 — Valualion techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on
observable market data.

{This page hay intentionally been feft hlank)

133




Interarch Building Products Limited

(Tormerly kinown as Interarch Building Products Private Limited)
CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO17029

Motes to Financiat Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwilse stated)

The following table provides the fair value measurernént hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitatlve disclosures fair value measyrernent hierarchy for assers and liabillties:

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
valuation in active ohservable unobservable
markets tnpmts inpuis
(Level 1) {Level 2} {Level 3)
Financial assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Investnents March 31, 2024 536,42 - 536.42 =
March 31, 20623 501.02 - - 501.02
Trade receivables March 31, 2624 21 888 45 - - 21 888 435
March 31, 2023 19 70779 - - 19.707.7%
Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2024 015767 - - 6.15767
March 31, 2023 5,866.32 - - 5.866.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash e March 31, 2024 7.612.50 - - 7,612.50
March 31, 2023 605444 - - 6,054.44
Loans March 31. 2024 107.46 - - 107 46
March 31, 2023 27.63 - B 27.63
Other financial assets March 31, 2424 421.36 - - 421.36
March 31,2023 26167 - - 261.67
Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
valvation in active observable unebservable
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1} (Level 2} (Level 3)
Finaocial liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Bomowings March 31, 2024 955 86 = - 95586
March 31,2022 1,027.81 - - 1.027.81
Non current Borrowings March 31, 2024 6437 - - 6437
March 31,2023 110.56 - - 114.56
Trade payables March 31,2024 13,356 43 - = 13,356.43
March 31, 2023 10,366.01 % - 10,366.01
Other financial liabilitics March 31, 2024 L7153 - - 1.715.31
March 31, 2023 1.186.44 - - 1,156.44

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the year

{This space has inteniionaily been left biank)
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40: Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade payables, lease liabilitics and other financial liabilitics. The main
purpase of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to suppert its operations. The Company’s
principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables. cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) and other financial assets that derive
directly from its eperations.

The Company is exposed to market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company’s senier management is supported by a intemal finange team that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Company. The internal finance eam provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk
activitics are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the

Company’s policics and risk objectives, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below:

(a) Market Risk:

Market cisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of Tisk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equiry price risk and commedity risk. Financial instraments
affected by market nsk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the hasis that the amount of net debt, the ratie of fixed to floating mterest rates of the debt at year end
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuicy 2nd other post-retirement obligations; provisions;
and the non-financial assets and liabilities.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item i¢ the effect of the asswmed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial liabilitics held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

{i) Intercst rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marked interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-termn debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The risks are managed by periedic monitoring of interest rates.

Interest Rate sensitivity:
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 12asonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all other

variables held censtant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase in Interest % Decrease im interest %
Increase/ (decrease} in Increasef (decrease) in
profit profit
March 31, March 31, March3l, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Effect of Increase/ decrease {1.05) {1.89) 1.05 1.8%
in floating Interest rate by
100 basis points {1%)

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becanse of changes in foreign exchange vates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates privacily to the Company’s foreign currency liabilities.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk by forecasting highly probable foceign currency {FC) cash flows in advance.

Exposure to Toreign currency risk

The summary of quantitative data about the Company's cxposuce to eurrency risk, as cxpressed in [ndian Rupecs, 2s at March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023 are as below:

{a) Foreign currency risk exposure:
The Company exposure to [oreign currency nisk at the end of the reporting period. is as follow:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
USD Rupees usp Rupees
in lakhs in Jakhs in Jakhs im lakhs
Trade payahles and Payable for Property, plant and 0.62 3163 0.03 210
equipment
Total 0.62 51.63 0.03 2.10
Exposure (o foreign currency risk (liability) 0.62 51.63 0.03 2.10
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates. with all other variables held constant. The

impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of menetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure 1o foreign
currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Particulars Increase/ {(decrease) in
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023%
USD sensibivity
INRAUSD - Increase by 5% (2.58) (o1n
INR/USD - Decrease by 3% 2.58 0.13

rap

{iii) Commeodity price risk
The Company 15 exposed to movement in price of steel commadity. Profitability of Company may get affected by movement in the prices of steel. The
strategic move of the Company from fixed price contracts to variable price contracts helps mitigate steel price fluctuation rigk.

(iv) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the value of a equity financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market pricss.

The Company does not hold any quoted or marketable equity financial instrurnents, hence, is not exposed to any mevement in market prices.

{b) Credit Risk

Cr)edit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under @ financial instrument ot custorner contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily ade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with
banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instrumments. The Company only deals with partics which has goud credit rating/ worthiness
given by external rating agencies or based on Company's imemnal assessment.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Company’s exposure to eredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each custorner However, management also considers
the factors that may influence the credit risk of is customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and location in which
customers operale. The Company limits 1s cxposure 10 credil risk from trade reccivables by establishing @ maximum payment period. Quistanding

customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit obrained from reputable
banks.

The Cospany makes provision of cxpected credit losses on trade reccivables using a provision matrix. The provision mairix is based on its historical
observed default rates, adjusted for forward looking cstimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and Company
makes appropriate provision wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk. Generally, trade receivables are wnitten-off if past due
for more than one year and arc not subject to enforcement activity. The maximum exposure 1o credit nsk al the reporting date is the camying valug of
each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7 (b)(i) and 7 (b}(ii). The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other
forms of credil insurance are considered integral part of rade receivables and considered in the czlculation of impairment. The Company evaluates the

concentration of sk with respect 1o wrade receivables and contract assets as low, as its customers are lucated in several jurisdictions and industries and
operate in largely independent markets.

Sct out below is the information about the credit risk exposure of the Company’s trade reccivables and contract assct using
Provision matrix:

Contract Trade receivable
asset Not Leess 6 months 1-2 23 More Total
due than 6 -k year years years than
months 3 vears

March 31, 2024

Estimated total gross 3.525.20 6.833.50 14,215.50 77324 BR7.85 118.80 E 26,356.18
carrying amount at default

ECL- simplified approach = 282.20 586.8¢ 31.92 30.05 4.90 - 942.53
Net carrying amount 3,525.20 6,553.30 | 13,628.73 T41.32 851.20 113,90 - 15,413.65
March 31, 2023

Estimated total gross 279254 | 471233 | 14.239.63 493.94 465.34 - 612.93 23.320.6]
carmying amount at default

ECL- simplified approach - 194.00 586.24 2034 19.30 - - 519.88
Net carrying amount 2,792.4 4,518.33 | 13,653.39 473.60 449.54 22,500.73
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Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. [nvestments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewsd by the Company’s Board of Dircctors on an annual basis and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's

Finance team. The limits ace set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to
make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the componants of the balance gheet at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 iz the carrying
amounts as illustrated in Note 7(c).

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract asset:

Ameunt

(Rs. In

lakh&)
Impairment allowance as on April 01, 2022 1,783.58
Add/ (less): Provision for expected credit losses {963.70)
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2023 819.88
Add: Provision for expected credit losses 122.65
Impairment allewance as on March 31, 2024 042.53

The sigmficant change m the balance of trade receivables and contract asset are disclesed in note 7(b){i) and 7(b)(ii) respectively.

{¢Y Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company
monitors its risk of a shortage of fonds using a liquidity planning taol.

Tha Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuing of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, cash
credits, and advance payment tenms.

{a) Financing arrangsements
The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowings fagilities at the end of the reporting

As at Agat
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Floating rate
Expiring within one vear { Cash credit from banks) 3,637 .67 3.551.90

3.637.07 3.351.90

{b) Maturities of financial liabilities
The table bebow summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based oo contractual undiscounted payments.

Balance as at March 31. 2024

Particulars On Less than 1105 »5 Total Carrying
demand 1 year years Years undiscounted amount of
contractual liabilities
eash flows
Lease liabilities - 7740 237.60 110.25 425.25 318.27
Borrowings
Vehicle loans* - 32.99 69.20 - 122.19 11116
Cash credit from banks 209.66 : 909.66 909.66
Trade payables - 13,356.43 - - 13.356.43 13.356.43
Payable on purchase of Property, plant - 22278 - - 22278 222.78
and cquipment
Employes dues - 1,433.52 - - 1.453.52 1,453.52
Security deposits - 3842 - - 38.42 38.42

* in¢luding interest accrued but not due on borrowings
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Interarch Building Products Limited

(formerly known us Interarch Boilding Products Private
CIN:U45201DL1983PLC017029

Nates to Financlal Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
{Amount in Rs. lakbs, unless otherwise stated)

Balance as at March 31. 2023

Particulars On Less than 1te5 =5 Teotal Carrying
demand I year years vears undiscounted amount of
cantractnal liahilities
cash flows
Lease liabilities - 113,40 45360 33165 20865 634 .44
Borrowings
Vehicle loans™ - 70.01 122.18 - 19219 171.10
Cash credit from banks 948.10 - - - 048.10 943.10
Borrowings from related parties 20.00 - - - 20,00 20.00
Trade payables - 10.366.01 - - 10.366.01 10.366.01
Other financial liabilities - - - - -
Payable on purchase of Property, plant and equipment - 2.36 - = 236 136
Employee dues - 1.142.31 - - 1,142.31 1.142.31
Security deposits - 3942 - - 3942 39.42
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 1.52 - - 1.52 1.52

*including interest acerued but not due on borrowings

41: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securitics preminom and all other equity reserves
aftributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirememts of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders. return capital to sharcholders or
issuc new shares. The Company monitors capital uging a gearmg ratio, which 1s net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes
within net debt, interest bearing loans and bomowings, ess cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings and lease liabtlities {refer note 14(a) and 14(b})) 1,338.50 1,772.81
Less: cash and cash equivalents {refer note 7( ¢)) 6,157.67 5,866.32
Net debt (4.319.17) (4.093.51)
Equity 44 462 46 39.027.90
Total Capital 44.462.46 39.927.90
Capital and net debt 39.643.29 35,834.30
Gearing Ratio -12.16% =11.42%

In order o achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing leans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenamts would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the reporting vear.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

oo | Gurugram

SKR
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Interarch Building Products Limited
(formerly known as lnterarch Building Products Private Limited)

CIN:U45201DL1983PLCO1T029

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless atherwise stared)

42, Ratio analvsis and ity el

Ratio

March 31,

%o/ Times Numerator Demominatar 2024 March 31, 2023 | % change | Reason for variance > 25%
Current Ratio Times Current assets Current liabilities 1.71 1.83 -6.32% | Not applicable
Primarly on account of
Debt-Equity Ratio Times Total debt* Total Equity 0.03 0.04]  -32.20%|decrease in total debt in the
vear ended March 31, 2024,
Eamings Iavalla.ble for Debt service =
debt service= Net profit L. .
hefore taxes — Interest & Prncipal Primarly on aceount af
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Times . Repayments 95.61 54.04 49 30" | decrease in debt in the year
depreciation and . i
o ) including lease ended March 31, 2024
amortization+ Finance lisbilicy
Cost abilicy
Retun pn Equity Ratio %% Prefit for the year™™ Average toial equily 20.44% 22 % -9.94% | Not applicable
Inventory Tumover Ratio Times Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 530 340 T.50% | Not applicabls
Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio | Times Revenue from operations A\'crz_agc L= 622 723  -12.90%|Not applicable
Receivablesits
Met purchases = Gross Averase Trade
Trade Pavables Tumover Ratio Timnes purchases - purchase Py abf 1.06 Bt =11 87%| Mot applicable
cetarm yabies
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Times Revenue from operations ;&a‘;irt:lge Working 6.10 G.13 -1-55%| Mot applicable
Net Profit Ratio B Profit for the year** Revenue 6.67% T.25% -8.00%| Now applicable
operaticns
Earmings before interest | Capital Employed =
, ) & and tax = Profic forthe | Total equity- " Je o .
Retum oo Capital Empleyed % year + Finance costs + (ntangible assets + 25.719% 26.75% 3.61%| Not applicable
Total tax expense Taotal debt®
Betum on Investment % Income on Invesiment Average Lnvestroents 2071% 24.84%|  -16.61%|Not applicable

*Total debt is calenlated as non-corrent borrowings plus current borrowings plus non-current lease liabilitics plus current lease habilibies.

** Profil after tax before ether comprehenyive income
## includes both current and non current Trade receivables.
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Interarch Building Produets Limited

(formerly known as [nterarch Building Products Privase Limited)
CIN:U4S 105 DL1933PLCO17029

Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amount in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

43. Other Statuiury Information

1} The Company does not have any Benami property, wherg any procesdings has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami propurty

i} The Company does not have any ransactions with struck-off companies under scotion 248 of The Companies Act, 2013,

iii) The Company does nut have any changes or satisfaction which 15 yet to be registered with ROC beyond the staturory peried.

i¥) The Company has not traded or invested in crypie cumency or vinual currency

¥} The Company has not advanced any lean or investad fund in any other person(s) or entity(ies), mcluding farcign entities {intermedtaries) with the understanding that the
intermediary shall:

a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on of the behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) Provide any guaranteg, security o the like to or on behalf of the ultimaie beneficianes.

vi} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) ot entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recordad in writing or
otherwise) that the company shall:

) Direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entities identified in anv manner whatsoever by or on of the behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) Provide any guaranty, secunity or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiares

vii) The Company docs not have any such transactions which is not recorded in books of account that have been surtendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessment under the Income Tax Aci, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provision of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961)
viii) The Company hus not been declarcd as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institation or other lender,

4. Employee Stock Orptivn Scheme

The Company has adopted the Interarch Employee Stock Option Plan 2023 (“ESOP 2023") pursvant to the teselutions passed by the Board of Directors on August 17, 2023 and
our Shareholders on August I8, 2023 which was amended pursuant to cesclution passed by the Board of Directors on 8th March 2024, and our Shareholders on 5th March, 2024,
As per the ESOP 2023, the Company has the right w grant share options to qualifying employees once they have successfilly completed a year of service. However, the acual
vesting of these share optiens depends on completion of a specified minimum employment period with the company and/or the fulfillment of any specified perforrmance conditions.
The Compensation Committee namely Nomination and Remuneration Committes will determine the exercise price and pricing formula, following the guidelines laid down by
applicable accounting standards. The method for valuation of options shall be deienmined by the Compensation Commitiee namely Nomination and Remuneration Committee
from time to time in accordance with ESOP 2023, As on date oo sieck options have becn granted under the ESQP 2023

45, Buyback of shares

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 17, 2023 and by Shareholders by passing Special Resclution atan Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August
18, 2023, approved & proposal to buy back the equity shares of the Company. This scheme includes buy back of fully paid-up equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10} each of the
Compuny 2t 3 prive Rs. 67 per equity share from the shareholders of the Company payable in cash which 1s more than 10% of the aggregaie of the total paid-up share capital and
free reserves of the Company, based on the latest audited financial statements of the Company as on March 31, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of Section 68 and
Section 70 of the Companics Act, 2013 (“Act’) read with Rule 17(1)(n) of the Companics {Share capital and debentures Rules), 2014, as amended and other applicable pravisions
(the process hereinafier referred to as the “Buyback™} The Company has boughl back 5.84,708 No's of equity shazes for an aggregate amount of Rs 3,900.00 lakhs being 11 34%
of the ‘Total paid up equity share capital and Free reserves’ as defined in the Act as at March 31, 2023 at price of Rs. 667 per equity share The equity shares bought back were
extinguished on September 25, 2023, Capital redemption reserve was credted to the exlent of share capital extinguished {Rs. 58 47 lakhs) from retained eamings. The excess cosl

of buyback of Rs 3.841.53 lakhs over par value of shares were offered from gencral rescrve and comesponding tax on buyback of Rs. 428.13 lakhs were offset from retained
eamings.

46. The Company uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audin trail facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except for direct changes to database using certain access rights. Wherever andit trail is enabled, there has net beea any
instance where audit trail feature has been tampered with, in respect of the accounting software.

47. Events after the reporting year

(i) All other events has been disclosed under the respective notes to accounts wherever requiced

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of:
terarc

ard of Directors of
ol fmvited
For S.R. Batlibei & Cou, LLP ch Bullding Froducts Private Limited)

Firm Registration No. 301 (H3E/E300005

d Accountants o ( e J
——— T —
it T //
per Plavin Tulsyan Arvind Nanda ) Guutam Sari
Managing Director | Whole-Time Director
Memblrship no. 108044 DIN. 00149426 DIN: 00149374

lanish Kumar Garg
Chief Executive Officer

Bamsal  Nidhi Goel
Company Secretary and
Compliange Officer

Membership no. 419279
Place : Gurugram

Date : June 11, 2024

Place : Noida
Date ; June 11, 2024
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NOTICE OF AGM

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 41** ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED (“THE COMPANY”) WILL BE HELD ON AUGUST 3™
2024 AT 09.30 A.M. (IST), AT SHORTER NOTICE AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
SITUATED AT Farm No-8, Khasra No. 56/23/2, DERA MANDI ROAD, MANDI VILLAGE, TEHSIL
MEHRAULI, NEW DELHI - 110047, India TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. ADOPTION OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 and the reports Auditors thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are
hereby considered and adopted.

2. TO RE-APPOINT MR. GAUTAM SURI (DIN 00149374), WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR WHO RETIRES
BY ROTATION AS A DIRECTOR AND, IN THIS REGARD, TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO
PASS THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Gautam Suri who
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed as Director (designated as a Whole Time Director) on the Board of the Company. Mr.
Gautam Suri reappointed as a director immediately on retirement by rotation, shall continue to
hold his office of whole time director, and such re-appointment as such director shall not be
deemed to constitute a break in his appointment as WTD.

3. TO RE-APPOINT MR. ISHAAN SURI (DIN 02714298), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AS A
DIRECTOR AND, IN THIS REGARD, TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ishaan Suri (DIN 02714298), who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby Re-appointed as a Director
of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION TO COST AUDITORS:
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force),
the remuneration payable to M/s JSN & CO, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 455),
appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, as Cost
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Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
Financial Year ending March 31, 2025, amounting to Rs.65,000 (Rupees Sixty Five Thousand
Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred in connection
with the aforesaid audit, be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that approval of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors
of the Company (including any Committee thereof) to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including seeking all necessary
approvals to give effect to this Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that
may arise in this regard.”

5. INCREASE IN BORROWING LIMITS OF THE COMPANY

To consider and approve if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following as
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, ofthe
Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force), and the articles of association of the Company, consent is hereby accorded
to the Board to borrow any sum or sums of money from time to time at their discretion for the
purpose of the business of the Company, from any one or more banks, financial institutions,
mutual funds and other persons, firms, bodies corporate or by way of loans or credit facilities
(fund based or non-fund based) or by issue of bonds on such terms and conditions and with or
without security as the Board may think fit, which together with the moneys already borrowed
by the Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained fromthe bankers of the Company in
the ordinary course of business) and being borrowed by the Board at any time shall not exceed
in the aggregate at anytime Rs. 700 crores (Rupees Seven hundred Crores Only) irrespective of
the fact that such aggregate amount of borrowings outstanding at anyone time may exceed the
aggregate for the time being of the paid-up capitalof the Company and its free reserves that is
to say reserves not set apart for any specific purpose. The above amount is approved by the
Board for one year and to be reviewed again based on business requirements

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, to give effect to the above resolutions, Mr. Arvind Nanda, Managing
Director and Mr. Gautam Suri, Whole time Director of the Company, be and are hereby severally
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, including to settle any question,
difficulty or doubt that may arise and to finalise and execute all documents and writings as may
be necessary.”

6. TO SELL, LEASE OR OTHERWISE DISPOSE OFF WHOLE OR SUBSTANTIALLY WHOLE OF ANY
OF UNDERTAKING/S OF THE COMPANY:

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013
(as amended or re-enacted from time to time) and other applicable provisions, if any, and
subject to the approval of shareholders in general meeting, the consent of the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to charge/mortgage/hypothecation anyof its
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movable and/ or immovable properties wherever situated both present and future or to sell,
lease or otherwise dispose off the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the
Company or where the Company owns more than one undertaking, of the whole or substantially
the whole of any such undertaking(s) and to create a charge/mortgage/hypothecation, on such
terms and conditions at such time(s) and in such form and manner, and with such ranking as to
priority as Mr. Arvind Nanda, Managing Director and Mr. Gautam Suri, Whole time Director,
severally, in its absolute discretion thinks fit on the whole or substantially the whole of the
Company's any one or more of the undertakings or all of the undertakings of the Company in
favour of any bank(s) or body(ies) corporate or person(s) whether shareholders of the Company
or not, together with interest, cost, charges and expenses thereon for amount at any time not
exceeding Rs. 700 crores (Rupees Seven hundred Crores Only) or theaggregate of the paid-up
capital and free reserves of the Company, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific
purpose at the relevant time, whichever is higher.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the securities to be created by the Company aforesaid may rank
prior/pari- passu/subservient with/to the charge/mortgage/hypothecation already created or
to be created by the company as may be agreed to between the concerned parties".

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, Mr. Arvind Nanda,
Managing Director and Mr. Gautam Suri, Whole time Director of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorized to do all such act(s), deed(s), matter(s) and thing(s) as may be
deemed necessary and settle any or all questions/matters arising with respect to the above
matter, and to execute all such paper(s), letter(s) and document(s) as may be necessary for the
purpose of giving effect to this resolution, and to take such other incidental and ancillary steps
in this regard, as may be considered desirable or expedient inthe best interest of the Company
and its shareholders.”

By the Order of the Board
FOR INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Date : 23/07/2024

Place : Noida Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN No. 00149426 DIN: 00149374
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Notes:

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
PROXY TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT
BE MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED.

2. The explanatory statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to
special business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Proxies, if any, in order to be effective must be received at the company’s registered office not
later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting. Proxies shall not have any right to
speak at the meeting.

4. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member
holding more than ten percent. of total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

5. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorised representatives to attend the Meeting in
terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the Company a certified copy
of the Board Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the
Meeting.

5. Documents relating to any of the items mentioned in the notice are open for inspection at the
registered office of the company on any working day during business hours.

6. Only bonafide members of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members/Proxy
holders, in possession of valid attendance slips duly filled and signed will be permitted to attend the
meeting. The Company reserves its right to take all steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-
members from attending the meeting.

7. Members are requested to inform the company immediately, if any change in their address.

8. Consent has been obtained from the shareholders for holding this meeting on shorter notice.

9. The Route Map for the meeting is annexed with the notice.

10. Any query relating to financial statements must be sent to the Company’s Registered Office at
least seven days before the date of the Meeting.

11. The Register of Members of the Company shall remain closed from 29 July, 2024 to 03™ August,
2024 (both days inclusive).

By the Order of the Board
FOR INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Date : 23/07/2024

Place : Noida Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN No. 00149426 DIN: 00149374
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Information of Directors who are being appointed/ re-appointment or whose remuneration is being
proposed at this AGM, applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards-
2, as on the date of Notice

NAME GAUTAM SURI ISHAAN SURI
DIN 00149374 02714298
Date of Birth 30/09/1952 04/08/1981
Age 71 Years 42 Years
Original date of 30/11/1983 26/09/2011

Appointment

Appointed as a Whole Time
Director w.e.f 15/01/2024

Qualifications

Bachelor’s Degree in technology
in Mechanical Engineering from
the Indian Institute of
Technology Delhi

Bachelor’s Degree in Science
from London School of
Economics and Political
Science

Experience and
expertise in
specific functional
area

30 years of Experience in Pre-
Engineered Steel Building
Industry

14 years of experience in Pre-
Engineered Steel Building
Industry

Terms & conditions
of re-appointment
and remuneration

As per Company’s Policy on Nomination, Remuneration and Board

Diversity

Remuneration
drawn during
FY 2023-24

Please refer Corporate Governance Report which forms part of

the Annual Report for FY 2023-24

No. of Board
Meetings attended
during FY 2023-24

8

Shareholding

5,729,046 Equity Shares of Rs. 10
each

5,39,930 Equity Shares of Rs.
10 each

Directorships
held in other
Indian companies
including equity
listed companies

SIGNU HOMES PRIVATE LIMITED

IGS HOLDINGS PVT LTD

SIGNU HOMES PRIVATE
LIMITED

IGS HOLDINGS PVT LTD

Membership/
Chairmanship of
committees in
Indian Companies

Stakeholder Relationship
Committee -Member
Risk Management Committee —
Chairman & Member
Corporate Social Relationship
Committee-Member

Stakeholder Relationship
Committee -Member
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE SECTION 102(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM No.4

As per Notification dated 31st December, 2014 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, provisions relating to the auditing of cost
accounting records are applicable to the Company. Accordingly, on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 11th June, 2024, approved the
appointment of JSN & CO, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 455), for the conduct of the
audit of the cost accounting records of the Company for the financial year ending 31st March,
2025, at a remuneration of 65,000 (Rupees Sixty Five Thousand only) plus taxes as applicable
and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actuals subject to ratification by the Members
as required pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014.

JSN & CO , Cost Accountants have, as required under Section 141 of the Act, consented to act
as the Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 and confirmed their eligibility
to conduct the audit of the cost accounting records of the Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is concerned or interested
in the resolution. Accordingly, the Board recommends passing the resolution as set out in item
no. 4 of this notice as an ordinary resolution.

ITEM NO.5 & 6 INCREASE IN BORROWING LIMITS OF THE COMPANY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 180(1) (a) and 180(1) (c) of the Companies Act,
2013, the following powers can be exercised by the Board of Directors with the consent of the
company by a Special Resolution:

* To pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge all or any part of the moveable orimmovable
properties of the Company and the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company;

e To borrow money, where the money to be borrowed, together with the money already
borrowed by the Company will exceed the aggregate of the Company’s paid-up share capital
and free reserves and securities premium, apart from temporary loans obtained from the
company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business, except.

The Board is of the view that the in order to further expand the business activities of the
Company and for meeting the expenses for capital expenditure, the Company may be further
required to borrow money, either secured or unsecured, from the banks/ financial
institutions/other body corporate, from time to time, and to pledge, mortgage, hypothecate
and/or charge any or all of the movable and immovable properties of the Company and/or
whole or part of the undertaking of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to increase the limits to borrow money up to
Rs. 700 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred Crores) and to secure such borrowings by pledging,
mortgaging, hypothecating the movable or immovable properties of the Company amounting
up to Rs. 700 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred Crores).
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It is, therefore, required to obtain fresh approval of members by Special Resolution under
Sections 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, to enable the Board of Directors
to borrow money in excess of the aggregate of the paid up share capital and free reserves of the
Company and to create charge on the assets over the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolutions.

By the Order of the Board
FOR INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Date : 23/07/2024

Place : Noida Sd/- Sd/-
Arvind Nanda Gautam Suri
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN No. 00149426 DIN: 00149374
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

41 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING | SATURDAY, 3%° AUGUST, 2024

INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED

Farm No-8, Khasara no. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road, Mandi Village, Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-

110047

CIN No.

U45201DL1983PLC017029

1.

Folio No./DP ID-Client ID

Name and Address of the
Shareholder in Block Letters

No. of Shares held

Name of Proxy (if any) in Block
Letters

| hereby record my presence at the 41 Annual General Meeting of the Company on Saturday, the
03.08.2024 at 09.30 a.m. at Farm No-8, Khasara no. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road, Mandi Village,
Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-110047

Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy/Representaive*

*Strike out whichever is not applicable

Note:

1.

Please hand over the Attendance Slip duly completed and signed at the REGISTRATION
COUNTERS

Copy of the Annual Report 2024 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent to all the members at their respective email ID’s/ and
address registered with the company.
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U45201DL1983PLC017029

Name of the Company: INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED,

Registered office: Farm No-8, Khasara No. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road Tehsil Mehrauli, New
Delhi-110047

Name of the Member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Clint Id:

NP ID-

I/ We being the member of ............ , holding.....shares, hereby appoint
1. Name: .....cce..e..

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ..........., or failing him
2. Name: ......ccce......

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature: ...........,
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 41 Annual
General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on 03" day of August 2024 at 9.30
A.M. on Shorter Notice at the registered office of the Company at Farm No-8, Khasara No.
56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-110047 and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S.No Type of Particulars Assent Dissent
Resolution
1 ORDINARY ADOPTION OF AUDITED
RESOLUTION STANDALONE
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS-

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

2 ORDINARY TO RE-APPOINT MR.
RESOLUTION GAUTAM SURI (DIN
00149374), WHOLE
TIME DIRECTOR WHO
RETIRES BY ROTATION
AS A DIRECTOR

3 ORDINARY TO RE-APPOINT MR.
RESOLUTION ISHAAN  SURI  (DIN
02714298), WHO

RETIRES BY ROTATION
AS A DIRECTOR
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4 ORDINARY RATIFICATION OF
RESOLUTION REMUNERATION TO
COST AUDITORS
5 SPECIAL INCREASE IN
RESOLUTION BORROWING LIMITS OF
THE COMPANY
6 SPECIAL TO SELL, LEASE OR
RESOLUTION OTHERWISE  DISPOSE
OFF WHOLE OR
SUBSTANTIALLY WHOLE
OF ANY OF
UNDERTAKING/S OF
THE COMPANY-
Signed this ..... day of...... 2024 Affix Revenue

Stamp
Signature of Shareholder
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, before the commencement of the Meeting.
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ROUTE MAP FOR 41 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING-2024

{INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS LIMITED}
AGM Venue: Farm No-8, Khasara No. 56/23/2, Dera Mandi Road,
Tehsil Mehrauli, New Delhi-110047

Dera Village, Dera Mandi, New Delhi, Delhi to Interarch Building Products Private Limited, 56/23/2, Dera  Walk 430 m, 6 min
Mandi Rd, Dera Mandi Retreat, Dera Village, Dera Mandi, New Delni, South Delhi, Delhi 110074
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